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Citi’s Value Proposition:
A Mission of Enabling Growth and Progress
What You Can Expect from Us and What We Expect from Ourselves
Citi’s mission is to serve as a trusted partner to its clients by responsibly providing
financial services that enable growth and economic progress. Our core activities
are safeguarding assets, lending money, making payments and accessing the
capital markets on behalf of our clients. We have 200 years of experience in
helping our clients meet the world’s toughest challenges and embrace its greatest
opportunities. We are Citi, the global bank — an institution connecting millions of
people across hundreds of countries and cities.
We protect people’s savings and help them make the purchases — from everyday
transactions to buying a home — that improve the quality of their lives. We advise
people on how to invest for future needs, such as their children’s education and
their own retirement, and help them buy securities, such as stocks and bonds.
We work with companies to optimise their daily operations, whether they need
working capital to make payroll or export their goods overseas. By lending to
companies large and small, we help them grow, creating jobs and real economic
value at home and in communities around the world. We provide financing and
support to governments at all levels so they can build sustainable infrastructure,
such as housing, transportation, schools and other vital public works.
These capabilities create an obligation to act responsibly, do everything possible to
create the best outcomes and prudently manage risk. If we fall short, we will take
decisive action and learn from our experience.
We strive to earn and maintain the public’s trust by constantly adhering to the
highest ethical standards. We ask our colleagues to ensure that their decisions pass
three tests: they are in our clients’ interests, create economic value and are always
systemically responsible. When we do these things well, we make a positive financial
and social impact in the communities we serve and show what a global bank can do.

CEO Remarks

The year 2015 was a challenging year for Nigeria in terms of the
economic environment. This was particularly true for the banking
sector. Despite this, Citi Nigeria continued to play its critical role as
an enabler of our clients’ commercial and developmental aspirations.
The bank was only able to achieve this through the strength of its
market-leading expertise and diverse product suite, both key strategic
differentiators for the bank.
Looking forward, Citi Nigeria expects the macroeconomic environment
to remain challenging in the short to medium term as the Government
of Nigeria continues to adjust to recent shifts in the country’s economic
realities. The goal for us is to remain a source of support for our clients
by drawing on the power of our many resources to find innovative
solutions to our clients’ most difficult challenges.

Akinsowon Dawodu
Chief Executive Officer, Citi Nigeria
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Annual General Meeting Notice

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE THIRTY-SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS
OF CITIBANK NIGERIA LIMITED WILL BE HELD AT CHARLES S. SANKEY HOUSE, 27, KOFO ABAYOMI
STREET, VICTORIA ISLAND, LAGOS, ON FRIDAY 15 APRIL 2016 AT 1.00 P.M. FOR THE TRANSACTION
OF THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive the Report of the Directors, the Balance Sheet as at 31st December 2015, together with
the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date and the Report of the Auditors thereon.
2. To declare a dividend.
3. To re-elect Directors.
4. To authorise the Directors to fix the remuneration of the Auditors.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
To receive the Report on the Board performance review conducted by DCSL Corporate Services Limited.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

OLUSOLA FAGBURE
Company Secretary
Dated this 16th day of March 2016
Charles S. Sankey House
27, Kofo Abayomi Street
Victoria Island, Lagos.
NOTE
A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote instead of him and such proxy need not also be a member. A form of proxy is enclosed
and if it is to be valid for the purposes of the meeting, it must be completed and deposited at the registered
office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.
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Chairman’s Statement

Macroeconomic Overview
World Economy
The global economy recorded a weak GDP growth of 2.4% in
2015 compared to 2.6% in 2014. This deterioration in economic
performance was largely connected to a slowdown in emerging
and developing countries amid weakening commodity prices,
slowing global trade and reduced capital flows.
In an increasingly interconnected world, the slower growth
experienced by many frontier markets was driven by a
simultaneous slowdown in most of the larger emerging
economies. The Chinese economy, for instance, an engine
of global growth in recent years, experienced a slowdown as
the economy structurally adjusted. Meanwhile, growth rates
in Brazil and Russia flattened due to external and domestic
challenges.

Olayemi Cardoso

Fellow shareholders, members of
the board of directors, distinguished
ladies and gentlemen . . .
I am pleased to welcome you to the
32nd Annual General Meeting of your
bank, Citibank Nigeria Limited, and
present to you its financial results
and key achievements during the
financial year-end 2015. Citi Nigeria
continued to make great strides
despite the challenging global and
local operating environments.

The US economy continued to show growth as it expanded
by 2.5% in 2015, its highest growth rate since the global
financial crisis of 2008. This consumption-led recovery,
driven by solid labour market conditions, where the
unemployment rate fell to 5% in the final quarter of 2015,
contributed immensely to outstanding growth. In the
euro area, growth picked up in 2015, as domestic demand
strengthened and exports accelerated, partly owing to the
lagged effect of euro depreciation. For the year as a whole,
euro area growth was 1.5%, with activity levels picking up in
Spain, somewhat disappointing in Germany, and still lagging
(albeit gradually recovering) in France and Italy. Low oil prices
and favourable financing conditions supported consumer
spending and investment in the region.
Sub-Saharan African Economy
Growth in the Sub-Saharan African economy slowed to 3.4%
in 2015 from 4.5% in 2014. This slowdown was associated
with increasing fiscal vulnerabilities in a number of
countries. Fiscal deficits widened in oil-exporting countries
(Nigeria, Angola, Republic of Congo, Gabon) owing to
falling prices. In other countries, widening deficits reflected
increased government spending, including on arrears
(Zambia), infrastructure projects (Kenya) and subsidies
(Malawi). Some countries (Angola, Ghana) implemented
reform measures — including removing fuel subsidies and
freezing public sector hiring — that reduced deficits.
Capital flows to the region also slowed in 2015. In recent
years, several countries have tapped the international bond
market, taking advantage of the global low-interest-rate
environment and of investors’ search for yield. However,
yields spiked in 2015 as sovereign spreads rose, reflecting a
reassessment of risk by investors in anticipation of economic
headwinds and interest-rate increases in the United States.
The currencies of most countries in the region were under
pressure and experienced sharp depreciations, owing to
increased fiscal and current account deficits.

6

Nigerian Economy
The Nigerian economy recorded a growth rate of 2.79% in
2015 compared to 6.22% in 2014, representing the lowest
growth in annual GDP since 1999. This lower growth rate was
largely driven by the sharp drop in oil prices, which exposed
the country’s latent economic vulnerability. Although the
contribution of oil to GDP has decreased from about 32% to
14% over the past 25 years, the multiplier effects of the oil
price shock were felt well beyond the oil sector due to the
dependence of all tiers of government on oil revenues and
the fact that over 90% of Nigeria’s export trade comes from
the sector. The subsequent sharp reduction of FX availability
then contributed to a significant decrease in overall economic
activity levels.
As of December 2015, Nigeria’s FX reserves balance was
USD29.1 billion down by 15.6% from the prior year. Although
the year-end inflation rate of 9.6% breached the Central Bank
of Nigeria’s (CBN’s) target band of 6% to 9%, it remained,
just, in single-digit range. The Naira/US Dollar exchange
rate depreciated to 197.00 (from 168.00) at the CBN official
window, 199.00 (from 186.10) in the interbank market and
270.00 (from 193.00) in the bureaux de change market.
The 2015 year was one of significant regulatory volatility and
the CBN issued various circulars and directives in a bid to
manage the secondary effects of the fall in oil prices. During
the last meeting of the Monetary Policy Committee in 2015,
the Monetary Policy Rate (MPR) was decreased from 13% to
11% and the asymmetric corridor was widened to +2%/-7%,
two decisions that, taken together, amounted to a significant
easing of monetary policy. The cash reserve requirement
(CRR) ratio was also conditionally reduced by 500 bps from
25% to 20%, while the liquidity ratio was maintained at 30%.

Farewell Dinner in honour of His Excellency Vice President of the
Federal Republic of Nigeria, Professor Yemi Osinbajo.

Other developments in 2015 included the implementation
of the Treasury Single Account, which required that all
deposits belonging to the FGN’s Ministries, Departments
and Agencies (MDAs) be moved from the Deposit Money
Banks (DMBs) to the CBN. The Bank Verification Number
(BVN) initiative was partially concluded in 2015, and this has
strengthened the identity infrastructure, which can be used
to curb the recurrence of fraud in the banking industry. A
revised guideline on BASEL II implementation covering Pillar
1 (minimum capital requirement), Pillar 2 (ICAAP) and Pillar
3 (disclosure requirements) with an accompanying reporting
template was issued to DMBs on 24 June 2015. Citi has since
complied with all these directives.
On the political front, the successful conduct of the 2015
general elections and the subsequent peaceful transition of
power to the erstwhile opposition party, for the first time in
the country’s history, has significantly improved perceptions
of the country’s institutional and democratic evolution.
Financial Performance 2015
During the year under review, Citi Nigeria recorded gross
earnings of NGN39.7 billion, which represent an increase of
14% compared to NGN34.8 billion made in the prior year.
Before accounting for credit losses, net operating income
increased by 11.4% to NGN33.6 billion from NGN30.1 billion
in 2014. Net operating income after loan impairment
charge closed at NGN25.5 billion, a decrease of 17% from
NGN30.5 billion in 2014. Profit before tax for the year
decreased by 30% to NGN12.9 billion from NGN18.3 billion
in the prior year while profit after tax at NGN10.5 billion
showed a 32% decrease over the 2014 figure of
NGN15.5 billion. This reduction in profitability was the
result of an increased net loan impairment charge of

Chief E. J. Amana, Chief E.A.O Shonekan, Chief C. Ogunbanjo at the
Annual General Meeting.
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Chairman’s Statement

NGN8.1 billion recorded in 2015 compared to a net credit
write-back of NGN337 million in the prior year, a symptom
of the deteriorating commercial environment. Operating
expenses remained largely flat at NGN12.7 billion compared
to NGN12.3 billion in the prior year, reflecting the continued
focus on proactive management of Citi Nigeria’s cost profile.
At the end of 2015, total assets increased by 8% to close
at NGN431 billion against NGN400 billion in the prior year.
The cautious growth in client loan assets, which was
slightly up by 2% to close at NGN94.5 billion compared
to NGN92.4 billion in 2014, reflected the proactive risk
management efforts taken to focus strategically on
certain key sectors and clients given the likely negative
implications of the economic downturn experienced
during the year under review.
Citi Nigeria has complied with the revised Basel II
regulatory capital guidelines of the CBN and remains well
capitalised with a capital adequacy ratio of 27.8%, which
is well above the minimum regulatory requirement of 10%.
I am pleased to report that Citi Nigeria received a
composite risk rating of low, representing the best possible
rating, for the sixth year running in the annual joint
risk-based audit conducted by the CBN and the Nigerian
Deposit Insurance Corporation.
While the 2015 financial results reflected the challenging
economic environment we found ourselves in as a country,
Citi Nigeria still achieved commendable results across all
its business segments. We continue to have a solid and very
liquid balance sheet and are well positioned to capture the
opportunities as the economy recovers in 2016 and beyond.

The 10th Anniversary of Global Community Day, where 1,200+ volunteers
worked side by side to enable progress in communities across the nation.
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Notable Events and Activities
Awards and Recognitions
Citi was named “Best Global Bank” for 2015 by Euromoney,
the preeminent global financial markets magazine, at its
annual Awards for Excellence dinner in London. The top
award of the evening was one of 13 that Citi won, which also
included the Best Global Emerging Market Investment Bank.
The Euromoney Awards for Excellence are recognised as
among the most prestigious in the financial services industry.
Euromoney stated that “Citi is a much-changed, smaller, more
focused institution. But it still has a truly global presence, in
both consumer and wholesale banking, which competitors will
struggle ever to replicate. Citi's management has taken many
of the necessary steps to ensure that a global universal banking
model works. Our belief is that its clients, and its shareholders,
will increasingly see the benefits of its unique global franchise.”
Citi also won a number of regional awards, including Best
Investment Bank in Africa.
Corporate Citizenship
Citi Nigeria celebrated its 10th annual Global Community Day,
as more than 77,000 Citi volunteers in 487 cities spanning
93 countries and territories engaged in activities of benefit to
local communities. In Nigeria, a total of 1,500 Citi volunteers
participated in a sports day/fun day for various charities in
Lagos, Abuja, Port-Harcourt, Kano and Warri.
Citi Foundation once again provided even more support to our
local non-profit partners in Nigeria with a total investment of
NGN93.4 million. We continue to applaud the efforts of our
non-profit partners, namely Junior Achievement, Technoserve,
LEAP Africa and Centre for Values in Leadership, who, alongside

Citi, continue to promote economic progress and improve the
lives of people in low-income communities around Nigeria. Our
combined efforts have seen an increase in financial inclusion,
job opportunities for the youth and innovative approaches to
building an economically vibrant nation.
In continuation of its long-standing tradition of supporting
local communities in which it does business, Citi Nigeria
donated NGN18.5 million to over 30 charities nationwide.
Changes to the Board of Directors
Professor Yemi Osinbajo, SAN, resigned from the Board in
April subsequent to his election as Vice President of Nigeria. In
June, there were three resignations from the Board. Mr Omar
Hafeez, the former Managing Director, and Mr Tariq Masaud,
former Country Risk Manager, resigned from the Board of
Directors, owing to their reassignment by Citigroup. Mr Ade
Ayeyemi also resigned in June, following his resignation from
Citigroup to pursue other opportunities. We are grateful for
their service to Citi Nigeria and wish them all well.
Mr Akin Dawodu was appointed Managing Director of Citi
Nigeria in June. Mr Dawodu had been an Executive Director
(Chief Operating Officer and Public Sector Head) of Citi
Nigeria since January 2013, before which he had been the
Country Treasurer since 2007.
In September, Mr Chinedu Ikwudinma was appointed to the
Board of Directors as Executive Director (Risk Management).
Mr Ikwudinma has worked in various capacities in the
Corporate Bank, Global Transaction Services, Remedial
Management and the Commercial Bank for Citi Nigeria and
other African countries over the years. He was, until his
appointment, the CEO of Citi Uganda.

Citi was named “Best Investment Bank in Africa” for 2015 by
Euromoney, the preeminent global financial markets magazine. Citi
also won the top award of the evening – “Best Global Bank” – one of
13 awards that Citi won, among them “Best Global Emerging Market
Investment Bank” and “Best Equity House in Africa”.

Conclusion
Please permit me to extend, on your behalf, our heartfelt
appreciation to the management and to staff for their continued
commitment to Citi Nigeria and for another year of achievements.
I thank you all sincerely for your individual and collective efforts
to contribute to the growth and success of Citi Nigeria.
I also wish to express my appreciation to the shareholders of
Citi Nigeria for your constant support and encouragement
over the course of the last year. Your contributions are highly
valuable and over the years have played a major role in the
continued success of our bank.
In conclusion, I offer my gratitude to my colleagues and
fellow members of the Board of Directors. Your cooperation,
wisdom, loyalty and hard work have immeasurably
contributed to the success and continued development of Citi
Nigeria. As we look to the future, I say congratulations to all
of you on yet another excellent year.

Olayemi Cardoso
Chairman

Citi Nigeria Board of Directors with His Excellency Vice President
of the Federal Republic of Nigeria, Professor Yemi Osinbajo, and his
wife Mrs Dolapo Osinbajo.
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Sustainability Report 2015

Citi Nigeria’s sustainability vision entails
conducting business in an environmentally
and socially responsible manner.
In addition to making good business sense, this is
consistent with our goal of being good corporate citizens
sensitive to the communities in which we do business.
We developed our Environmental and Social Risk
Management (ESRM) Policy, which includes categorisation
requirements and, as appropriate, environmental due
diligence and elevated review and approval requirements
for corporate and government loans, project finance,
equity transactions, acquisition finance, letters of credit,
bid bonds, performance bonds, and project finance
advisory mandates. This policy decision reinforces Citi’s
commitment to managing environmental and social risks
in a rigorous and effective manner.
Citi Nigeria has a long-standing commitment to conducting
business in a manner consistent with Citi’s broader
core principle of Responsible Finance. We recognise
that sustainability issues could have an impact on the
reputation of the firm and the ability of a potential
customer to fulfill its obligations to the firm. As a result,
we proactively assess covered transactions using our
robust ESRM policy.
Our environmental sustainability strategy is based
on managing the environmental footprint of our own
operations, such as energy use in our offices, and on
proactively assessing and managing environmental
and social risk in projects we finance.

Citi is committed to sharing best practices and improving
the financial literacy base of financially excluded individuals.
In 2010, we launched the Citi Microenterprise Development
for Rural Farmers Initiative, targeted at increasing the
income of smallholder farmers in rural areas, including
women, by facilitating access to financial management
training, access to agricultural inputs through a loan fund
and access to markets through linkage to agro-products
merchants and centralised logistics for post-harvest
produce. One hundred farmers have received business
development training and access to low-interest loans to
allow them to purchase inputs to grow crops.
For the last nine years, in conjunction with the CBN
International Microfinance Conference and Microfinance
Awards, we have held the Citi Microentrepreneurship
Awards. It seeks to raise awareness of the role of
microenterprise and microfinance in the livelihood and
economy of the country and to engender policy-making
that makes for a more financially inclusive economic
environment. It achieves all this by administering a
competition and hosting an award ceremony that
recognises outstanding individuals and organisations.
By partnering with other banks and microfinance
institutions, Citi continues to explore innovative avenues
to provide capital to those who otherwise would not have
had access to it.
The promotion of diversity, one of the key pillars of
Citi’s operating culture, ensures that Citi continues to
provide equal opportunities for all, irrespective of
gender, religion or race.

Citi participated in the Financial Literacy and Public Enlightenment Day in Nigeria, an initiative of Global Money Week (GMW). In
Nigeria, the week is spearheaded by the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) and Nneka Enwereji, Executive Director and Head of Global
Subsidiaries Group, taught 150 students of Aunty Ayo Comprehensive Secondary School for girls.
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Processes Developed to Identity Innovative,
Sustainable Business Opportunities
As part of its review of a project’s expected social and
environmental impacts, Citi uses a system of social and
environmental categorisation in its evaluation of all projects,
based on the IFC’s environmental and social screening
criteria, to reflect the magnitude of impacts understood
as a result of assessment:

Electricity Consumption (Kwh in Thousand)

781
577

498

447

• CATEGORY A — use of proceeds are likely to have potential
significant adverse social or environmental impacts that
are diverse, irreversible or unprecedented.
• CATEGORY B — use of proceeds are likely to have potential
limited adverse social or environmental impacts that are
few in number, generally site-specific, largely reversible
and readily addressed through mitigation measures.
• CATEGORY C — use of proceeds expected to have minimal
or no social or environmental impacts.
The screening and categorisation criteria above are
supplemented by a focus on a number of broad, high-level
issues as framed by the IFC Performance Standards, including:

2012

2013

2014

2015

Diesel Consumption (Litres in Thousand)

1,018
992

1. Biodiversity protection and sustainable use
of natural resources.

910

2. Community health, safety and security.

896

3. Cultural heritage.
4. Indigenous peoples.
5. Labour and working conditions.
6. Land acquisition and involuntary resettlement.

2012

2013

2014

2015

7. Pollution prevention and abatement.
We have provided physical access to the physically challenged
members of the society in our head office and most of our
branches. We continue to manage our direct environmental
footprint by measuring our operational environmental
footprint — electricity use, fuel consumption, water use and
waste. To reduce carbon emissions, we encourage the use of
video and audio conference meetings rather than face-to-face
meetings that require travel.
Scope of Environmental and Social Risk Management Analysis
ESRM Covered Transactions under the Citi ESRM Standard
is any transaction or engagement described below that
is not also an Excluded Transaction. The ESRM Standard
covers a wide variety of transactions that must meet the
following criteria:
1. The Transaction must meet certain required thresholds.
2. Use of proceeds are known and/or identified by the customer
(in particular when the proceeds will be used for a specific
asset, investment or business, particularly those related
to physical facilities or equipment for industrial, natural
resource extraction, or infrastructure investments).
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Treasury and Trade Solutions

Notwithstanding the political and regulatory concerns that
existed in the operating environment in 2015, our in-depth
knowledge and understanding of the business environment,
together with the connectivity of our global network,
enabled Citi Nigeria to deliver best-in-class working capital
solutions to our clients. Citi Nigeria proactively engaged key
stakeholders to ensure that Citi Nigeria remained relevant
to its target markets, and deployed its highly differentiated
electronic banking platform to provide efficiency and
productivity benefits to clients.

Segun Adaramola
Head of Treasury and Trade Solutions

TTS maintained its position as a
leading provider of best-in-class,
customised solutions, enabling
clients to navigate the challenging
2015 business environment.
Owing to lower export earnings
and waning foreign portfolio
investment appetite, the Central
Bank of Nigeria (CBN) was unable
to meet the FX requirement for
importers. The uncertainties
regarding continued availability
of FX coupled with concerns for
further devaluation of the naira
resulted in importers opting for
upfront purchase of FX to mitigate
risks associated with imports.
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Cash Management
The cash management environment in 2015 was defined by
the impact of changing regulations and directives driven
by the CBN and aimed at strengthening and enhancing the
risk management framework for the payments system. The
changes in cash-reserve requirements and the aggressive
push to bring the implementation of the Treasury Single
Account (TSA) to closure had significant impact on market
liquidity and, by extension, interest rates and yields on
money market instruments.
There was significant effort and collaboration within the global
Citi network to ensure that clients had and continue to have
access to the infrastructure for Bank Verification Number (BVN)
registration in a convenient manner in different geographies.
Citi® Liquidity Management Services enabled clients to
perform their liquidity and balance-sheet management
activities efficiently and this was supported by an unparalleled
proprietary global platform. With the most extensive in-country
liquidity management services, yield optimisation solutions
and on-the-ground expertise, Citi Nigeria is well positioned to
continue its partnership with treasurers to help maximise the
power of their balance sheets and drive their profitability.
Citi Nigeria will continue to provide its clients with access
to all payment channels from a single front-end through the
award-winning e-banking platform, CitiDirect®, alongside its
mobile version, CitiDirect BE Mobile®. The goal is to draw on
the strength of Citi Nigeria’s infrastructure and network to
evolve innovative solutions to meet the growing needs of its
clients for best-in-class cash management solutions.
Trade Products
The decline in crude-oil prices and the fall in foreign currency
reserves resulted in shortage of FX, which led to importers
facing delays in meeting their foreign currency obligations.
The CBN’s efforts at managing the demand for FX culminated
in the release of new regulations regarding FX. These covered
the exclusion of 41 import items from the FX market and
the restriction of lending in foreign currency to non-foreign
currency-generating entities. Uncertainties over naira
exchange rates led customers to migrate to local-currency
financing for their imports.

Citi Nigeria also increased its offering of distributor finance
and supplier finance products to support its clients in the
fast-moving-consumer-goods (FMCG) sector, as manufacturers
sought to offer longer payment terms to suppliers. Citi Nigeria’s
injection of cutting-edge technology to its trade finance product
suite brought efficiency and reduced cost to clients
In 2016, Citi Nigeria will continue to focus on the digitization
of trade processing via the deployment of our proprietary
customer front end platform, CitiDirect, for Trade and
CitiConnect, for Supplier Finance, providing end-to-end
automation that will help clients make productivity and
efficiency gains.
Sales Solution
The macroeconomic realities of 2015 compelled many
organisations to introduce cost-saving measures in
key areas of operations, including treasury, finance,
production, etc. Citi Nigeria utilised its sector-centric
approach to client engagement to deliver working
capital solutions to key sectors, such as consumer
and healthcare, energy and industrials

Electronic Banking and Implementations
In 2015, Citi Nigeria’s Electronic Banking and Implementations
team remained focused on the streamlined delivery of TTS
solutions to its clients. Citi Nigeria continues to take a project
management approach that works in partnership with its
clients. Priority clients were on-boarded during the year with
optimal solutions delivered to meet their requirements.
Our clients utilised our e-banking platform for processing
cash and trade transactions, enjoying robust integration
with their enterprise resource planning (ERP) systems.
CitiDirect®, for Cash was further enhanced for highervolume payments processing, through its mass payment
feature. In 2016, we will expand the adoption of our
e-banking platforms for clients, delivering greater
efficiency to their businesses.

Citi Nigeria participated as gold sponsors in the West Africa
EuroFinance Conference in Nigeria, where Citi Nigeria
shared its insights and some of its value added solutions
to companies looking to meet their operational needs.
Clients commended the sector-specific, thought leadership
and regular roundtable meetings that were held wherein
Citi Nigeria discussed innovation and presented global
perspectives on various business issues of strategic interest.

Citi Visa Cards Commercial Forum.

Citi was a Gold sponsor at EuroFinance’s Treasury, Risk and Cash
Management focused event in West Africa. The overall theme for the
conference was “Strategies for Growth in a Volatile Market.” The conference
had a strong focus on risk management and the tools and strategies
companies can adopt to help mitigate credit, FX and operational risks.
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Corporate and Investment
Banking
Competitive pressures remain intense with the scaling-up
of regional banks like Rand Merchant Bank (RMB) and BNP
Paribas, the continued local presence by global banks like
Standard Chartered and JPMorgan and the recent interest
from the National Bank of Abu Dhabi. Barclays Bank, however,
recently announced a sale of its stake in its African operations.
Within this backdrop, Citi Nigeria’s CIB team has remained
focused and consistent in delivering best-in-class product
solutions and services to meet the needs of its clients.
Citi Nigeria remains committed to assisting its clients to
successfully navigate market volatility, driven by the challenging
backdrop of persistently low crude prices, by providing the
necessary risk management advice and solutions, and Citi
Nigeria remains confident both of the country’s long-term
economic prospects and of its rapidly growing client base.

Mudassir Amray
Head of Corporate and Investment Bank

CIB’s key business objective
remains to be the strategic adviser
of choice to its valued clients by
providing differentiated industry
advice and expertise. Citi Nigeria
offers a broad range of products
including corporate finance,
investment banking, transaction
services (cash management, trade
products and custody services),
treasury services (fixed income,
currencies and commodities) and
structured solutions to meet the
needs of its clients.

2015 Overview
The persistent reduction in global oil prices through 2015 drove
growth in the US and the UK, evidenced by a strengthening of
both countries’ currencies in the global markets, and their GDP
growth rates approaching 3% levels — unprecedented since
2010. Absolute growth remains strong in China, and key policy
concerns in these countries range from determining how best
to unwind quantitative easing programmes in the US and the
UK to ensuring that the economy does not overheat due to
lenient lending standards in China.
The Nigerian economy recorded a growth of 2.84% in the
third quarter, buoyed by a muted growth oil sector (1.06%
from a 6.80% contraction in the previous quarter), and
3.05% growth in the non-oil sector, comprising growth in
services (3.97%), information and communication (5.27%),
internal trade (4.4%), real estate (2.06%), finance and
insurance (6.57%), and agriculture (3.46%). Following the
marked decrease in global oil prices due to a supply glut,
the naira came under significant pressure, which continues
to mount, in part because of the underperformance of
Nigeria’s oil sector and concern over the slow progress
of the government in outlining its economic policy objectives,
and also because of external factors, including volatile oil
prices and the tightening of US monetary policy.
Although the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) has put in place
currency restrictions to try to shore up the value of the
naira, analysts expect it to give in to market pressure and
sanction a devaluation of the official exchange rate in early
2016. The markets witnessed a depreciation of over 30% to
NGN270/USD1 in the parallel markets in December owing
to a dearth of supply. The MPR, which was 13% for most of
2014, was reduced by 200 bps to 11%, while the cash reserve
ratio on private and public sector deposits were harmonised
at 31%, cut to 25% and then cut further to 20%, raising
liquidity and crashing local lending rates. Gross external
reserves stood at USD29.1 billion by December 2015, down
between USD34.8 and USD42.8 billion in prior years, a
decrease attributed primarily to an increase in funding of
the FX market to stabilise the currency. A supplementary
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budget was announced in late 2015, following the handover
to the elected government in May. The security situation was
contained following the elections, and several analysts expect
a persistence of the Boko Haram threat in the north and
militancy in the Niger Delta regardless of the emerged victor.
Citi Nigeria has continued to maintain close dialogue with our
clients providing creative solutions to their businesses while
financing needs in conjunction with our product partners.
We also drew on the strength of our wide global network
to support Nigerian corporates as they expanded their
businesses in the region and other locations.
2016 Outlook
According to the IMF, in spite of setbacks, the global economy
is expected to continue to demonstrate reduced growth of
3.4% in 2016, while the UNDESA estimate is at 2.9%. Citi
economists forecast a modest global GDP growth of 2.7%
in 2016, with China demonstrating muted growth, which
has slowed from prior years. Developed economies are
expected to grow to above 2% in 2016, the first time since
2010. Despite the slowdown in China, east and south Asia will
remain the world’s fastest-growing regions. Citi economists
also expect that Chinese real GDP growth will slow to 4-5% in
2016, with the underlying momentum expected to be softer.

The Nigerian economy is expected to witness a growth of about
3.3% in 2016 (revised downwards from earlier estimates of
around 5.5%) with promising prospects from the non-oil sector,
which remains relatively buoyant (particularly in agricultural
production and infrastructure development), and from services
including trade and telecommunications, which has benefitted
from smartphone take-up and increased subscriber growth.
Crude oil prices are expected to remain low in 2016, owing to
the fall to sub-USD30 levels, unprecedented in several decades.
Currency devaluation, as well as efforts by the government to
rein in the subsidy bill, are expected to combine with increasing
global food prices to push up inflation in 2016.
With the advent of a new economic team, there is an
expectation of clear policy direction on the FX policy, fiscal
policy, the regulatory environment and structural reforms.
We continue to see investments in key segments including
financial institutions driving on-lending to the real sector,
infrastructure projects, telecoms and telecoms infrastructure,
and fast-moving consumer goods. Improvements in electricity
supply after the NIPP/PHCN privatisation programme are
expected to support growth in several sectors across the
economy. However, it will take several years to bring power
infrastructure to international standards.

Emerging markets prospects in 2016 are expected to
be challenging, governed by China’s slowdown and its
consequences, the impact of falling commodity prices and the
commencement of US monetary tightening. Unemployment is
also on the rise, especially in South Africa and South America,
labour force participation rates have also declined in parallel
and a shift from salaried work to self-employment is evident.
Returns from and flows into emerging markets remained
positive in 2015, in spite of a wide set of challenges.

Citi Nigeria continues to collaborate with its product partners
across electronic banking, cash, liability management,
mergers and acquisitions, trade, and treasury, and the
objective remains that: Citi Nigeria remains a trusted adviser
to its clients, is the first port of call and ensures it delivers
the best possible products and services to its clients in a
seamless manner. In this regard, the team has continued to
surpass expectations. Citi Nigeria remain committed to the
continuous growth in the development of our talent, as this
remains the key differentiator for Citi globally.

Corporate Bank clients at a Citi client event.

Launch of Citigroup Global Markets Nigeria Limited (CGMNL)
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Global Subsidiaries Group

FX was a core discussion point with clients throughout
the year. Citi drew on the strength of its unique foreign
investor footprint to play a pivotal FX supply role,
providing a lifeline to its key client base. Foreign direct
investors continued to rely on Citi Nigeria to guide
them through the regulatory landscape, ensure strict
compliance with prevailing banking rules and avoid future
sanctions. During the year, Citi Nigeria’s advisory role was
crucial in an unprecedented capital investment by a major
client, the largest of its kind. Its client’s parent company
was particularly keen not to flout any of the rapidly
changing rules and Citi Nigeria’s intense engagement
on the various issues gave its client comfort. Overall,
Citi Nigeria retained its position as a key recipient of
foreign flows, from both new and existing players, leading
to some unique market positioning. Investment flows,
however, tightened considerably towards the end of the
year, given concerns over the prevailing FX environment.
Nneka Enwereji
Executive Director and Head of Global Subsidiaries Group

As an election year, 2015
presented business uncertainties,
further worsened by a six-week
election postponement. Market
operators heaved a sigh of
relief, however, in the aftermath
of a successful transition. The
imperatives for a definitive FX
policy, however, gained ground
among key players, more so as
pent-up FX demand burgeoned at
the counters of most banks. By the
end of the third quarter, Nigeria’s
exclusion from the J.P. Morgan
Emerging Markets Bond Index
constituted a further drag on
available FX, exacerbating clients’
business concerns.

During the year, Citi Nigeria consolidated its leadership
position of key client segments in Nigeria and enhanced
its wallet share. Citi Nigeria acquired several key clients,
as its undisputed versatility in a challenged market
environment attracted hordes of companies. Key fastmoving consumer-goods (FMCG) clients relied on Citi
Nigeria to provide FX support to their critical raw
material suppliers, which boosted Citi Nigeria’s ongoing
supply chain partnership initiative. A number of clients
affected by the items barred from FX, albeit to varying
degrees, had to reassess their operating models. In most
cases, parent companies rallied tremendous capital
support for their subsidiaries to remain in business,
which underscored their long-term country commitment.
However, challenges remained in regulatory approval lead
times, which inevitably slowed down clients’ operations.

Participants at the Citi Aviation Forum.

16

Citi Nigeria worked closely with affected clients and
regulators to address these obstacles.
The credit environment weakened considerably on
account of the prevailing stress factors, underpinned by
weaker consumer purchasing power and FX constraints.
The industry winners and strong survivors showed
more resilience and promptly readjusted their cost
structures, deploying more nimble survival strategies,
while marginal players tapered off. Citi Nigeria enhanced
credit structures where necessary, for the more financially
vulnerable. Overall, Citi Nigeria continued to lay emphasis
on a pristine credit environment and strict monitoring to
preserve stakeholder value. Most clients opted for localcurrency funding solutions to mitigate exchange-rate
concerns, and Citi Nigeria continued to provide optimal
loan structures. The optimisation of working capital
remained a key imperative for clients, and Citi Nigeria
continued to deploy its unique liquidity management
solutions. Citi Nigeria won some key client mandates,
notably a full-scale banking services mandate for a leading
FMCG company, drawing on its extensive solution suite.
Citi Nigeria continues to enjoy an excellent collaboration
with its product teams to ensure a successful origination
and seamless execution of these mandates.
Citi Nigeria remains at the forefront of providing thought
leadership and content in key market segments. It held its
annual aviation industry forum targeted at key industry
players and regulators, and the successful outcome
further endorsed Citi Nigeria’s industry dominance.
Citi Nigeria’s perspectives on evolving and future
smart solutions resonated with participants, with a key
stakeholder describing Citi Nigeria as ”the aviation
services bank in Nigeria”.

Panel Discussion during the Citi Aviation Forum. The theme was
“Leveraging Global Banking Trends for Smart Aviation”.

2016 Outlook
The FX situation will remain central to client discussions
in 2016 until a lasting policy solution is deployed. FX
supply will expectedly remain impeded by the low oilprice environment, with a price rebound being the game
changer, albeit unsupported by forecasts. The next best
course would be an FX policy that stimulates foreign
capital investment, easing the pressure on foreigncurrency reserves and reducing current foreign-currency
liquidity pressures. A timely resolution is important to
avert raw material gaps in the real and other critical
sectors of the economy. There are meaningful discussions
by clients on backward integration, especially for
restricted import items, and these will require some
medium-term policy certainty. Overall, ongoing client
dialogue confirms that investment interest in Nigeria has
by no means waned for new and existing players, barring
current market challenges. As strategic banking partners
to such client groups, Citi Nigeria will continue to play an
invaluable role in connecting the dots.
In 2016, Citi Nigeria expects further margin erosion, as
companies grapple with the rising costs of doing business.
On the other hand, weakening consumer purchasing
power will lead to a stiff price resistance. The proposed
expansionary budget of the federal government should be an
enabler to key market operators, if properly implemented.

Marc Merlino, Citi Global Head of Global Subsidiaries Group (GSG),
during the Citi Aviation Forum.
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Markets

In a period of low oil prices, the election postponement
resulted in the perception of heightened political risk by
investors in Nigerian securities and marked the beginning of
a turbulent year for Nigeria’s financial markets. The elections
held in March were judged free and fair by both local and
international observers, and for the first time in the nation’s
history, an incumbent party lost. The election marked a
milestone in the budding democracy of the most populous
and largest economy in Africa.

Bayo Adeyemo
Country Treasurer and Head of Markets

With an upcoming election and
declining oil prices, 2015 was bound
to be a challenging year, even
before it started. Like previous
elections in the country, the level of
anxiety from the citizenry was high.
This coupled with the continued
Boko Haram insurgency in the
north-east led to a postponement of
the elections.

Nigeria was set for a hard landing from the word go as falling
oil prices placed pressure on the local currency, the naira.
At the onset of the oil-price decline, there were echoes of
“we have been there before”. However, unlike in 2009, when
the Nigerian government and the Central Bank of Nigeria
(CBN) had built a healthy reserve buffer for rainy days, the
nation’s increasing appetite for foreign goods meant that
the level of reserves needed to weather the storm was much
higher. External reserve was at USD34.47 billion at the start
of the year, representing 6 months of import cover. The local
currency remained under pressure at the interbank market
in the run-up to the election. After reaching an all-time high
of NGN206/USD1 in February 2015, the CBN introduced
administrative measures to curb the demand for the dollar.
These measures have led to a large reduction in activity and
trading volumes at the interbank market.
The lack of dollar liquidity owing to the modification of
trading guidelines on the interbank market by the regulator
in December 2014 led to J.P. Morgan’s index team putting
Nigeria on a watch list to potentially remove the country
from its influential Government Bond Index Emerging
Markets in January 2015. A successful conclusion to
the general elections and optimism about the incoming
government led to an extension of the watch tenure to
year-end 2015. However, many foreign investors continued
to face challenges replicating the index due to the FX
restrictions and lack of liquidity. This culminated in Nigeria’s
phased removal from the index over a two-month period.
The federal government introduced the Treasury Single
Account (TSA) as a way to consolidate all commercial
bank deposits arising from ministries, departments and
agencies (MDAs) in the country into a single account
at the apex bank. The policy was established to reduce
the proliferation of bank accounts operated by MDAs
and also to promote financial accountability among all
organs of the government. Initial inefficiencies in the
TSA implementation led to excess liquidity in the money
markets and then to a prolonged period of extremely low
money market rates. A total of NGN2.2 trillion is estimated
to have moved from the commercial banks to the CBN as a
result of the TSA implementation.
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Economic growth in 2015 was lower than the government’s
initially projected growth rate of 5.5%, with growth rates
of 3.96%, 2.35% and 2.84% for the first, second and third
quarters, respectively. The low growth in the first quarter
can be attributed to the general election and the scarcity
of premium motor spirit that handicapped businesses,
while government transition and delays in articulating its
economic policies were contributing factors to the lower
growth in the second and third quarters.

The economic dislocations caused by the low oil price
and weaker naira remain our primary focal point for
the economy going forward. We anticipate difficult
decisions will be taken by both the monetary and the fiscal
authorities that will lead to economic growth and create
opportunities in this challenging market environment. Our
understanding of the economy, global and local, has made
us better positioned to continue to provide the right kind of
solutions and support for our esteemed client base.

The normalisation of interest rates in developed economies
was expected, creating panic across emerging market
economies. Nigeria’s interrelation with the global economy
and its trade links with major developed countries leave
the country exposed to exogenous shocks. A number of
measures were taken by the CBN in an attempt to mitigate
some of the major risks. Some of these measures included
the introduction of demand management to limit the high
volatility in the local currency, a 200 basis-point reduction
in policy rate to 11%, the harmonisation of the cash reserve
requirement of public and private sector deposits with
banks to 20% (from 75% and 20%, respectively) and an
asymmetric window created at the CBN discount window. We
anticipate the effects of these easing to feed through in 2016.
In spite of the challenging macroeconomic environment
and its adverse effect on markets, FICC continues to
set the standard when it comes to providing innovative
solutions to clients’ problems. The FICC team provided
solutions and helped its clients execute a series of large
one-off transactions. We have considerably grown our
client business over the financial year and aim to remain
the leading treasury team in the country.

Citi Client Reception.
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Securities Services

2015 Overview
The stage was set for 2015 to be a volatile and rather
challenging year for Nigeria. The uncertainty surrounding
the general elections in the country, coupled with the
continued insurgency in the north led to unprecedented
levels of anxiety, not just in the country, but also for
foreign portfolio investors, for whom these concerns
translated to a lower appetite for Nigerian risk, which
ultimately had a negative effect on performance at the
Nigerian capital market, showing a year-to-year drop in
the Nigerian Stock Exchange’s (NSE’s) All Share Index.

Kemi Adewole
Head of Securities Services

In spite of a turbulent 2015
year, beset with falling oil prices
affecting exports and exchange
earnings and compounded by
macroeconomic pressures like
the uncertainty in the leadup to the 2015 presidential
elections and the insecurity
in the north of the country,
Citi Nigeria has emerged the
stronger for it, ready to pursue a
more optimistic market outlook
conducive to improved stability,
stronger investor appetite and
increased growth in 2016.
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In 2015, falling oil prices put pressure on the naira at the
interbank FX market and the FX intervention window at
the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN). The CBN subsequently
implemented several policy changes during the course
of the year, including FX rate changes and a prefunding
requirement to access the FX window at the CBN, among
other changes. These led to even more uncertainty in the
process for the repatriation of proceeds of investments,
resulting in reduced levels of foreign portfolio investor
activity, which continued to face challenges owing to FX
restrictions and lack of liquidity. The CBN’s currencycontrol policies were among the reasons why Nigeria was
removed from the J.P. Morgan Government Bond Index
Emerging Markets at the end of October 2015.
The challenging operating environment continued for
most of the year. As Nigeria became a less attractive
investment destination and with its added currency
risk uncertainties, foreign investors steadily withdrew
from the Nigerian capital market. A modest, and steady,
increase in the activities of domestic clients was,
however, recorded during 2015. New client mandates were
won during the year, and incremental deals were also won
from some existing clients, all leading to a steady growth
in assets under custody.

In a bid to strengthen Citi Nigeria’s risk management
framework, the team worked very closely with the
NSE and the Central Securities Clearing System PLC
to implement a procedure to manage the uncapped
risk for custodians relating to on-exchange trade. This
procedure was successfully implemented and has been
fully operational since the fourth quarter of 2015. The
securities services team continued to draw on the
strength of Citi’s global capabilities and local expertise
to drive efficiencies in Citi Nigeria for consistent quality
service delivery.
2016 Outlook
We remain cautiously optimistic about 2016, and the
team will continue to put Citi’s global footprint to work,
working closely with market operators and regulators, to
carry out planned reforms in the Nigerian capital market.
Citi Nigeria will continue to drive process automation
and straight-through transaction process enhancements
while also strengthening our risk management framework
and procedures. The factors that will affect market
performance are exchange-rate stability, security
and crude oil prices. The elimination of some of these
uncertainties may lead to stability in the market, which
should result in foreign portfolio investors acquiring a
better appetite for Nigerian risk.

Annual Association of Asset Custodians Investors Day 2015.
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Operations and Technology

Every member of the team works with a common purpose,
which means collaborating as a team to achieve best results
for Citi Nigeria and its clients. O&T collaborates with various
business partners, providing value-added support to all
stakeholders internally, drawing on the strength of Citi’s
global reach to understand its client needs and deliver highquality products and solutions in a secure, efficient manner
using world-class infrastructure and systems.
Citi Nigeria exploited the opportunities and challenges of 2015
to refresh and upgrade its processes and technology platforms
(as required), positioning Citi Nigeria for greater efficiency and
business growth. Citi Nigeria developed its O&T team through
available training programmes and job rotations. Citi Nigeria’s
strong control framework, incisive expense management
functions and robust risk management tools demonstrates its
effectiveness. The key achievements in 2015 are categorised
under the following themes below: clients, people, technology,
risk and controls, and cost management.
Ngozi Omoke-Enyi
Head of Operations and Technology

O&T is the bedrock of the bank and
provides the core channels through
which services are delivered to our
clients. Our service delivery ethos
is anchored on Citi Nigeria’s overall
value proposition — a mission of
growth enablement and progress
for clients. As a support group, O&T
take pride in the competence and
professionalism of the team, skilful
ethical standards, training in risk
appreciation with balanced controls
and ability to act as trusted partners
to Citi Nigeria’s clients by delivering
superior services.

Clients
Citi Nigeria is constantly looking for ways to enhance the
service experience of its clients because creating a remarkable
experience at every touchpoint is one of Citi Nigeria’s core values.
Employees at all levels take pride in what they do and strive to
meet Citi Nigeria’s service promise and commitment to its clients.
During the year, Citi Nigeria implemented the Trade Services
Professional (TSP) role with dedicated resources to act as a
single point of contact for the resolution of the growing needs
of all our international trade clients. To energise passion
and enhance skills of Citi Nigeria employees the “Make It
Remarkable” service initiative was launched. The goal of the
initiative is to ensure consistent best-in-class service delivery.
The annual Client Experience Week was also very successful.
To consciously gauge client satisfaction with our products
and services, Citi Nigeria carried out service pulse checks
and Voice of the Customer surveys. The feedback obtained
from these activities was deployed to further enhance service
quality offerings. Overall, Citi Nigeria client satisfaction
index improved. KPMG also rated Citi Nigeria as “The Most
Customer-Focused Bank” in the corporate bank segment in
their 2015 Banking Industry Customer Satisfaction Survey.
People
Citi Nigeria continues to create an enabling environment built
on trust, respect and strong values, where employees are:
• Encouraged to be innovative and embrace change
(leadership/integrity).
• Willing to hear different points of view (diversity).
• Allowed to speak up and are valued for their honesty (values).
• Requested to put clients first (client focus).
• Trained to take risks and make decisions (productivity).
• Supported in various development initiatives aimed at
realising their full potential (meritocracy).
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Citi Nigeria employees are individually and collectively
committed to these values, which shape and influence our
actions and the decisions made on a daily basis.
Technology
Citi Nigeria continues to invest in its infrastructure in order
to sustain its competitive edge in the financial services
sector, meet regulatory requirements and take advantage of
transformational trends in the global banking space. In 2015,
Citi Nigeria implemented the following technology initiatives:
• Deployed new and higher capacity servers to run banking
applications, ensuring that the Citi Nigeria technology
hardware is up-to-date and capable of sustaining banking
operations into the future.
• Overhauled its voice-calling and -recording platforms.
• Upgraded to Nigeria Instant Payments system, integrated
with the Nigeria Automated Payment System (NAPS), and
implemented Remita for Treasury Single Account (TSA)
payments, regulatory initiatives to keep pace with reforms
in the Nigerian payment system space. Rolled out a mobile
Bank Verification Number (BVN) solution that facilitated BVN
registrations at client premises and overseas.
• Carried out an electrical upgrade of Citi Nigeria head office
to enhance power supply to the building and eliminate
negative service impact of disruptive power outages to
business-critical technology systems and the trading floor.
• Installed LED lights and occupancy sensors to reduce energy
consumption and promote environmentally responsible and
resource-efficient operations.
Risk and Control
Appropriate controls help to maintain and sustain a culture
of responsible finance, safeguard our assets, validate the
accuracy and reliability of accounting data, and promote
operational efficiency in general.

Peter McCarthy EMEA CAO speaking at the Make it Remarkable
training session.

The effectiveness of the controls instituted are monitored
and measured continuously through various parameters
including key risk indicators review, internal and regulatory
audits and management control assessment reviews.
During the year, a total of 7 audits and 12 branch examinations
were conducted to validate the effectiveness of these controls,
and no major issues were noted. Separately, O&T led the bank
to ISO 27001 certification. By attaining this certification (an
international standard), Citi Nigeria not only satisfied the
regulatory requirement but proved its ability to effectively
meet its own information security requirements as an
organisation. This gives confidence to interested parties that
information security risks are adequately managed at Citi.
Cost Management
Citi Nigeria maintains a robust cost management structure
that enables it to plan and effectively control our budget.
In 2015, expenses were kept within plan and recorded saves
through several expense optimisation initiatives including:
the renegotiation of link service charges and the effective
management of telephone expenses; prudent procurementprocess and other overhead management; process reengineering; and premises management with green initiatives
leading to power consumption saves and the outsourcing of
our archiving facility to Metrofile.
2016 Outlook
As the Nigerian and global economy faces tough and formidable
headwinds in 2016, Citi Nigeria will continue to consolidate its
key strengths — a global network, pristine control environment,
standardised processes and talented and skilled workforce — to
maintain its competitive edge. Citi Nigeria has built momentum in
providing technology solutions, which puts it on the right path for
actualising its automation and innovation roadmap. Citi Nigeria is
well positioned to continue to provide operations and technology
advantage to its business partners and value to its clients.

Operations and Technology team-building activity.
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Independent Risk Management

Chinedu Ikwudinma
Executive Director and Country Risk Manager

The 2015 year was one of
contrasts for Nigeria. Politically,
it heralded several important
milestones that reinforced the
maturity of the democratic
process in Nigeria, including
the relatively peaceful conduct
of the national and state
elections. For the first time in
Nigeria’s history, an incumbent
president was beaten at the
polls, and, more significantly,
the new president was able to
assume office without significant
disturbances or disruptions.
These developments had a
positive effect on the country
risk profile of Nigeria, and led to
general post-election optimism
for the economy, despite falling
oil prices and other economic
challenges.

However, the decline in oil prices has continued to impact
negatively on the Nigerian government’s finances, with
knock-on effects in key sectors of the economy, including
oil and gas, manufacturing, trading, construction and
infrastructural development activities. Faced with falling
reserves, the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) deployed
various regulations and monetary policy initiatives to
limit demand for foreign exchange (FX), and reduce the
rate of depletion of foreign reserves as a result. These
measures have included a restriction of the access to
official sources of FX for certain products, including
rice, cold rolled steel, and several food products,
among others. Scarcity of FX has led to a reduction of
international trade transactions. As a result of these
initiatives, corporations and individuals have faced
increased difficulty in sourcing foreign currency for
imports or remittances, and this, in combination with
a general economic slowdown in the country, has led
to weaker corporate performance for most of these
companies. The reduced government spending caused by
falling oil prices has also had a direct impact on consumer
purchasing power, which has been further limited by
current market conditions. Fast moving consumer goods
(FMCGs) companies generally experienced a fall in their
revenues and profitability, as they struggled to pass
on incremental costs to their consumers, in the face of
intense competition.
The financial system has also witnessed increased strain
in the course of the year, with banks reporting higher
non-performing loan ratios and higher loan loss reserves,
especially with respect to transactions in the oil and
gas, power, construction and general trading economic

Chinedu Ikwudinma and Omar Hafeez, former MD and CEO of Citi Nigeria.
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sectors. Citi Nigeria expects the level of non-performing
loans in the banking system to be significantly higher
than the average of 3.2% recorded in 2014. Citi Nigeria
expects this impact to be greater for banks, which had
focused on transactions in the oil and gas, power and
construction sectors. Higher loan delinquency and loss
provisions will put pressure on the profitability of the
banks and, where losses arise, on the capital adequacy
ratios, depending on the categorisation of the institution
(national, international or systemically important).
Going into 2016, Citi Nigeria expects the strains in terms
of national macroeconomic performance to persist, as
growth slows compared to prior periods and government
finances come under continuing pressure due to the
decline in oil prices. Oil prices, which fell as low as
USD28 in January 2016, are expected to come under
further pressure as Iran returns from years of sanctions,
potentially aggravating the glut of supply currently
depressing prices. Some forecasts have put Iran’s
near-term capacity for incremental oil supply at about
500,000 barrels per day, adding to a glut which has been
variously estimated to be 2 million to 3 million barrels
per day. Price forecasts for oil in 2016 have been as low
as USD20. Given that the budget benchmark for the
government of Nigeria is USD38 per barrel, such a steep
decline will have consequences for the fiscal balance,
and may trigger increased borrowings by the central
government, with knock on effects on foreign exchange
reserves, FX availability and policy.

organization through the employment of top talent,
international and cross-regional exposure for our
personnel, automation and technology, policy
enhancements and a very robust Management Control
Assessment (MCA) process.
Citi Nigeria expects its most important clients to
successfully navigate the current challenges and emerge
stronger. Many sectors will see a consolidation, which will
be to the advantage of the typically large well-resourced
clients at the core of its portfolio. The policies of the
current government, with its focus on infrastructural
development and job creation should also help to fuel a
recovery in the near term.
Citi Nigeria continues to maintain a very solid and
collaborative relationship with regulators, especially the
Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) and the Nigerian Deposit
Insurance Corporation (NDIC). Citi Nigeria underwent
several regulatory audits in the course of 2015, which
were all rated satisfactory. This is remarkable in the
current market and regulatory environment. Citi Nigeria
intends to maintain this profile, and continue to focus on
the bank’s core principles of responsible finance, high
ethical standards and anticipatory risk management.

These market conditions have accentuated the risk of the
operating environment of the bank. Citi Nigeria has not
been insulated from these developments, and Citi Nigeria
have seen some deterioration in the business operations
of some of its clients, which Citi Nigeria have responded
to decisively, to support the customers while ensuring
active remedial management to protect the interests
of depositors and shareholders. Citi Nigeria portfolio
remains stable, well diversified, and largely short term.
This gives the bank greater flexibility in navigating the
current market conditions, hence further mitigating the
portfolio risk. Citi Nigeria continues to generate very
strong, high quality earnings as a result. Continuing
vigilance is necessary, as success has been anchored on
a robust, broad-based early warning regime, starting at
the relationship management level; reinforced by regular
environmental scans, portfolio reviews and stress testing.
While the country risk profile has become accentuated,
Citi Nigeria believes opportunities continue to exist
for institutions with the appropriate talent, skills and
experience to navigate the changed circumstances. Citi
Nigeria continues to strengthen its risk management
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Human Resources

Staffing
Some employees were selected for more senior roles across
other Citi businesses, which provided opportunities internally
for employees to transition into leadership roles with broader
responsibilities. This also provided us an opportunity to
enhance our diversity by bringing in fresh and suitably
qualified talent from outside the organisation, which further
strengthened our market dominance.The attrition rate in
2015 was maintained low, and we will continue to use our
strong brand name in resourcing.

Gboyega Oloyede
Country Human Resources Officer

Economic and strict regulatory
reforms were some of the key
constraints that affected the
banking industry in 2015. Citi
Nigeria continued to draw on
the strength of its high-quality
talents in exploiting identified
opportunities and increasing
revenue and overall profitability
as a franchise.

Development
In the course of the year, Citi Nigeria continued to explore
various opportunities for professional and personal
development for employees. Our employees participated
in both external and internal training programmes focused
on functional, leadership and regulatory training, among
others. Five employees participated in the Africa Leadership
Development Programme, while 14 participated in short-term
assignments in various units and other Citi locations. These
programmes and initiatives continue to provide employees
visibility and enhance their capabilities. Employees will
continually be provided developmental opportunities that
ensure that they will be adequately engaged and motivated to
sustain our position as a talent-driven organisation and that we
continue to harbour the best talents within the banking industry.
Careers
Employees were continually provided developmental
opportunities in line with their career aspirations and
organisational goals. Twenty-five employees transferred to
new departments in Citi Nigeria with higher responsibilities,
while 2 employees transferred out to other Citi locations.
Our employees all get an equal opportunity to compete

Citi Women participants at the 2015 International Women’s Day Forum.
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for open positions. We continue to participate in the Africa
Management Associate Programme with four Nigerian
candidates successfully selected for the 2015 programme. So
far, they have attended training programmes in South Africa
and are currently undergoing various rotations in-country.

event with several activities throughout the week which included
a diversity competition, a men’s forum, “Bring Your Child to
Work” day, and a “Know Your Leaders” and diversity cocktail
event. Abuja, Warri and Port Harcourt branches replicated some
of these activities while other branches dialed in.

The Citi Internship Programme is an initiative designed to create
awareness of Citi as an employer of choice among future talents
and an opportunity for them to experience working in Citi and
learning more about our businesses. In it, we continually partner
with leading organisations — for example, The British Council,
The American Consulate, The University of Lagos, Obafemi
Awolowo University, Bowen University and Covenant University,
among others — to tap into a pool of suitable candidates. A
total of 22 students participated in the sixth session of the Citi
Internship Programme in 2015, working in various business
functions across the bank.

Speakers at the Lagos event included Niyi Yusuf (country MD of
Accenture in Nigeria), Taiwo Okunoren (creative director and cofounder of Okunoren Twins label, an indigenous bespoke luxury
clothing outfit), Seyi Abolaji (co-founder of Wilson’s Lemonade,
an indigenous beverage company), Chude Jideonwo (MD/CEO
of Red Media) and Kayla Oniwo (a radio presenter at Cool FM).
They all shared with employees secrets of their success and the
role that inclusion played. There was also a musical performance
by the upcoming Aramide, while upcoming comedian MC Prince
was not left out in the spirit of inclusion.

Diversity
2015 International Women’s Day (IWD) Celebration
On 9 March 2015, Citi Nigeria joined other Citi locations
around the world to celebrate this year’s IWD with a talk
show. IWD is a day set aside globally to recognise and
celebrate the economic, political and social achievements of
women. The event theme was “Connecting Women, Inspiring
Change and Making Progress”, with a focus on female leaders
who have distinguished themselves in various fields cutting
across generations. Some of the topics discussed included:
married or single: culture perspective; body grooming;
financial independence; leadership; and mentoring.
The chief operating officer, Akin Dawodu, welcomed all
participants and applauded the immense contributions of
women to the economic, political and social wellbeing of the
global economy. The welcome speech was followed by a musical
performance by Aramide (an upcoming female Nigerian artist)
titled “Eledumare Lo Mo Ola” (meaning “only God knows
tomorrow”) and “African Woman”. Thereafter, a short film
entitled Shrink by Wana Udobang (alias Wana-wana), an artculture curator, poet, writer and broadcaster of Inspiration FM
radio station. This was followed by an interactive talk show
that featured Zainab Balogun, a broadcaster from Ebony
Life Television, Funke Bucknor-Obruthe, an entrepreneur of
Zapphaire events, Lola Maja-Okojevoh, a renowned makeup
artist, and Nneka Enwereji, Citi Nigeria’s female executive
director and head of the Global Subsidiaries Group. Kemi Lala
Akindoju, a Nigerian actress anchored the show. The talk show
was very interactive with a question-and-answer session. The
programme was very insightful and thought-provoking.
2015 Diversity Week Celebration
Citi Nigeria joined other Citi locations around the world to
celebrate 2015 Diversity Week from 18 to 22 May 2015. This is a
week set aside, across all Citi locations globally, to celebrate our
diversity and reinforce diversity as a strategy and core strength
of Citi to all employees. The theme for this year’s Diversity Week
was “Inclusive Leadership”. Citi Nigeria commemorated the

Diversity Week was very enlightening and employees became
more aware of its strength, which, if well harnessed in the ways we
relate, adapt and develop, will significantly enhance productivity
and profitability of Citi, particularly as an “invest-to-grow” entity.
Overall, it provided a platform for employee engagement.
Breast Cancer Awareness Day
October is the month set aside globally to create awareness
of breast-cancer prevention, care and treatment. On 30
October 2015, Citi Nigeria joined the world to celebrate this
year’s Breast Cancer Awareness Day.
Citi Nigeria employees observed the event which featured
voluntary breast screening and a seminar delivered by
medical professionals and subject matter experts. The theme
was “We Need to Know: Demystify the Myths”. Among the
topics covered on the day was the prevention of breast,
cervical and prostate cancers.
Speakers at event included Dr Yinka Olowojolu, an MD from
Q-Life Family Clinic, Dr Giwa, an MD from the Lagos University
Teaching Hospital (LUTH), and Mrs Ebun Anozie, a coordinator
of COPE (Care Organization Public Enlightenment), an NGO
that drives breast-cancer awareness and support.
Recognition and Rewards
Rewards and recognition of exceptional performance remains
one of our primary focuses. This is driven through the Citi’s
Awards Committee quarterly. Several awards were presented
in the course of the year to deserving employees and
teams. Acknowledging and celebrating of these exemplary
performances contributing to Citi’s success included
communicating details of all awards won to all employees.
Other HR Initiatives
The 2015 employee satisfaction index was at 55% according
to Citi’s Voice of Employee Survey. We will continue to
innovate and develop various ways of improving employee
engagement levels and satisfaction. Our commitment to
maintaining Citi Nigeria as an employer of choice remains
as strong as ever, which we look forward to building on.
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Employee of the Year

Innovative Approach to Cash Swaps: A Cost-Save Initiative
Swapping cash with other banks is not a new cash and tellers/
branches approach to reducing deposit (box) charges levied
by the CBN on cash deposits with them. Never before has
the frequency of cash deposits at CBN Lagos been reduced
to less than once a quarter in the face of exponential cash
volumes and nearly zero vaults limit breaches. Due to the CBN
relaxation of cash deposit charges and the increased number
of Teller Implants (including the opening of various Shoprite
Stores across Lagos and other collection points), cash volumes
moved from circa NGB2 billion in 2013 to circa NGN20 billion
in 2015. Having constant outlets for this cash was almost
impossible until Temisan came up with an idea to add value to
the cash-swap process. Normally other banks will:
1. Witness the counting before swaps to guarantee the
integrity of the cash they are collecting.
2. Transport the cash to their cash-processing centres.
Temisan Edukugho
Cash-In-Transit (CIT) Services Coordinator

Temisan Edukugho is the Cash-InTransit (CIT) Services coordinator
and a supervisor in the Cash
and Tellers Department of the
head office. He is an excellent
team player, who has taken up
additional functions, delivered
timely on ad hoc functions and
supported colleagues in carrying
out their functions effectively,
and supported the TTS Products
team on several projects in 2015
with which he formed an effective
partnership. In the course of
2015, he consistently drew on his
technical and coordinating skills
to make huge cost savings for the
bank while serving and satisfying
numerous customers. He made
significant contributions to
process improvements, especially
around CIT services and Teller
Implant operations.
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3. Sort the cash for ATM-fit notes.
4. Move ATM-fit notes to desired ATM locations and the
balances to their branches.
These processes were time-consuming, required many manhours and were costly. Banks only took cash from Citi when
it was “absolutely” necessary, and this did not guarantee a
constant outlet for Citi’s cash.
Temisan identified banks that needed a plentiful supply
of cash for their ATM terminals. He then initiated and
established relationships with some, namely UBA, Stanbic
IBTC, Sterling and Wema Bank. He promised to swap only
ATM-fit notes with them, eliminating steps 2) and 3) above.
After a few swaps and establishing a feedback process, step
1) was also eliminated with no claim on Citi for shortages till
date. This led to a daily request of over NGN400 million in
cash swaps from other banks (including banks told of the
quality and completeness of Citi’s cash), leading to an overdemand of Citi’s cash. Citi’s cash is now sought-after in the
industry due to no shortages and accuracy. In 2015, Cash and
Tellers swapped over NGN18.4 billion and the bank saved an
estimated NGN30 million (USD150 million) in CBN box charges
and around NGN3.8 million CIT saves during 2015. Details of
the saved costs include:
1. Huge box charges from cash lodgments at CBN
at around NGN12,000 per box of 10,000 notes.
2. Increased CIT and cash-handling costs at around
NGN38,000 per CBN movement.
3. Excessive vault holdings with incremental insurance
premium.
4. Increased idle cash in vault with resultant loss of
yield income if not converted to available balance
in our CBN account for trading purposes.
5. Cash-processing inefficiencies and increased
operational loses.

With the increase in the number of locations during the year,
our CIT costs were also expected to shoot up proportionately.
Temisan, along with other members of the team, performed a
very detailed analysis of all the routes and an optimal planning
exercise was performed to arrive at an efficient mix of using a
dedicated CIT team for about 60% of these movements.
Furthermore, following the prohibition of foreign currency
cash deposits into domiciliary accounts in Nigeria by the
CBN, sourcing of foreign currency (FCY) cash to service
the teeming cash-withdrawal requests from Citi Nigeria
domiciliary account holders became a challenge nationwide.
Citi Nigeria would have had to import FCY cash via Travelex
at an ample cost of 0.5% of the volume requested plus VAT,
as well as additional CIT costs to ship to the various branches.
Temisan and the C&T team were proactive in establishing
relationships with local banks that guaranteed the supply of
FCY cash at no cost, especially valuable in the challenging
FCY regime facing a dearth in FCY cash supply.
Process Improvement
Temisan contributed to several process-improvement
initiatives during the year, which helped to strengthen
our controls and improve processes, to the delight of our
numerous customers. He championed the revision and
implementation of our various operational procedures and
desk manuals. He took it upon himself to analyse all relevant
publications and regulatory circulars, and subsequently
incorporated new processes to existing procedures.
Three-way Reconciliation
In 2014, TTS Receivables audit gave the unit a comment on the
turnaround time, delays and escalation process for receiving
and calling back to FLEXCUBE daily sales and collection reports
for Teller Implants. Temisan took ownership of the three-way

Participating in Citi Diversity Week 2015.

reconciliation process for 21 Teller Implants in Lagos and 5 up
country. He ensured strict adherence to the escalation process;
proactive escalations to forestall delays; prompt resolutions
of issues; quick reconciliation turnaround times; on-time
submissions to Ops Control for daily implant reports tracking;
and independence in callback functions. Temisan’s painstaking
efforts to achieve the aforementioned lead to a successful TTS
Receivables audit of the three-way reconciliation process in 2015.
Process Improvements
After the decommissioning of the CitiDirect Cash Pick Up
product towards the end of 2014 and the closure of the book
transfer accounts used for this product, TTS Cash Management
replaced the product with PayLink and WorldLink cheques that
could be encashed by customers. The WorldLink cheques were
purchased and liquidated after encashment at no cost (except
the cash withdrawal fee of 0.5%) to the customer. However, the
approved cheque-purchase product code attracted an automatic
charge of 3%, which went unnoticed until discovered by Temisan
and escalated immediately. A refund of excess charges for the
qualifying transactions up until March 2015 was initiated and a
waiver of 2.5% was granted for future transactions. Processors had
to manually take the 0.5% charge by passing additional entries.
Temisan articulated a process to take these charges without having
to pass additional entries. This process improvement was added to
the Cash and Tellers and Branches Procedure in 2015.
Temisan’s guidance was instrumental in establishing the
accounting entries that suited the Teller Implant services rendered
at BAT Ibadan and the US Embassy Lagos in 2015, and made the
reconciliation of cash positions at the two locations easier.
Temisan was at the forefront of tests to actualise the tellerrestriction process on FLEXCUBE for Implant Tellers and also tests
to automate the collection of regulatory cash withdrawal charges.

HR and Human Resources Shared Services (HRSS) Team wearing
a touch of pink to commemorate Breast Cancer Week 2015.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2015
The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report on the affairs of Citibank Nigeria Limited and its subsidiary entity
(“the Group”) together with the financial statements and auditors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2015.
Legal form
The Bank was incorporated in Nigeria under the Companies and Allied Matter Act as a private limited liability company on 2
May 1984. It was granted a license on 14 September 1984 to carry on the business of commercial banking and commenced
business on 14 September 1984.
Principal activity and business review
The principal activity of the Group is the provision of commercial banking services to its customers. Such services include
transactional services, corporate finance, provision of finance, custodial business and money market and trading activities.
The Bank has a subsidiary, Nigeria International Bank Nominees Limited. The company is a nominee company that acts as
the registered holder of securities purchased for customers of the Bank’s custodial business.

Operating results
The net operating income and profit before tax of the Group reduced by 16.51% and 29.51% respectively over prior year. The
directors recommend the approval of a final dividend of N8,995,962,677.38 (N3.22k per share) (2014:N7,794,638,468.91
(N2.79k per share) from the outstanding balance in the retained earnings account as at 31 December 2015. The dividends are
subject to deduction of withholding tax of 10%.
Highlights of the Group’s operating results for the year under review are as follows:
2015

2014

N’000

N’000

Net operating Income

25,450,858

30,484,210

Profit before tax

12,882,237

18,275,341

Taxation

(2,367,360)

(2,817,787)

Profit for the year

10,514,877

15,457,554

4,280,739

(1,903,058)

14,795,616

13,554,496

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

2
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Directors’ shareholding
The following directors of the Bank held office during the year and had direct and indirect interests in the issued share capital
of the Bank as recorded in the register of directors’ shareholding and/or as notified by the directors for the purposes of
sections 275 and 276 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, as noted below:
Direct Shareholding

Director

Position

Date of appointment/
resignation in 2015

Number of
Ordinary
Shares held
in 2015

Number of
Ordinary
Shares
held in 2014

-

-

1 Mr. Olayemi Cardoso

Chairman

2 Mr. Omar Hafeez (Pakistani)

Managing Director

Resigned June 1 2015

-

-

3 Mr. Akinsowon Dawodu

Managing Director

Apponited June 1 2015

-

-

4 Mr. Fatai Karim

Executive Director

-

-

5 Mr. Tariq Masaud (Pakistani)

Executive Director

-

-

Resigned - June 30, 2015

6 Mrs. Funmi Ogunlesi

Executive Director

-

-

7 Mrs. Nneka Enwereji

Executive Director

-

-

8 Mr Chinedu Ikwudinma

Executive Director

9 Mr. Ade Ayeyemi

Non Executive Director

-

-

10 Mr. Michael Murray-Bruce

Non Executive Director

-

-

11 Dr. Hilary Onyiuke

Non Executive Director

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12

Mr Philip Cullingworth
(South African)

Non Executive Director

13 Chief Arthur Mbanefo CON

Independent Director

14 Prof. Yemi Osinbajo SAN

Independent Director

15 Mrs. Ireti Samuel-Ogbu

Non Executive Director

Appointed - June 25 2015,
CBN Approval September 8 2015
Resigned - June 5, 2015

Appointed October 15, 2014,
CBN Approval February 24 2015

Resigned April 2, 2015

Dr. Hilary Onyiuke has an indirect shareholding through Gauthier Investments Ltd which has a shareholding of 33,445,769 ordinary shares.
Mr. Olayemi Cardoso has an indirect shareholding through the Estate of F.B. Cardoso which has a shareholding of 30,196,109 ordinary shares.
Mr. Michael Murray-Bruce has an indirect shareholding through Manilla Properties Limited which has a shareholding of 6,490,360 ordinary
shares.
Since the last Annual General Meeting, Mr. Omar Hafeez, Tariq Masaud, Ade Adeyemi and Prof. Yemi Osinbajo (SAN)
resigned from the Board while Mr Chinedu Ikwudinma was appointed to the Board.
The directors to retire by rotation at the next Annual General Meeting (AGM) are Mr. Yemi Cardoso, Dr. Hilary Onyiuke, Mrs.
Ireti Samuel-Ogbu, and Mr. Phillip Cullingworth
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Property and equipment
Information relating to changes in property and equipment is given in Note 25 of the financial statements.
Shareholding analysis
The shareholding pattern of the Bank as at 31 December 2015 is as stated below:
Share Range

No of Shareholders

Percentage of
Shareholders
(%)

No. of
Holdings

Percentage
Holdings

500,001 – 1,000,000

1

4%

950,011

0%

1,000,001 – 5,000,000

-

-

-

0%

5,000,001 – 10,000,000

5

19%

34,365,234

1%

10,000,001 – 50,000,000

18

69%

409,856,643

15%

50,000,001 – 100,000,000

1

4%

60,416,666

2%

100,000,001 – 500,000,000

-

-

-

0%

500,000,001 – 1,000,000,000

-

-

-

0%

Foreign Shareholders Above
1,000,000,000

1

4%

2,288,188,675

82%

26

100%

2,793,777,229

100%

TOTAL
Substantial interest in shares

According to the register of members as at 31 December 2015, no shareholder held more than 5% of the issued share capital
of the Bank, except the following:

Shareholder
Citibank Overseas Investment Corporation

No. of shares
held

Percentage of shareholding

2,288,188,675

81.9%

2015
N’000

2014
N’000

Directors
Directors’ remuneration was paid as follows:

Fees and sitting allowances
Executive compensation

48,000
217,250

49,350
380,922

Total

265,250

430,272

4
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Donations and charitable gifts
The Group and Citigroup Foundation made contributions to charitable and non-political organizations amounting to
N112,918,888 (2014:N89,119,953) during the year as analyzed below:
Citibank Nigeria Limited Donations

N

1 Care Organization Public Enlightenment ( COPE )

500,000

2 Down Syndrome Association of Nigeria

500,000

3 Medical Missionaries of Mary Hospital ( Lugbe )

400,000

4 Sickle Cell Foundation

500,000

5 Leprosy Centre Uzoakoli

300,000

6 Network of people living with AIDS in Nigeria.

500,000

7 Atunda Olu School (For Physically Handicapped Children)

750,000

8 Bethesda Child Support Agency

2,009,500

9 De Marillac Centre, Port Harcourt

400,000

10 National Orthopedic Special School ( Igbobi )

500,000

11 Pacelli School

500,000

12 SOS Children's Village

500,000

13 The Book Trust

400,000

14 Wesley School 1

500,000

15 Wesley School 2

500,000

16 Bema Homes for the less Privileged

400,000

17 Arrow of God Orphanage

500,000

18

Christian Care for Widows, Widowers, The Aged and Orphans
( CCWA International) (Abuja)

19 Green Pasture and Home Initiative

500,000

20 Heart of Gold Children's Hospice

1,000,000

21 Home for the Elderly, Port Harcourt

400,000

22 Ngwa Road Motherless Babies Home (Aba)

400,000

23 Obioma Cheshire Home ( Borokiri )

300,000

24 Port Harcourt Children's Home, Borokiri

300,000

25 Right Steps Incorporated

400,000

26 Rosali Home Rehabilitation Centre ( Eleme, PH )

400,000

27 Seventh Day Adventist Motherless Babies Home (Aba)

400,000

28 St. Anne's Orphanage

400,000

29 Victorine home for Children

400,000

30 Nigerian Red Cross.

500,000

31 The Future Project.

500,000

32 WIMBIZ (Women in Management Business and Public Service)

2,000,000

33 Financial Markets Dealers Association of Nigeria (FMDA)

2,000,000

Sub- total
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400,000

19,959,500
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In addition, to above charitable contributions, the ultimate parent company, Citigroup Inc, through Citigroup Foundation made
the following donations in Nigeria:
Citigroup Foundation Donations
1 Centre for Values in Leadership

15,717,050

2 LEAP Africa (School2Work Project)

8,156,950

3 Junior Achievement Africa (Nigeria)

7,958,000

4 TechnoServe Inc. (Nigeria)
Sub- total

Total

61,127,388
92,959,388

112,918,888

Post balance sheet events
There were no post balance sheet events which could have a material effect on the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2015 or the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended on that date that have
not been adequately provided for or disclosed.
Employment of disabled persons
The Group continues to maintain a policy of giving fair consideration to application for employment made by disabled persons
with due regard to their abilities and aptitudes. The Group’s policies prohibit discrimination against disabled persons in the
recruitment, training and career development of employees. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled, efforts will
be made to ensure that their employment with the Group continues and appropriate training arranged to ensure that they fit
into the Group’s working environment.
Health, safety and welfare at work
The Group enforces strict health and safety rules and practices at the work environment, which are reviewed and tested
regularly. In addition, medical facilities are provided for staff and their immediate families at the Group’s expense.
Fire prevention and fire-fighting equipment are installed in strategic locations within the Group’s premises.
The Group operates both Group Personal Accident and Workmen’s Compensation Insurance cover for the benefit of its
employees. It is also fully compliant with the provisions of the Employee Compensation Act. The Group also operates a
contributory pension plan in line with the Pension Reform Act, 2014.
Employee involvement and training
The Group ensures, through various fora, that employees are informed on matters concerning them. Formal and informal
channels are also employed in communication with employees with an appropriate two-way feedback mechanism.
In accordance with the Group’s policy of continuous development, the Group draws extensively on Citigroup’s training
programmes around the world. The programmes include on the job training, classroom sessions and web-based training
programmes which are available to all staff. In addition, employees of the Group are nominated to attend both locally and
internationally organized courses.
Diversity in Employment
The Group recognises that the recruitment, involvement and advancement of women and a diverse workforce are business
imperatives. During the financial year ended 31 December 2015:
- There were 88 women out of 243 employees comprising 35.12% of the total number of employees;
- There was 3 women out of 11 Directors on the Board of Directors;
- There were 34 women out of 104 top management staff, including executive directors
- There were 32 women out of 98 top management staff between Assistant General Manager to General Manager grade;
- There were 2 women out of 5 top management staff between Executive Director to Chief Executive Officer;
- The bank had no persons with disabilities in its employment.
The Group is committed to maintaining a positive work environment and to conducting business in a positive, professional
manner by consistently ensuring equal employment opportunity. The Group has programs aimed at achieving gender balance
which include developmental programs targeted for women; mentoring; and policies that support Work-Life balance.

6
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Consumer Help Desk
Citi has a robust complaint management and feedback process, the object of which is to ensure that our clients are satisfied
with our products and services at all times
All client communication channels e.g. phone calls, emails, letters etc. are monitored and tracked to ensure that satisfactory
service quality is maintained consistently. Also all queries are registered and monitored to resolution in line with preestablished service level standards. It is worth mentioning that over 85% of client enquiries are treated as quick kills and
resolved within 24 hours.
We value our clients’ feedback, and as such, we carry out frequent surveys to gauge their satisfaction with our products and
services. All feedback received through this forum is treated on a priority basis and required adjustment made accordingly.
Citi complies with all the Central Bank of Nigeria’s (CBN) guidelines on Customer Complaints Handling.
We have established a consumer complaints help desk to handle all categories of customer complaints and provide a monthly
report to the CBN in line with the guideline on customer complaint resolution.
The status of consumer complaints received in 2015 vs 2014 is presented below:
NUMBER

S/N
1 Pending complaints B/F*

2015

2014

-

1

AMOUNT REFUNDED
2015
2014

AMOUNT CLAIMED
2015
2014
-

-

-

-

2 Received complaints

13

23

276,787,371

32,165,528

24,500,284

23,302,164

3 Resolved complaints
Unresolved complaints
4 escalated to CBN for
intervention
Unresolved complaints
5
pending with the bank C/F

13

24

276,787,371

32,165,528

24,500,284

23,302,164

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

*The amount claimed B/F was based on one account, while amount refunded was based on multiple accounts.
There were no unresolved complaints as at year end.
Guidelines On Electronic Payment Of Salaries, Pensions, Suppliers and Taxes In Nigeria
The group has implemented the requirements in the guideline of e-payment of salaries, pensions, suppliers and taxes in Nigeria. All forms of
salaries, pensions, suppliers and taxes payment were initiated on our secure internet banking platform, CitiDirect, during the financial year
ended 31 December, 2015.
Guidelines On Card Issuance & Usage In Nigeria
During the financial year ended 31 December, 2015, the summary of activities relating to cards are as contained in the table below:

Item Description
Card Type
Transaction Volume
Transaction Value

Values
Citi Commercial Card (A corporate
charge card)
71,398
N2,332,209,561

Compensation Policy
Citibank Nigeria has a compensation plan which is fair, transparent, and consistent. We have a Pay for Performance culture to enable us
attract and retain people of the highest quality. Our Total Compensation package is designed to retain and motivate people to constantly
exceed their goal; differentiate between levels of performance and thus increasing the total compensation available to the employees based on
performance
Our Compensation policy is linked to:
-

The performance of the Organization as a whole
The performance of the Country/business/teams in which our people work
The individual performance of each employee
The ability to pay for the total compensation programme

To remain competitive as an employer of choice, Citibank regularly benchmarks its compensation practices with the market through
participation in remuneration surveys.
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Overall individual salary decisions are taken on the basis of assessment of performance against measurable goals and targets, which is fair,
consistent & explainable. Each year, individual goals and targets are set in line with the overall plan for the business in the country. At the end
of the year, a formal meeting takes place between the employee and the manager to discuss achievements against goals.
Our goal is to recognize the contribution of our people and reward their successes.
We will know that our compensation program is working well when we are able to attract, retain and motivate staff who give us competitive
advantage in our chosen markets; when our people believe that they are recognized, valued and their compensation is determined by
performance and competitive market positioning.
The better the employee’s performance the better the total compensation.
Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers have indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditors in accordance with
Section 357(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act.

Charles S. Sankey House

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

27, Kofo Abayomi Street
Victoria Island
Lagos

February 26, 2016

Olusola Fagbure, Company Secretary
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Citibank Nigeria Limited is committed to ensuring the implementation of good corporate governance principles in all its
activities. Citibank Nigeria Limited adheres to the provisions of the Central Bank of Nigeria Code on Corporate
Governance for Banks and Discount Houses (‘the Code’) and to Citigroup corporate governance principles. Corporate
governance compliance is monitored and a monthly (quarterly from October 2014) report on the Bank’s compliance with
the Code is submitted to the Central Bank of Nigeria. The Board of Directors undergoes training in corporate governance
best practices.
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors consists of eleven members comprising the Chairman, the Managing Director, five Non-Executive
Directors and four Executive Directors. One of the Non-Executive Directors is an Independent Director, appointed based
on criteria laid down by the Central Bank of Nigeria. The other independent director on the Board resigned in April 2015.
The Board of Directors has identified a replacement for whom CBN approval will be sought. The Independent Director
has no shareholding interest or business relationship with the Bank. The Directors and their shareholdings are listed in the
Directors’ report.
The Board is responsible for the oversight of executive management, ensuring that the Bank’s operations are conducted
in accordance with legal and regulatory requirements, approving and reviewing corporate strategy and performance, and
for ensuring that the rights of the shareholders are protected at all times. The members of the Board possess the
necessary experience and expertise to exercise their oversight functions.
In accordance with the provisions of the Code, the office and responsibilities of the Chairman and the Managing
Director/Chief Executive are separate.
The Board meets quarterly and additional meetings are convened as required. The Board may take decisions between
meetings by way of written resolution, as provided for in the Articles of Association of the Bank. In 2015 the Board met five
times.
2015 DIRECTORS' BOARD MEETING ATENDANCE:
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Mr. Olayemi Cardoso

5

Mr. Omar Hafeez

2 (resigned June 1, 2015)

Mr. Tariq Masaud

2 (resigned June 30, 2015)

Mr. Fatai Karim

5

Mr. Akin Dawodu

5

Mrs. Funmi Ogunlesi

4

Mr. Ade Ayeyemi

2 (resigned June 5, 2015)

Prof. Yemi Osinbajo

0 (resigned April 2, 2015)

Chief Arthur Mbanefo

4

Dr. Hilary Onyiuke

5

Mr. Michael Murray-Bruce

2

Mrs. Nneka Enwereji

5

Mrs. Ireti Samuel-Ogbu

5

Mr. Philip Cullingworth

4

Mr Chinedu Ikwudinma

2 (appointed June 25, 2015, CBN approval September 8, 2015)
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has delegated some of its responsibilities to the following board committees: Risk Management Committee,
Audit Committee, Credit Committee and the Board Governance and Nominations Committee. Each of these committees
reports to the Board on its activities. The Chairman of the Board is not a member of any of the board committees. The
membership of the Board Committees is in line with the requirements of the CBN Code of Corporate Governance for
Banks and Discount Houses.
Board Committees
a) The Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee consists of six directors, two of whom, including the Chairman of the Committee, are
Non- Executive Directors. The Committee is responsible for overseeing the Bank’s Risk Management policies and
procedures in the areas of franchise, operational, credit and market risk. The Committee meets quarterly and met five
times during the year.
2015 COMMITTEE MEMBERS' MEETING ATENDANCE:
Prof. Yemi Osinbajo

0 Chairman (resigned April 2, 2015)

Mr. Michael Murray-Bruce

1 (Chairman from June 25, 2015)

Mr. Omar Hafeez

2 (resigned June 1, 2015)

Mr. Tariq Masaud

2 (resigned June 30, 2015)

Mr. Fatai Karim

5

Mr. Akin Dawodu

4

Mrs. Funmi Ogunlesi

4

Mrs Ireti Samuel-Ogbu

5

Mr Chinedu Ikwudinma

2 (appointed to the Committee on June 25, 2015)

b) The Credit Committee
The Credit Committee consists of six directors, two of whom, including the Chairman of the Committee are Non- Executive
Directors. The Committee is responsible for approving credits above such limits as may be prescribed by the Board of
Directors from time to time. The Committee meets quarterly and met four times during the year.
2015 COMMITTEE MEMBERS' MEETING ATENDANCE:
Mr. Ade Ayeyemi

1 (Chairman up to June 2015)

Mr. Philip Cullingworth

3 (Chairman from June 25, 2015)

Dr. Hilary Onyiuke

4

Mr. Tariq Masaud

2 (resigned June 30, 2015)

Mr. Chinedu Ikwudinma

2 (appointed to the committee June 25, 2015)

Mr. Akin Dawodu

4

Mr. Omar Hafeez

1 (resigned June 1, 2015)

Mrs. Funmi Ogunlesi

3

Mrs Nneka Enwereji

4 (appointed to the Committee on June 25, 2015)

10

41

c) The Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of three non-executive directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent
Director.
The Committee’s responsibilities include the review of the integrity of the Bank’s financial reporting, oversight of the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors, the review of the reports of external auditors and regulatory
agencies and management responses thereto, and the review of the effectiveness of the Bank’s system of accounting and
internal control.
During the year the Committee approved the external auditors’ terms of engagement and scope of work and also reviewed
the internal auditor’s audit plan. The Committee received regular internal audit reports from the Bank’s internal auditor.
Members of the Committee have unrestricted access to the Bank’s external auditors.
The Committee meets quarterly and met four times during the year.
2015 COMMITTEE MEMBERS' MEETING ATENDANCE:
Chief Arthur Mbanefo

3 (Chairman)

Mr. Michael Murray-Bruce

0 (ceased to be a member of the Committee in February 2015)

Prof. Yemi Osinbajo

0 (resigned April 2, 2015)

Mr. Philip Cullingworth

0 (appointed to the Committee June 25 2015)

Mr Ade Ayeyemi

2 (resigned June 5, 2015)

Mrs Ireti Samuel-Ogbu

4

d) Board Governance and Nominations Committee
The Committee is made up of three non-executive directors. The Committee's responsibilities include recommending the
criteria for the selection of new directors to serve on the Board, identifying and evaluating individuals qualified to be
nominated as directors of the Bank, or any of the Board's committees, evaluating and making recommendations to the
Board regarding compensation for non-executive directors, and considering and approving the remuneration of executive
directors.
The Committee is required to hold a minimum of two meetings in a year. The Committee met three times during the year.
2015 COMMITTEE MEMBERS' MEETING ATENDANCE:
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Mr. Ade Ayeyemi

1 (Chairman up to June 2015)

Dr. Hilary Onyiuke

3 (Chairman from December 2015)

Prof. Yemi Osinbajo

0 (resigned April 2, 2015)

Mr. Michael Murray-Bruce

1 (appointed to the Committee in October 2015)

Chief Arthur Mbanefo

2

11

GENERAL MEETINGS
The last Annual General Meeting was held on April 23 2015.
Management Committees
The following are the key management committees: Country Co-Ordinating Committee, Business Risk and Compliance
Committee, Assets and Liabilities Committee, Legal and Compliance Committee, Legal Vehicle Management Committee,
Country Senior Human Resources Committee, Information Technology Steering Committee, Management Credit
Committee, Records and Files Committee, and Vendor Management Committee.
RISK AND CONTROLS
In line with Citigroup policies, the Bank maintains a strong control environment. The internal control system is designed to
achieve efficiency and effectiveness of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations at all levels of the Group as required by the Code.
Robust risk management policies and mechanisms have been put in place to ensure identification of risk and effective
control. The Board, through the Board Risk Management Committee, oversees the Bank’s risk management policies.

WHISTLE BLOWING PROCEDURES
In line with the Bank’s commitment to instill best corporate governance practices, the Bank has established a whistle
blowing procedure that ensures anonymity. The Bank has a dedicated whistle blowing hotline and e-mail address. The
Chief Compliance Officer forwards quarterly returns to the Central Bank of Nigeria on all whistle-blowing reports and
corporate governance breaches.
CODE OF CONDUCT
The Bank has a Code of Conduct which all officers of the Bank are expected to adhere to. All staff are expected to strive
to maintain the highest standards of ethical conduct and integrity in all aspects of their professional life as prescribed in
the Code of Conduct.
MANAGEMENT SUCCESSION
The Bank has a strong management team and a documented succession plan for every executive role within the Bank.
REMUNERATION POLICY
The Bank's employee remuneration policy revolves around Pay for Performance, to enable the Bank to attract and retain
people of the highest quality. Employees total compensation package is linked to the performance of the organisation as a
whole, as well as to the individual performance of each employee as assessed against measurable goals and targets.
The Bank aims to be competitive with the market.
Board Compensation
Members of the Board are paid directors fees, sitting allowances and reimbursable expenses as provided for in the CBN.
Code of Corporate Governance for banks.
Board Performance Review
A review of the Board's performance is conducted by DCSL Corporate Services Limited. A summary of DCSL's report is
contained at page 15.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
Responsibility for Annual Financial Statements
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies and Allied Matters Act and the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act,
the directors are responsible for the preparation of the annual financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group at the end of the year and of the financial performance and cashflows for the year then ended. The
responsibilities include ensuring that:
i. the Group keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of the Group and
comply with the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act and the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act;
ii. appropriate and adequate internal controls are established to safeguard its assets and to prevent and detect fraud and other
irregularities;
iii. the Group prepares its financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates, that are consistently applied; and
iv. it is appropriate for the financial statements to be prepared on a going concern basis.
The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting
policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with,

- International Financial Reporting Standards;
- Prudential Guidelines for Licensed Banks;
- Relevant circulars issued by the Central Bank of Nigeria;
- The requirements of the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act;
- The requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act; and
- The requirements of the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act.

The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial position of the
Group and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year.
The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in the preparation of
financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.
Nothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the Group will not remain a going concern for at least twelve
months from the date of this statement.
SIGNED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS BY:

_______________________________

__________________________________

MR. OLAYEMI CARDOSO
CHAIRMAN
FRC/2013/CISN/00000002200
Feb 26 2016

MR. AKINSOWON DAWODU
MANAGING DIRECTOR
FRC/2015/CIBN/00000013238
Feb 26 2016
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Group

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended 31 December

Note

Bank

2015

2014

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Interest income

5.

31,871,192

22,282,520

31,871,192

22,282,520

Interest expense

6.

(6,107,219)

(4,685,538)

(6,107,219)

(4,685,538)

25,763,973

17,596,982

25,763,973

17,596,982

Net interest income
Net credit (losses)/ write back

13.

Net interest income after loan impairment charge

(8,129,322)

336,697

(8,129,322)

336,697

17,634,651

17,933,679

17,634,651

17,933,679

2,686,839

4,319,185

2,686,839

4,319,185

Fee and commission income

7.

Fee and commission expense

7.

Gains from financial instruments held for trading

8.

3,812,450

6,499,249

3,812,450

6,499,249

Investment income

9.

1,147,168

1,588,058

1,185,265

1,602,481

Other operating income

10.

205,107

170,839

205,107

170,839

25,450,858

30,484,210

25,488,956

30,498,633

Net operating income

(35,356)

(26,800)

(35,356)

(26,800)

Personnel expenses

11.

(5,961,332)

(5,841,296)

(5,792,770)

(5,587,546)

Other operating expenses

12.

(6,282,035)

(6,079,195)

(6,282,410)

(6,079,400)

Amortisation of intangible assets

26.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

25.

(449,854)

(416,054)

Operating profit
Share of profit of associates accounted for using equity
method

24.

Profit before tax
Taxation

14.

Profit for the year

(449,854)

(416,054)

-

12,757,637

18,147,665

12,963,922

124,600

127,676

12,882,237

18,275,341

12,963,922

18,415,632

(2,367,360)

(2,817,787)

(2,367,240)

(2,817,721)

10,514,877

15,457,554

10,596,682

15,597,911

10,514,877

15,457,554

10,596,682

15,597,911

10,514,877

15,457,554

10,596,682

15,597,911

-

18,415,632

-

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent

Earnings per share attributable to the equity
holders of the parent entity during the year
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Basic

15.

3.85

5.66

3.79

5.58

Diluted

15.

3.85

5.66

3.79

5.58

17

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December
Note

Profit for the year

Group
2015
N’000

2014
N’000

Bank
2015
N’000

2014
N’000

10,514,877

15,457,554

10,596,682

15,597,911

(2,861,272)

7,789,093

(2,861,272)

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Fair value reserve (available-for-sale securities):
Net change in fair value

22.

7,789,093

Net amount transferred to profit or loss

22.

(1,673,752)

142,618

(1,673,752)

142,618

14.

(1,834,602)

815,596

(1,834,602)

815,596

Net tax on items taken through other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

4,280,739

(1,903,058)

4,280,739

(1,903,058)

14,795,616

13,554,496

14,877,421

13,694,853

10,514,877

15,457,554

10,596,682

15,597,911

10,514,877

15,457,554

10,596,682

15,597,911

14,795,616

13,554,496

14,877,421

13,694,853

14,795,616

13,554,496

14,877,421

13,694,853

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at

Note

Group
31 December
2015
N’000

Bank
31 December
2014
N’000

31 December
2015

31 December
2014

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria

16.

104,446,388

34,331,517

104,446,388

34,331,517

Loans and advances to banks

17.

158,371,780

150,740,892

158,371,780

150,740,892

Trading securities

18.

12,952,024

1,919,692

12,952,024

1,919,692

Derivative financial instruments

19.

6,662

5,351,023

6,662

5,351,023

Assets pledged as collateral

20.

4,041,522

3,787,423

4,041,522

3,787,423

Loans and advances to customers

21.

94,489,371

92,364,499

94,489,371

92,364,499
106,633,357

Investment securities

22.

53,058,829

106,633,357

53,058,829

Other assets

23.

260,823

533,674

260,823

533,674

Investments in associates

24.

764,620

678,116

398,020

398,020

Investment in subsidiary
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1,000

1,000

2,810,224

2,775,107

-

Property, plant and equipment

25.

Intangible assets

26.

-

Deferred tax asset

34.

-

Total assets

2,810,224

431,202,243

2,775,107
-

0

1,026,366
400,141,666

430,836,643

1,026,366
399,862,570

LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks

27.

770,983

47,999,349

770,983

47,999,349

Deposits from customers

28.

358,184,320

291,160,817

358,185,853

291,162,205
280,580

Derivative financial instruments

19.

6,466

280,580

6,466

Retirement benefit obligation

29.

7,900

7,586

7,900

7,586

Current income tax liabilities

30.

2,805,397

2,744,192

2,805,233

2,744,082

9,310,028

5,614,284

Other borrowed funds

31.

Other liabilities

32.

Provisions

33.

Deferred tax liability

34.

Total liabilities

9,309,653

-

-

-

612,915
371,697,633

0

5,614,073

0

347,806,598

612,915
371,699,377

347,808,086

EQUITY
Share capital

35.

2,793,777

2,793,777

2,793,777

2,793,777

Share premium

35.

11,643,995

11,643,995

11,643,995

11,643,995

Treasury share reserve

35.

(60,417)

(60,417)

-

-

Regulatory reserve

35.

83,599

-

83,599

-

Statutory reserves

35.

23,872,764

22,283,262

23,872,764

Fair value reserve

35.

1,268,901

(3,011,838)

1,268,901

(3,011,838)

Retained earnings

19,901,991

18,686,290

19,474,230

18,345,288

Total equity

59,504,610

52,335,069

59,137,266

52,054,484

431,202,243

400,141,667

430,836,643

399,862,570

Total equity and liabilities

22,283,262

The financial statements were certified by:

___________________________________

_________________________________________

Managing Director: Mr. Akinsowon Dawodu
FRC/2015/CIBN/00000013238

Ag. Chief Finance Officer: Mr.Olukayode Bababunmi
FRC/2015/ICAN/000000013240

The notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. The financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on February 26 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

____________________________
Chairman: Mr. Olayemi Cardoso
FRC/2013/CISN/00000002200
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_________________________________
Managing Director: Mr. Akinsowon Dawodu
FRC/2015/CIBN/00000013238
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Group

Attributable to equity holders of the parent
N’000

Balance at 1 January
2015

Share

Share

capital

premium

2,793,777

11,643,995

Treasury
shares
reserve

Retained
earnings

(60,417) 18,686,290

Profit

-

-

-

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale
securities, net of tax

-

-

-

Total comprehensive
income

-

-

-

Regulatory
risk
reserve
-

10,514,877
-

reserve

22,283,262

-

(3,011,838)

-

Total
52,335,069

10,514,877

-

4,280,739

4,280,739

10,514,877

-

-

4,280,739

14,795,616

-

-

-

-

(7,626,075)

-

-

-

-

(1,589,502)

-

Transfer to regulatory
credit reserve

-

-

-

(83,599)

11,643,995

reserve

-

Dividend paid

2,793,777

Fair value

-

Transfer to Statutory
reserve

At 31 December 2015

Statutory

(60,417) 19,901,991

83,599

83,599

1,589,502
-

23,872,764

-

(7,626,075)

-

-

-

-

1,268,901

59,504,610

Attributable to equity holders of the parent
N’000

Balance at 1 January
2014

Share

Share

capital

premium

2,793,777

11,643,995

Treasury
shares
reserve

-

-

-

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale
securities, net of tax

-

-

-

Total comprehensive
income

-

-

-

Dividend paid

-

-

Transfer to Statutory
reserve

-

-

2,793,777

11,643,995

earnings

(60,417) 17,048,537

Profit

At 31 December 2014

Retained

Regulatory
risk
reserve
-

Statutory

Fair value

reserve

reserve

19,943,575

(1,108,780)

50,260,687

-

-

-

-

(1,903,058)

(1,903,058)

15,457,554

-

-

(1,903,058)

13,554,496

-

(11,480,114)

-

-

-

(2,339,687)

-

15,457,554
-

(60,417) 18,686,290
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-

2,339,687
22,283,262

-

Total

(3,011,838)

15,457,554

(11,480,114)
52,335,069
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BANK STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Parent

Attributable to equity holders of the bank
N’000

Balance at 1 January 2015

Share
capital

Share
premium

Retained
earnings

2,793,777

11,643,995

18,345,288

Profit
Change in fair value of availablefor-sale securities, net of tax
Total comprehensive income
Dividend paid
Transfer to Statutory reserve
Transfer from regulatory credit reserve
At 31 December 2015

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,793,777

11,643,995

Regulatory
risk reserve
-

10,596,682
-

Statutory
reserve

Fair value
reserve

Total

22,283,262

(3,011,838)

52,054,484

-

-

-

-

-

10,596,682

4,280,739

4,280,739

10,596,682
(7,794,638)
(1,589,502)
(83,599)

83,599

1,589,502

4,280,739
-

14,877,421
(7,794,638)
-

19,474,230

83,599

23,872,764

1,268,901

59,137,266

Statutory
reserve

Fair value
reserve

Total

19,943,575

(1,108,780)

50,093,494

Attributable to equity holders of the bank
N’000

Balance at 1 January 2014

Share
premium

Retained
earnings

2,793,777

11,643,995

16,820,927

Profit
Change in fair value of availablefor-sale securities, net of tax

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income
Dividend paid
Transfer to Statutory reserve

-

-

At 31 December 2014

52

Share
capital

2,793,777

11,643,995

15,597,911
-

Regulatory
risk reserve
-

-

-

-

-

15,597,911

(1,903,058)

(1,903,058)

15,597,911
(11,733,864)
(2,339,687)

-

2,339,687

(1,903,058)
-

13,694,854
(11,733,864)
-

18,345,288

-

22,283,262

(3,011,838)

52,054,484
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS

Group

Note

For the year ended

Bank

31 December
2015

31 December
2014

31 December
2015

31 December
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

12,882,239

18,275,341

12,963,922

18,415,633

Adjustments for non-cash items:
Impairment of loans and advances

13.

Additional/(release) of impairment of equity investment

9.

Gain on disposal of equity investment

8,129,322

(336,697)

-

-

-

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

26.

Amortisation of intangible assets

25.

Provision for litigation

32

(380,542)

449,854

416,054

-

-

364,700

(2,000)

Revaluation loss on trading assets

8

19,406

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

10.

(17,217)

(4,440)

Associates share of profits accounted for using equity method

24.

(124,600)

(127,676)

Dividend received from associates

24.

Dividend income

9.

Effects of exchange-rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

767,904

-

8,129,322
449,854
364,700
19,406

(336,697)
(380,542)
416,054
(2,000)
767,904

(17,217)

(4,440)

-

-

-

(73,138)

(47,582)

(111,235)

(62,006)

(7,189,540)

(12,068,489)

(7,189,540)

(12,068,489)
(22,282,520)

Interest income

5.

(31,871,192)

(22,282,520)

(31,871,192)

Interest expense

6.

6,107,219

4,685,538

6,107,219

4,685,538

(11,322,947)

(11,105,109)

(11,154,759)

(11,799,717)

(16,875,996)

(11,565,127)

(16,875,996)

(11,565,127)

2,331,414

(2,204,448)

2,331,414

(2,204,448)

(9,802,087)

(10,388,371)

(9,802,087)

(10,388,371)

(10,745,477)

10,875,470

(10,745,477)

10,875,470

(254,099)

858,730

(254,099)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in cash reserve balance
Decrease/ (increase) in loans and advances to banks
Increase in loans and advances customer
(Increase)/ decrease in trading assets
(Increase)/ decrease in pledged assets
Decrease/ (increase) in derivative financial assets

5,344,361

Decrease in other assets

(5,336,787)

272,851

Decrease/ increase) in deposits from banks
Increase in deposits from customers
Decrease/ increase) in derivative financial liabilities

557,401

272,851

858,730
(5,336,787)
557,401

(47,160,534)

46,510,812

(47,160,535)

46,510,812

67,105,701

13,665,046

67,105,845

13,665,046

(274,115)

Increase/(decrease) in retirement benefit obligation

315

Decrease in provision

-

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities

5,344,361

268,187
(477)
-

(274,115)
315
-

268,187
(477)
-

3,330,880

(1,819,179)

3,331,044

(1,818,975)

(18,049,735)

30,316,148

(17,881,238)

30,569,897

(2,501,477)

(3,665,581)

(2,501,412)

(3,665,581)

Interest received

30,986,183

20,499,534

30,986,183

20,499,534

Interest paid

(6,276,655)

(4,633,409)

(6,276,654)

(4,633,409)

4,158,316

42,516,693

4,326,879

42,770,442

Income taxes paid

30.

Net cashflows (used in)/ from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

25.

Proceed from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceed from sale of equity investment

(508,147)

(611,600)

(508,147)

40,393

31,812

40,393

31,812

-

679,242

-

679,242

Dividends received

9.

73,138

47,582

Dividends received from associates

24.

38,097

14,424

Purchase of debt investment securities

22.

(11,984,923)

(68,617,867)

(11,984,923)

(68,617,867)

Proceeds from maturity/sales of debt investment securities

22.

71,858,901

50,466,189

71,858,901

50,466,189

59,517,459

(17,990,217)

59,517,459

(17,990,218)

(7,626,076)

(11,480,114)

(7,794,639)

(11,733,864)

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities

111,235

(611,600)

62,006
-

Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid

39.

Repayments of borrowed funds

-

(700,000)

-

(700,000)

Net cash used in financing activities

(7,626,076)

(12,180,114)

(7,794,639)

(12,433,864)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents

56,049,699

12,346,361

56,049,699

12,346,359

206,193,916

142,954,678

206,193,916

142,954,677

142,954,677

118,539,828

142,954,677

118,539,828

7,189,540

12,068,489

7,189,540

12,068,489

56,049,699

12,346,361

56,049,699

12,346,359

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year
Effects of exchange-rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Increase in cash and cash equivalents

40.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015

1.

General information
Citibank Nigeria Limited (“the Bank”) is a company domiciled in Nigeria. The Bank was incorporated in Nigeria under the
Companies and Allied Matter Act as a private limited liability company on 2 May 1984. It was granted a license on 14
September 1984 to carry on the business of commercial banking and commenced business on 14 September 1984. The
address of the Bank’s registered office is 27 Kofo Abayomi Street, Victoria Island, Lagos. These consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 are prepared for the Bank and its subsidiaries (together, “the Group”). The
Group is primarily involved in commercial banking that includes transactional services, corporate finance, provision of
finance, custodial business and money market and trading activities. The Bank has a subsidiary, Nigeria International Bank
Nominees Limited.
The company is a nominee company that acts as the registered holder of securities purchased for customers of the Bank’s
custodial business.
The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on February February 26 2016.

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1

Introduction to the summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.2

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements for the year 2015 have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Additional information
required by national regulations is included where appropriate.

2.2.1

Basis of measurement
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, modified to include the fair value of certain
financial instruments to the extent required or permitted under the accounting standards as set out in the relevant accounting
policies.
They have also been prepared in the manner required by the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria, Banks and Other
Financial Institutions Act of Nigeria and relevant Central Bank of Nigeria circulars.

2.2.2

Use of estimates and judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reported period. The estimates and assumptions are based on management's best knowledge of current events, actions,
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

2.2.3

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
i) New and amended standards adopted by the group for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January
There are no new and amended standard and interpretation effective during the reporting period.
Standards and interpretations effective during the reporting period.
ii) New and amended standards issued but not yet effective
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•IFRS 9 - Financial instruments - effective 1 January 2018. IFRS 9 includes requirements for the recognition and
measurement of all financial instruments with emphasis on the accounting for hedging transactions. The standard is a
replacement for the current IAS 39. The Group will be impacted significantly by the adoption of IFRS 9 as all financial assets
designated as Available for sale (AFS) would have to be classified as either Fair Value Through Profit or Loss or measured
at amortised cost. However, the Group would continue to adopt IAS 39 (Financial Instrument: Recognition and
Measurement) given that the standard will be for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2018. The Group is
currently in the process of evaluating the potential effect of these standards.
•IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts from customers - This will be effective in January 2017. IFRS 15 specifies how and when
an IFRS reporter will recognise revenue as well as requiring such entities to provide users of financial statements with more
informative, relevant disclosures. The standard provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all
contracts with customers.
The Group is currently in the process of evaluating the potential effect of these standards.
•IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an investor and its Associate or joint Venture - Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28. The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of
a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint venture. It is effective in January, 2016

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception - Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12
and IAS 28. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The amendments address issues that have
arisen in applying the investment entities exception under IFRS 10.
The amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that the exemption (in IFRS 10.4) from presenting consolidated financial statements
applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, when the investment entity measures all of its
subsidiaries at fair value.

IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative - Amendments to IAS 1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The
amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements clarify, rather than significantly change, existing IAS 1
requirements. The amendments clarify
• The materiality requirements in IAS 1
• That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI and the statement of financial position may be
disaggregated
• That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial statements
• That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must be presented in
aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss

IAS 16 and IAS 38 - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation - Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS
38. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the economic
benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, the ratio of revenue generated to total revenue expected to
be generated cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets.

IAS 27 - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements - Amendments to IAS 27. Effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. The amendments to IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements allow an entity to use the equity method
as described in IAS 28 to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its separate financial
statements. Therefore, an entity must account for these investments either:
• At cost
• In accordance with IFRS 9 (or IAS 39) Or
• Using the equity method
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AIP IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in methods of disposal. Changes in
methods of disposal
• Assets (or disposal groups) are generally disposed of either through sale or distribution to owners. The amendment clarifies
that changing from one of these disposal methods to the other would not be considered a new plan of disposal, rather it is a
continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in IFRS 5.

AIP IAS 19 Employee Benefits - Discount rate: regional market issue. • The amendment clarifies that market depth of high
quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country
where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government
bond rates must be used.
AIP IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information elsewhere in the interim financial report. • The amendment
clarifies that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by crossreference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the interim financial report (e.g., in
the management commentary or risk report).
• The other information within the interim financial report must be available to users on the same terms as the interim
financial statements and at the same time.
2.3

Consolidation
The financial statements of the subsidiaries used to prepare the consolidated financial statements were prepared as of the
parent company’s reporting date.
Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements of the Group comprise the financials statements of the parent entity and subsidiary as
at 31 December 2015. Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. The group
controls an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Bank and its wholly owned subsidiary company,
NIB Nominees Limited. Subsidiary undertakings of those companies in which the Group, directly or indirectly, has power to
exercise control over their operations, are consolidated.
Structured entities are consolidated where the group has control. The activities of the staff participation scheme have been
consolidated into the financial statements of the Group resulting in the assets of the staff participation scheme, which are the
shares of the bank, being recognised in shareholders equity as Treasury shares (Note 2.14).
Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between companies within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated in the same manner as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
The subsidiaries were fully consolidated from the date control was transferred to the Group.The integration of the
subsidiaries into the consolidated financial statements is based on consistent accounting and valuation methods for similar
transactions and other occurrences under similar circumstances.
In the seperate financial statements for the bank, the investment in the subsidiary is carried at cost.
Associates
Associates are those entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. In addition, it includes entities where the shareholding is less than
20% but such significant influence can be demonstrated with the existence of representation on the board of directors or
equivalent governing body of the investee. Investment in associates is accounted for by the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor's share of profit or loss of the investee after the acquisition date.
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The Group's share of post-acquistion profit or loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and its share of postacquistion movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with the corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable
amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to "share of profit/(loss) of an associate"
in the statement of profit or loss.
In the seperate financial statements for the bank, the investment in the associate is carried at cost.
2.4

Segment Reporting
The Group is a private company that has no debt or equity traded in a public market therefore there is no disclosure required
for segment reporting.

2.5

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Naira, which is the Group’s presentation currency. The figures shown in the consolidated financial statements
are stated in Naira thousands.
(b) Transactions and balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Naira at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of each transaction (or
where appropriate the rate of the related forward contracts). Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are reported at the rates of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in exchange rates subsequent to the date of the transaction is included in the statement of profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.6

Financial assets and liabilities
In accordance with IAS 39 all financial assets and liabilities have to be recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and measured in accordance with their assigned category.

2.6.1

Recognition
The Group initially recognises loans, receivables and deposits on the date that they are originated. Other financial assets and
liabilities that include debt securities and assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are recognised on
the basis of settlement date accounting.
All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent recognition of financial assets and liabilities is
at amortised cost or fair value.

2.6.2

Classification
The classification of financial instruments depends on the purpose and management’s intention for which the financial
instruments were acquired and their characteristics. See accounting policies 2.6.11 to 2.6.16.
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2.6.3

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or
retained by the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its statement of financial position, but retains
either all risks and rewards of the transferred assets or a portion of them. If all or substantially all risks and rewards are
retained, then the transferred assets are not derecognised from the statement of financial position. Transfers of assets with
retention of all or substantially all risks and rewards include, for example, secured borrowing and repurchase transactions.
Such assets are reported as Assets pledged as collateral in the statement of financial position.

2.6.4

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported on the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised amount and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.6.5

Sale and repurchase agreements
Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements (‘repos’) are reclassified in the financial statements as assets pledged as
collateral when the transferee has the right by contract or custom to sell or repledge the collateral; the counterparty liability is
included in deposits from banks or deposits from customers, as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to
resell (‘reverse repos’) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks or customers, as appropriate. The difference
between sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method. Securities lent to counterparties are also retained in the financial statements.

2.6.6

Amortised cost measurement
The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at initial
recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

2.6.7

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value of trading assets, financial assets held at fair value and available-for-sale assets are based on quoted market
prices, excluding transaction costs. If a quoted market price is not available for the financial assets, the fair value is estimated
using pricing models or discounted cash flow techniques.
Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based on management’s best estimates
and the discount rate is a market-related rate at the reporting date for a financial asset with similar terms and conditions.
Where pricing models are used, inputs are based on market related measures at the reporting date.
All items for fair valuation are recurring.

2.6.8

Identification and measurement of impairment of financial assets
i) Assets carried at amortised cost
At each reporting date the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that financial assets are impaired. Financial
assets are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset, and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset that can be estimated reliably.
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The Group considers evidence of impairment at both a specific asset and collective asset level. All individually significant
financial assets are assessed for specific impairment. All significant assets found not to be specifically impaired are then
collectively assessed for any impairment that could be incurred but not yet identified. Assets that are not individually
significant are then collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together financial assets (carried at amortised cost) with
similar risk characteristics.
Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity securities) are impaired can include significant financial difficulty,
default on the facility or probability that the obligor will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security,
or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers
in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.
In assessing collective impairment the Group uses statistical modelling of historical trends of the probability of default, timing
of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as to whether current economic and
credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested by historical modelling. The
collective impairment is determined on a portfolio basis based on the historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to those in the Group. The loan impairment provision would be based on risk-rating of obligor and loss
norms attached to each risk-rating. The loss norm would have been statistically derived from historical data.

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the
financial assets and the present value of estimated cash flows discounted at the assets’ original effective interest rate.
Losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against loans and advances.
Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the obligor’s credit rating), the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

ii) Assets classified as available-for-sale
Impairment losses on available-for-sale investment securities are recognised by transferring the difference between the
amortised acquisition cost and current fair value out of equity to the statement of profit or loss.
In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is objective evidence of impairment resulting in the recognition of an impairment loss. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss – is removed from equity and recognised in statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in statement of profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a investment securities classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in statement of profit or loss, the
impairment loss shall be reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale investment security is recognised
directly in equity.
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2.6.9

Regulatory risk reserve
In compliance with the Prudential Guidelines for Licensed Banks, the Group assesses qualifying financial assets using the
guidance under the Prudential Guidelines. These apply objective and subjective criteria towards providing for losses in risk
assets. Assets are classed as performing or non-performing. Non-performing assets are further classed as Substandard,
Doubtful or Lost with attendant provision as per the table below based on objective criteria.
Classification

% Provided

Basis

Substandard

10%

Interest and/or principal overdue by 90 days but less than 180 days.

Doubtful

50%

Interest and/or principal overdue by more than 180 days but less than 365 days.

Lost

100%

Interest and/or principal overdue by more than 365 days.

A more accelerated provision may be done using the subjective criteria. A 2% provision is taken on all risk assets not
specifically provisioned.
The results of the application of Prudential Guidelines and the impairment determined for these assets under IAS 39 are
compared. The IAS 39 determined impairment charge is always included in the statement of profit or loss (Note 18.3). Where
the Prudential Guidelines provision is greater, the difference is appropriated from Retained Earnings and included in a nondistributable reserve called Statutory Credit Reserve. Where the IAS 39 impairment is greater, no appropriation is made and
the amount of the IAS 39 impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

In subsequent periods, reversals or additional appropriations are made between the Statutory Credit Reserve and Retained
Earnings to maintain total provisions at the levels expected by the Regulator.

2.6.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand, unrestricted balances held with central banks and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of less than three months, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in their
fair value, and are used by the Group in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and cash equivalents are
carried at amortised cost in the statement of financial position
2.6.11 Financial assets and liabilities classified as held for trading
Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Group acquires or incurs principally for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit.
Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognised and subsequently measured at fair value in the statement of financial
position with transaction costs recognised in statement of profit or loss. All changes in fair value are recognised as part of net
trading income in statement of profit or loss.

2.6.12 Loans and receivables
Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and that the Group does not intend to sell immediately or in the near term.
When the Group is the lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset to the lessee, the arrangement is classified as a finance lease and a receivable equal to the net
investment in the lease is recognised and presented as part of loans and advances to customers.
Loans and advances are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently
measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2.6.13 Available-for-sale
Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative investments that are not designated as any other category of financial
assets. All available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value.
Interest income is recognised in statement of profit or loss using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognised
in statement of profit or loss when the Group becomes entitled to the dividend. Foreign exchange gains or losses on
available-for-sale debt investment securities are reclassified in statement of profit or loss.
Other fair value changes are recognised directly in other comprehensive income until the investment is sold or impaired
whereupon the cumulative gains and losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are recognised to
statement of profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment for non-equty securities, while there will be no reclassification
adjustment to profit or loss in the case of equity securities
A non-derivative financial asset may be reclassified from the available-for-sale category to the loans and receivable category
if it otherwise would have met the definition of loans and receivables and if the Group has the intention and ability to hold that
financial asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity.
2.6.14 Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value on the date which the derivative contract is entered into
and subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets,
including recent market transactions and valuation techniques. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is
positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative. Changes in fair value are recognised immediately in the statement of
profit or loss.
2.6.15 Non-derivative Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value net of transaction costs at trade date. Subsequently, they are measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method.
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2.6.16 Reconciliation of Financials Statement line items to IAS 39 categories
The table below shows the classification of the Group's Financial Statement line items to different categories in line with IAS
39 provisions.
Category (as defined by IAS 39)
Financial assets
Financial assets
at fair
value through
profit or loss

Classes as determined by the Group
Treasury bills
Trading Assets
Federal Government of Nigeria Bonds
Derivative financial
instruments

Foreign exchange forward contracts
Cash

Cash and balances with
Central Bank of Nigeria

Current accounts
Mandatory reserve deposit
Current accounts

Loans and
receivables

Loans and advances to
Banks

Secured placements
Placements with other Citigroup branches
Placements held on account of customers’ obligations
Loans to banks

Loans and advances to
customers

Loans and advances

Other Assets

Receivables

Advances under finance lease

Debt Securities
Investment Securites
Available for sale

Financial
liabilities at fair
value through
profit and loss

Unlisted Equity securities
Assets pledged as
collateral

Investment securities

Derivative financial
instruments

Foreign exchange forward contracts

Deposit from Banks
Financial liabilities

Deposits from Customers
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

Listed Equity securities

Current accounts
Term deposits
Demand
Term

Other borrowed funds
Accruals
Managers’ cheques

Other liabilities

Payables
Sundry accounts
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2.7

Revenue recognition
Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognised in the statement of profit or loss for all interest-bearing instruments on an
accrual basis using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the expected
estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or liability. Fees and direct costs
relating to loan origination, re-financing or restructuring and to loan commitments are deferred and amortised to interest
earned on loans and advances using the effective interest method.
Fees and commission income
Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an incurred basis when the related services are provided or on execution
of a significant act. Fees and commissions arising from negotiating or participating in the negotiation of a transaction from a
third party such as letters of credit, cash clearing are recognised on an accrual basis as the service is provided. Portfolio and
other management advisory and service fees are recognised based on the applicable service contracts, usually on a timeapportionate basis. Custody related fees are recognized over the period in which the service is provided.
Net income from financial instruments held for trading at fair value through profit and loss
Net income on items at fair value through profit and loss comprises of all gains less losses related to trading assets and
liabilities and financial instruments designated at fair value, and include all realized and unrealized fair value changes,
together with related interest and foreign exchange differences.

Dividend income
Dividends are recognised in Investment income in the statement of profit or loss when the entity’s right to receive payment is
established.
2.8

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings comprise mainly headoffice and branch offices. All property, plant and equipment used by the parent or
its subsidiary is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation of assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of property
and equipment to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:
•Leasehold improvements

Over the lease period or useful life whichever is shorter

•Building:

50 years

•Furniture and equipment

5 years

•Computer equipment

3 years

•Motor vehicles

4 years

Depreciation begins when an asset is available for use and ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is derecognized or
classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5. A non-current asset or disposal group is not depreciated while it is
classified as held for sale
Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated. Upon completion it is transferred to the relevant asset category.
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in ‘other
operating income’ in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.9

Intangible assets
Computer software is treated as an intangible asset when the purchased software is not an integral part of the related
hardware. Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
The costs incurred to acquire and bring to use specific computer software are capitalised. The costs are amortised on a
straight line basis over the expected useful lives, which does not exceed three years.
Computer development costs that are directly associated with the production of identifiable and unique software products
that will probably generate economic benefits in excess of its costs are capitalised. The costs are amortised on a straight line
basis over the expected useful lives, which does not exceed three years.
Other costs associated with maintaining software are recognised as an expense as incurred in the statement of profit or loss.

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each year at
the same time. An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of assets are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

2.11

Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions
are determined by the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

2.12

Income taxation
Current income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in statement of profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
The directors periodically evaluate positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. They establish provisions where appropriate, on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
Deferred income tax
Deferred tax arises from temporary differences in the recognition of items for accounting and tax purposes and is calculated
using the liability method. Deferred tax is provided on timing differences, which are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future at the rates of tax likely to be in force at the time of reversal. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred income tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax
assets against current income tax liabiltites and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
Deferred tax related to fair value measurement, after initial recognition, of available-for-sale securities, is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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2.13

Employee benefits
Defined contribution scheme
The Group operates a defined contributory pension scheme. The scheme is fully funded and is managed by licensed
Pension Fund Administrators. Membership of the scheme is automatic for an employee upon commencement of duties at
the Group. The Group contributes 10% while the employee contributes 8% of gross emoluments to the scheme. The Group’s
contributions to this scheme are charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period to which they relate.

2.14

Share Capital
Dividend on ordinary shares
Dividend on ordinary shares is appropriated from retained earnings in the year it is approved by the Group’s shareholders.
Dividend per share is calculated based on the declared dividend during the year and the number of shares in issue at the
date of the declaration and qualifying for dividend.
Dividend for the current year that is approved by the Directors after the statement of financial position date is disclosed in the
subsequent events note to the financial statements.
Dividend proposed by Directors' but not yet approved by members is disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of Nigeria.
Treasury shares
Where the Bank or any member of the Group purchases the Bank's share capital, the consideration paid, if any, is deducted
from the shareholders equity as treasury shares until they are cancelled or disposed, as disclosed in note 35.2. Where such
shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received is included in shareholders equity.

2.15

Contingent assets and liabilities
Contingent assets
Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent
assets are disclosed in the financial statements when they arise.
Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is a probable obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed in the financial statements. However they are recognized, if it is probable that an outflow of economic
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.
Financial guarantees
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value, and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the
financial guarantee. The financial guarantee liability is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount and the
present value of any expected payment when a payment under the guarantee has become probable. Financial guarantees
are included within other liabilities. The fee income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee.

2.16

Comparatives
Except when a standard or an interpretation permits or requires otherwise, all amounts are reported or disclosed with
comparative information.

3

Critical accounting estimates and judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.
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3.1.

Impairment losses on loans and advances
The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment periodically. In determining whether an impairment loss should be
recorded in statement of profit or loss, the Group makes judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating
an impairment trigger, followed by measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the portfolio of loans, before
the decrease can be identified with that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data that indicates significant
financial difficulty, default on the facility or probability that the obligor will enter bankruptcy, or other observable data relating
to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults in the group. The Group uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolio. The loan impairment
provision was based on risk rating of obligor and loss norms attached to each risk rating. The loss norms are statistisically
derived from historical data and were these to differ by +/- 100 basis point, the impairment loss would be N9,305,024,726
(2014: N10,647,910) higher or lower. Note 21.3 details the movement in the impairment provision on loans and advances for
the year.

3.2.

Impairment losses of available-for-sale equity investments
The Group determines that available-for-sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share price, deterioration in the
financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in technology, and operational and financing cash
flows. In this respect, a decline of 20% or more is regarded as significant, a period longer than 12 months is considered to be
prolonged. If any such quantitative evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the asset is considered for
impairment, taking qualitative evidence into account.
For year ended 31 December 2015, if the decline in the value of the AFS equity intruments were considered prolonged, an
impairment of N644,627 loss in its 31 December 2015 (2014: N6,272,522) would have been adjusted for in the Statement of
Comprehensive income.

3.3.

Fair value of financial instruments
The fair value of financial instruments where no active market exists or where quoted prices are not otherwise available are
determined by using valuation techniques. In these cases, the fair values are estimated from observable data in respect of
similar financial instruments or using valuation models. Where market observable inputs are not available, they are
estimated based on appropriate assumptions. Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair
values, they are validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel independent of those that sourced them. All
models are certified before they are used, and models are calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and
comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use only observable data; however, areas such as credit risk
(both own credit risk and counterparty risk), volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates. Note 4.2.2
details further sensitivity analysis on the non-trading portfolio.
The fair value of investment securities in non-quoted equity securities is based on a model that takes observable data with
significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions required. Were these unobservable adjustments or assumptions to
differ by +/- 100 basis points, the change in fair value would be N102,938,302 higher or lower. Note 4.5.3 details the
movement in Investment securities under Level 3 that represent the fair value of non-quoted equity securities for the year.
The table below shows +/-100 bps adjustment to the discount factor.
Investment

CSCS
NIBSS
UPS
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Impact to OCI/Equity
2015
N’000
5,546
66,286
31,106
102,938

2014
N’000
4,486
22,571
31,106
58,163
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The risk management framework has as its foundation on a robust set of policies, procedures and processes covering the following broad categories of risk: Credit
risk, Market risk and Liquidity risk.

The risk management policies serve as the basis for risk identification and analysis inherent in the product offering as well as operating environment, setting of
appropriate risk limits and controls and monitoring adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions, products and services offered. Business managers and functional heads are acountable for risks in their businesses and functions. The Group, through
its training, management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employees understand their
roles and obligations.

Enterprise risk review

The diversity of customers, products, and business strategies at Citibank Nigeria Limited requires that we have a well-defined, risk management framework to
identify, analyze, originate, monitor and report on acceptable risk taking activities within pre-defined thresholds.

The Group's risk management function works with the business towards the goal of taking intelligent risk with shared responsibility, without forsaking individual
accountability and mitigating the potential of losses in risk activities under 3 broad categories: Credit risk, Liquidity and Market risk. Senior Business Management‘s
objectives (budgets, portfolios and investments) must be prudent, reflecting their view of risks and rewards arising from market conditions and should dynamically
adjust these strategies and budgets to fit changing environments.

Governance structure
The key governance structure includes the Board of Directors, Credit Committees, Risk Management committee and senior management committees which
specifically focus on the broad risk categories stated above.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework.
The Board Credit Committee has the responsibility for approval of credit facilities, delegation of approval limits and ratification of Management Credit committee
limits as recommended by the Country Risk Manager. All Board committees report regularly to the board of directors on their activities.
Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) is responsible for the market risk management and oversight for the bank. The ALCO establishes and implements liquidity
and price risk management policies; approves the annual liquidity and funding plans; approves and reviews the liquidity and price risk limits; monitors compliance
with regulatory risk capital and the capital management process.

Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have similar
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location. In order to avoid
excessive concentrations of risk, the Group's policies and procedures include specific concentration limits based on the Group's overal risk capacity, capital
considerations and evaluation of internal and external environments. Identified concentrations of credit risks are monitored, controlled and managed accordingly.
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2015

Fair Value
through Profit
and Loss
N'000

Availabe for
sale

Loans and
Receivables

Amortized
Cost

Total

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria

-

-

104,446,388

-

104,446,388

Loans and advances to banks

-

-

158,371,780

-

158,371,780
12,952,024

Trading securities
Derivative financial instruments
Assets pledged as collateral

12,952,024

-

-

-

6,662

-

-

-

6,662

-

-

4,041,522

-

94,489,371

-

53,058,829

143,852

-

143,852

349,719,853
-

-

427,510,429
-

-

Loans and advances to customers

-

Investment securities

-

Other assets (excluding prepayments)

-

4,041,522
53,058,829
-

12,958,687

57,100,351

-

Deposits from banks

-

-

-

770,983

770,983

Deposits from customers

-

-

-

358,185,854

358,185,854

6,466

-

-

-

-

-

7,362,628

7,362,628

6,466

-

-

358,715,376

366,325,930

Derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities (excl. accrued expenses)

2014

Cash and balances with Central Bank of
Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks

Fair Value
through Profit
and Loss
N'000

Availabe for
sale
N'000

-

-

Loans and
Receivables

Amortized
Cost

N'000

N'000

-

34,331,517

-

150,740,892

6,466

Total
N'000

-

34,331,517

-

150,740,892

Trading securities

1,919,692

-

-

-

1,919,692

Derivative financial instruments

5,351,023

-

-

-

5,351,023

Assets pledged as collateral

-

Loans and advances to customers

-

Investment securities

-

Other assets (excluding prepayments)

3,787,423
106,633,357

7,270,715

110,420,780

92,364,499
-

-

3,787,423

-

92,364,499

-

106,633,357

250,516

-

250,516

277,687,425
-

-

395,378,919
-

Deposits from banks

-

-

-

47,999,349

47,999,349

Deposits from customers

-

-

-

291,160,817

291,160,817

-

-

-

-

4,012,635

4,012,635

-

-

343,355,049

343,453,381

Derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities (excl. accrued expenses)

280,580
280,580
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4.1 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. This arises
principally from the Group’s loans and advances to customers and banks, and investment debt securities. For risk management reporting purposes the bank
considers and consolidates all elements of credit risk exposure.
4.1.1 Management of Credit Risk
The credit policy is the bedrock of the credit risk management and is predicated on the Group’s business strategy and return objective through well pre-defined
target market, risk acceptance criteria and stress testing. Based on Board approval, independent risk in conjuction with the business unit set and monitor limits.

To manage the credit process with predictable results, the Group has a dyamic and interactive three phased approach:
i. Portfolio strategy and planning: Where the Group defines desired financial results and strategies required to achieve those results. Target market is part of the
strategy that identifies the acceptable profile of customers and the products the Group propose to offer;
ii) Credit Origination and Maintenance: Where the Group creates and maintains transactions and portfolios with characteristics that are consistent with institutional
strategies; and
iii) Performance Assessment and Reporting: Where the Group monitors the performance for continual improvement.
System capture of credit information and documentation review is another critical attribute of financial analysis which facilitates credit monitoring done both on
obligor and portfolio basis.

Methodology for risk rating
The Risk Rating Process is the end-to-end process for deriving Obligor Risk Rating (ORR’s) and Facility Risk Rating (FRR’s). These ratings are derived as part of
the overall risk rating process that involves the use of risk rating models, supplemental guidelines, support adjustments, collateral adjustments, process controls, as
well as any other defined processes that the Group undertakes in order to arrive at ORR’s and FRR’s. The required inputs into the model for deriving the risk rating
are the obligor's financial statements. The models are statistical models, which are revalidated periodically by the Credit and Operational Risk Analytics Group of
Citigroup, which is based in New York. The revalidation had no impact but ensured consistency of the rating process.

The Obligor Risk Rating (ORR) represents the probability that an obligor will default within a one-year time horizon. Risk ratings for obligors are assigned on a scale
of 1 to 10, with sub-grades, where ‘1’ is the best quality risk and ‘7’ is the worst for performing and accruing obligors that are not in default. ORR “9” and “10” rating
categories indicate that the obligor is in default (ORR “8” is applicable only to adverse classifications resulting solely from cross-border events).

The Facility Risk Rating (FRR) approximates a ‘Loss Norm’ for each facility, and is the product of two components: the Default Probability of the Obligor, i.e. the
final ORR, and the Loss Given Default (‘LGD’). FRR’s are assigned on a scale of 1 to 10, with sub-grades, where ‘1’ is the best quality risk and ‘7’ is the worst for
performing or accruing facilities. The 9 and 10 rating categories indicate facilities that have been placed on non-accrual status.

The Obligor Limit Rating (OLR) represents a longer-term (beyond one year) view of an obligor’s credit quality. The OLR is derived from the final ORR and considers
a range of factors, such as quality of management and strategy, nature of industry, and regulatory environment, among other factors.

As part of the risk management process, the Group assigns numeric risk ratings to its Obligors based on quantitative and qualitative assessment of the obligor and
facility. These risk ratings are reviewed at least annually or more often if material events related to the obligor or facility warrant.
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4.1.2 Credit Risk Measurement
The Group's credit facilities reflect the potential maximum credit exposure or loss to counter-party for a particular product and exposure type. In furtherance of this
objective, we consistently ensure the Group’s business strategy and exposure appetite are aligned. The key attributes of our credit policy are also consistent with
the Citigroup Institutional Clients Group (ICG) Principles and Policy Framework. This policy framework dictates best international practices in Risk Management,
including credit risk.
To enable consistent monitoring of exposure and risk:
i) All credit exposures must be captured in the credit systems - irrespective of absolute size of exposure, duration, location, counterparty, authorization level
obtained or perceived economic risk.
ii) Credit facility amounts must capture exposure (the maximum potential for loss to an obligor or counterparty). Risk adjustments are reflected for obligor limits and
in other reporting.
iii) All potential credit relationships should have a proper account opened in the name of the obligor. For current credit system integration, the client should have a
Global Finance Customer Identifier (GFCID) created.
iv) Every business unit must maintain adequate controls to ensure compliance with all facility terms and conditions established in conjunction with Independent Risk.
v) Single name triggers prevent excessive concentrations of loss to a single name, and together form the basis for compliance with regulatory rules such as legal
lending limits.
vi) Obligor limits are the basis for credit portfolio managers to prevent concentrations of loss to any one obligor or relationship. Business units must escalate any
potential breach of a limit as provided for in the Citigroup ICG Risk Manual.
vii) Credit facilities and the ability to manage the exposure should be in place prior to executing any new business.
viii) All credit relationships should be reviewed annually, at a minimum, unless otherwise duly extended, where appropriate.
ix) Risk ratings must be established for all obligors and facilities using the Citigroup approved risk rating methodology.
Credit exposure

Credit risk is measured by the total facilities and exposure to the obligor which consist of outstanding and unused committed facility amounts. Financial assets and
other financial facilities constitute the primary offering of the Group. The offering is based on a detailed credit review process which involves analysis of both
quantitative and qualitative factors. This includes risk rating of the obligor and matching of the obligor’s qualitative and quantitative attributes to pre-defined Target
Market and Risk Acceptance Criteria, to determine the optimal product and credit exposure.

Based on the credit review, each obligor is assigned an ORR. The ORR rating is an assessment of the probability of default of a specific obligor within a one-year
horizon and is derived from either the Debt Rating Model or Scorecard. The Scorecard is used if the obligor does not have enough financial information. The
baseline ORR factors both quantitative and qualitative inputs. The FRR rating is an assessment of the likely loss characteristics for an individual facility, given the
probability of default of a specific obligor (product of the final ORR and the Loss Given Default (LGD)).
The Group’s internal ratings scale and mapping to external ratings are listed below:
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Internal Rating

Description of the grade

External rating: Standard &
Poor’s equivalent

External rating: Moody’s
equivalent

1-4

Investment Grade

AAA to BBB-

Aaa to Baa3

5-6

Non Investment Grade

BB+ to B-

Ba1 to B3

7

Speculative Grade

CCC+ to CCC-

Caa1 to Caa3

9 -10

Default

Unrated*

Unrated
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The internal ratings are assigned on a scale of 1-10 (with sub-grades), defined as follows:
• 1 is the best quality risk for obligors not in default
• 7- is the worst quality for obligors not in default
• 9 and 10 are ratings assigned to obligors that are in default and have non-performing facilities
The internal rating classifications reflect the risk profile, which dictates approval level, exposure appetite and level of monitoring required. Based on this, the
investment grade represents the lowest risk profile while the speculative grade reflects the highest risk of a performing obligor. Default is a remedial non performing
exposure. All internal ratings are cross referenced to S&P and Moody’s as an effective calibration to external market data.
Monitoring
Once the credit transactions have been approved, there is an established process for monitoring the risk exposure and maintaining it at acceptable levels. These
risk management processes include:
• Annual review of facilities which will involve revalidation of exposure limits, review of risk ratings and general account performance during the review period;
• At a minimum, quarterly credit customer calls including approving credit officers;
• Review of the monthly and quarterly portfolio trends; and
• Documentation review to ensure all required documentation is in place.

4.1.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies
The Group as part of its portfolio monitoring functions routinely defines concentration limits, with the goal of establishing a well-diversified portfolio where expected
return on risk capital should be commensurate with the inherent risk therein. Single name triggers prevent excessive concentrations of loss to a single name, and
together form the basis for compliance with regulatory rules such as legal lending limits. Concentration limits are monitored on a monthly basis.
Some other specific control and mitigation measures are outlined below.
Authorizing level approval limit
The Group’s internal credit approval limits are a function of experience and credit exposure in line with the Citigroup ICG Risk Manual requirement and the
authorities delegated by the board. However, the board approved limits are listed below:
Authorizing Level

Approval Limit

Board

N5billion and above for non cash collateralized facilities (for ratification)

Board Credit Committee (see note below)

1. N800million – N2.2billion for non cash-collateralised facilities (for noting).
2. N2.2billion - N5billion for non cash-collateralised facilities.
3. Over N5billion subject to final ratification by the Board, after board review of the full credit approval packages.

Management Credit
Committee

1. All fully cash-collateralised facilities.
2. Up to N2.2billion for non cash collateralized facilities

Note: Where the Board Credit Committee’s approval for a non cash-collateralised facility is required, which is over and above any cash collateralised facilities to the
same obligor, the Board Credit Committee must be informed of the total facilities granted, i.e. inclusive of cash collateralised facilities.
The key feature of credit approval in the Group is the fact that no one person can singly approve a credit, irrespective of the limit.
Exposure to credit risk is also managed through periodic calls on the borrowers to ascertain operating performance and determine their continued ability to meet all
obligations as and when due.
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Collateral
The Group focuses primarily on the cash-flows of the borrower for its repayments. The general principle is that repayment should come from the transactions
financed or other operating cash-flows. The Group maintains a policy of not lending in an inferior position, without proper approvals (and only in exceptional
circumstances), or where it is at a disadvantage to other lenders as regards seniority of claim in a default scenario.

During the annual credit review process, searches are conducted to verify that the Group is not lending in an inferior position. In instances where pre-existing
charges exist on the customer’s assets, the Group generally demands a pari-passu ranking with other lenders. However, based on the credit profile assessment on
a case by case basis, the Board Credit Committee may also request for additional collateral for credit enhancement.

For term loans for the acquisition of specific assets, the Group generally takes a charge over the assets financed by the term loan.
As a general principle, all credits are reviewed and approved based broadly on the under listed key factors:
- The operations of the Borrower/Obligor falling within the approved target market.
- Strong financial profile with emphasis on present and future cash flow which determines the capacity of the operations to meet debt obligations.
- Review and assessment of Borrower/Obligor management and sponsors.
- Credit history track record.
- Economic/industry trends.
- For an international company where the Group has recourse to branches or subsidiaries of Citibank outside Nigeria, or where the exposure is secured against
guarantees, cash or other types of collateral, the Bank may reserve the right not to insist on obtaining a local security ranking pari-passu with other local lenders, in
view of the superior access it maintains through its global affiliates to the parent company seniors.

Other descriptions of colaterals.
1. Floating charge which covers all the assets of the company and the value can change in the normal course of business e.g. stocks, receivables etc.
2. All assets debenture which is a fixed and floating charge on the assets of the company.
3. Fixed charge which covers specicifc assets of the company.
4. Mortgage debenture in which a charge is taken on land or real estates as well as other assets.
5. Legal mortgage in which a charge is taken on other assets.
The Group implements the above guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral or credit risk mitigation. The principal collateral types for loans and
advances are:
The Group's summary policy on collateral for short term exposure is as summarized below
- If the practice of the obligor has been to secure the overdrafts or other facilities for other lenders, then Citi will join the consortium in order to retain a pari-pasu
position with other lenders
- When security is obtained in the form of a floating charge or all asset debentures, there is no reliance placed on this and it is considered merely a leverage or
negotiation tool in the event of adverse development i.e treated as support not security.
- Given the minimal reliance on such security, the Group will not normally request insurance policies and valuation of the assets (excluding land and buildings)
unless unless this is required in the inter-creditor agreement and is enforced by all lenders. Land and buildings taken as support under charge will be valued at
establishment of the charge (but not thereafter) and insured.
- In certain exceptional cases, the Group may request other forms of security such as assignment and domiciliation of receivables where reliance is placed on the
security as a primary way out.
- For secured lending and reverse repurchase transactions, cash or securities;
- For commercial lending, cash or charges over real estate properties, inventory and trade receivables;
- Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities.
The Group also obtains guarantees from parent companies for loans to their subsidiaries in Nigeria.

The total collateral held for loans and advances and other financial facilities as at 31 December 2015 was N5,378,940,000 (2014: N4,543,617,000).
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Master netting arrangements
The Group restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into Master netting arrangements with counterparties with which it undertakes a significant volume of
transactions. Master netting arrangements do not generally result in an offset of balance sheet assets and liabilities, as transactions are usually settled on a gross
basis. However, the credit risk associated with favourable contracts is reduced by a master netting arrangement to the extent that if a default occurs, all amounts
with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis.
Group
Related amounts not offset in the statement of
financial position

2015

Financial assets subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements

Loans and receivables

Financial liabilities subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements

Deposits/ Borrowings

Gross amount
of financial Net amounts of
Gross amount liabilities offset financial assets
in the presented in the
of recognised
statement of
statement of
financial asset
financial financial position
position
N'000
96,409

Gross amount
of recognised
financial
liabilities

206,637

N'000
-

Gross amount
of financial
assets offset
in the
statement of
financial
position

N'000
96,409

Net amounts of
financial
liabilities
presented in the
statement
financial of
position

-

206,637

Financial
instruments Cash collateral
(including non
received
cash collateral)

N'000
206,637

N'000
-

Net amount

N'000
(110,228)

Related amounts not offset in the statement of
financial position
Financial
instruments Cash collateral
(including non
received
cash collateral

96,409

-

Net amount

110,228

Group
Related amounts not offset in
the statement of financial position

2014

Financial assets subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements

Loans and receivables

Gross amount
of financial Net amounts of
Gross amount liabilities offset financial assets
in the presented in the
of recognised
statement of
statement of
financial asset
financial financial position
position
11,126,038

-

11,126,038

Financial
instruments Cash collateral
(including non
received
cash collateral

18,000

-

Net amount

11,108,038

Related amounts not offset in the
statement of financial position
Financial liabilities subject to offsetting,
enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar agreements

Deposits/ Borrowings

Gross amount of
recognised
financial liabilities

18,000

Gross amount of
financial assets
offset in the
statement of
financial position

Net amounts of
financial liabilities
presented in the
statement of
financial position

-

18,000

42

Financial
instruments
(including non
cash collateral

11,126,038

Cash collateral
received

-

Net amount

(11,108,038)
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4.1.4 Impairment and provisioning policies

The internal rating systems described above focus more on credit-quality mapping from the inception of the lending and investment activities. In contrast,
impairment allowances are recognised for financial reporting purposes only for losses that have been incurred at the balance sheet date based on objective
evidence of impairment. Due to different methodologies applied the amount of incurred credit losses may differ from the criteria set out in the Prudential Guidelines
for licensed banks and any additional provisions are taken in line with the Prudential guidelines.

The impairment allowance shown in the statement of financial position at year-end is derived from each of the internal rating grades. However, the largest
component of the impairment allowance comes from the default grade.The table below shows the percentage of the Group’s credit exposure items that include
financial assets, financial guarantees, loan commitments and other credit related obligations and the associated impairment allowance for each of the Group’s
internal rating categories.

Group rating

Description of the grade

1-4

Investment Grade

5-6
7
8 -10

Non Investment Grade
Speculative Grade
Default

2015
Credit
Exposure (%)

2014
Impairment Credit Exposure
(%)
(%)

42

-

48

-

48
10
0
100

100
100

46
6
0
100

100
100

4.1.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements
Credit risk exposures relating to financial assets are as follows:
2015

2014

N’000

N’000

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria

103,325,670

33,289,043

Loans and advances to banks

158,371,780

150,740,892

12,952,024

1,919,692

6,662

5,351,023

Trading securities
- Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments
Assets pledged as collateral
Loans and advances to customers

4,041,522

3,787,423

94,489,371

92,364,499

52,432,287

106,255,745

Investment securities
- Debt securities
Other assets

143,852

250,515

425,763,169

393,958,833

Credit risk exposures relating to other credit commitments at gross amounts are as follows:
Bonds and guarantees

13,772,405

27,321,100

Loan commitments

20,923,394

35,204,970

Other credit related obligations (note 36.2)

16,285,564

29,886,878

50,981,364

92,412,948

476,744,533

486,371,780

At 31 December
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The table above shows a worse‐case scenario of credit risk exposure to the Group at 31 December 2015 and 2014, without taking account of any collateral held or
other credit enhancements attached. For financial assets, the exposures set out above are based on amounts as reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

As shown above, 59.6% (2014: 58.1%) of the total maximum exposure is derived from loans and advances to banks and customers; 12.5% (2014: 25.4%)
represents exposure to investments in debt securities.
Management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain minimal exposure of credit risk to the Group resulting from both its loan and advances
portfolio and debt securities based on the following:
- 89% of the loans and advances portfolio is categorised in the top two grades of the internal rating system (2014:92% );
- 93.36% of the loans and advances portfolio is considered to be neither past due nor impaired (2014: 99.85% ); and
- The Group has stringent selection process for granting loans and advances.

4.1.6 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
Geographical sectors
The following table analyses the Group’s credit exposure (without taking into account any collateral held or other credit support), as categorised by geographical
region as at 31 December 2015. For this table, the Group has allocated exposures to regions based on the country of domicile of its counterparties.
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2015
Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers

Nigeria

USA

Europe/Other

Total

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

103,325,670

-

22,296,604

-

96,938,696

94,489,371

-

12,952,024

-

103,325,670

39,136,481

158,371,780

-

94,489,371

-

12,952,024

Trading securities
- Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments

16

25

Investment securities
- Debt securities
Assets pledged as collateral
Other assets

6,621

52,432,287

-

4,041,522

-

6,662
-

-

52,432,287

-

4,041,522

143,852

-

-

143,852

289,681,356

96,938,711

39,143,102

425,763,169

Bonds and guarantees

13,772,405

-

-

Loan commitments

20,923,394

-

-

20,923,394

Other credit related obligations

16,285,564

-

-

16,285,564

50,981,364

-

-

50,981,364

13,772,405

At 31 December 2015

340,662,719

96,938,711

39,143,102

476,744,533

Collateral held as at 31 December 2015

5,378,940.45

-

-

5,378,940

Nigeria

USA

Europe/Other

Total

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

2014
Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria

33,289,043

Loans and advances to banks

2,645,464

Loans and advances to customers

92,364,180

-

-

136,636,612

33,289,043

11,458,817
-

150,740,893

320

92,364,499

Trading securities
- Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments

1,919,692

-

-

1,919,692

5,349,425

296

1,303

5,351,024

Investment securities
- Debt securities
Assets pledged as collateral
Other assets

-

106,255,745

-

-

106,255,745

3,787,423

-

-

3,787,423

250,515

-

-

250,515

245,861,485

136,636,908

11,460,440

393,958,833

Bonds and guarantees

27,321,100

-

-

Loan commitments

35,204,970

-

-

35,204,970

Other credit related obligations

29,886,878

-

-

29,886,878

92,412,948

-

-

92,412,948

At 31 December 2014
Collateral held as at 31 December 2014
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-

338,274,433

136,636,908
-

4,543,617
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Industry sectors
The following table analyses the Group’s credit exposure (without taking into account any collateral held or other credit support), as categorised by industry sectors
of the Group's counterparties.

N'000

Financial
Institutions
N'000

Cash and balances with
Central Bank of Nigeria

-

103,325,670

-

Loans and advances to
banks

-

158,371,780

Loans and advances to
customers

38,149,785

- Debt securities
Derivative financial
instruments

2015

N'000

General
commerce
N'000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

12,952,024

-

6,637

Manufacturing

Transport and
Communication
N'000
N'000

Government

Oil and Gas

Other

Total

N'000

N'000

-

-

103,325,670

-

-

-

158,371,780

18,804,124

23,012,423

14,523,039

-

94,489,371

-

-

-

-

12,952,024

-

-

-

25

6,662

Trading securities

Investment securities
- Debt securities
Assets pledged as
collateral
Other assets

Bonds and guarantees

-

-

52,432,287

-

-

-

-

52,432,287

-

-

4,041,522

-

-

-

-

4,041,522

(464,987)

82,740

477,931

-

-

30,912

17,255

143,852

37,684,799

261,786,827

69,903,765

18,804,124

23,012,423

14,553,951

17,280

425,763,169

1,137,110

9,016,043

-

586,823

1,148,144

93,163

1,791,123

13,772,405

Loan commitments

12,050,697

851,064

-

-

5,923,837

26,669

2,071,127

20,923,394

Other credit related
obligations

10,418,352

-

-

770,664

2,738,712

642,412

16,285,564

2,302,247

7,842,646

2,858,543

4,504,662

50,981,364

1,715,424

-

23,606,159

9,867,107

At 31 December 2015

61,290,957

271,653,934

69,903,765

21,106,372

30,855,069

17,412,494

4,521,942

476,744,533

Collateral held as at 31
December 2015

3,825,375

-

-

17,836

33,000

1,379,303

123,426

5,378,940

Maximum Exposure

48,865,744

154,941,390

-

20,532,830

32,234,046

14,523,039

6,635,408

Minimum Exposure

27,506,550

6,535,302

-

18,128,001

23,012,423

7,866,953

-
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N'000

Financial
Institutions
N'000

Cash and balances with
Central Bank of Nigeria

-

33,289,043

-

Loans and advances to
banks

-

150,740,893

Loans and advances to
customers

39,284,760

2014

N'000

General
commerce
N'000

-

-

-

-

1,828,311

-

-

-

704,022

Manufacturing

Transport and
Communication
N'000
N'000

Government

Oil and Gas

Other

Total

N'000

N'000

-

-

33,289,043

-

-

-

150,740,893

18,189,253

25,855,473

6,735,014

471,690

92,364,499

1,919,692

-

-

-

206,658

4,440,344

-

-

-

Trading securities
- Debt securities
Derivative financial
instruments

-

1,919,692
-

5,351,024

Investment securities
- Debt securities
Assets pledged as
collateral
Other assets

Bonds and guarantees

-

-

106,255,745

-

-

-

-

106,255,745

-

-

3,787,423

-

-

-

-

3,787,423

39,988,782

186,064,904

11,888
116,415,091

18,189,253

25,855,473

238,627
6,973,641

471,690

250,515
393,958,833

2,406,837

5,709,558

-

564,563

16,980,196

941,037

718,909

27,321,100

Loan commitments

13,114,961

4,941,000

-

651,001

16,378,500

-

119,508

35,204,970

Other credit related
obligations

23,112,599

-

-

371,727

4,984,755

1,031,970

385,827

29,886,878

38,634,397

10,650,558

-

1,587,291

38,343,451

1,973,007

1,224,243

92,412,948

At 31 December 2014

78,623,179

196,715,462

116,415,091

19,776,544

64,198,924

8,946,648

1,695,933

486,371,781

Collateral held as at 31
December 2014

3,158,000

-

-

-

-

1,385,617

-

4,543,617

46,924,536
9,115

152,569,203
14,390,182

-

18,426,983
7,983,716

30,287,730
21,096,626

8,638,128
2,405,448

490,485
397,597

Maximum Exposure
Minimum Exposure

Collateral Held as security for loans Sectoral breakdown
Other
General Commerce
Manufacturing
Oil & Gas
Telecommunications

Collateral type
breakdown
Cash
Fixed & Floating debenture
Floating debenture
Legal Mortgage
Legal Mortgage / Cash
Listed Equity Securities

78

2015
N'000
123,426
1,379,303
3,825,375
33,000
17,836

2014
N'000
1,385,617
3,158,000
-

5,378,940

4,543,617

2015

2014

N'000
206,637
4,449,196
225,000
405,000
93,107
-

N'000
18,000
3,306,657
225,000
758,300
89,317
146,343

5,378,940

4,543,617
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4.1.7 Loans and Advances
Loans and advances are summarised as follows:
Analysis by portfolio distribution and risk rating
2015

Neither past due or impaired
Individually impaired
Gross
Less: Allowance for impairment
Net
Allowance for impairment:
Individually impaired
Portfolio allowance
Total

2014

Loans and
advances to
customers
N'000
96,137,294
7,477,978
103,615,272
(9,125,901)
94,489,371

Loans and
advances to
banks
N'000
158,540,217
158,540,217
(168,437)
158,371,780

7,477,978
1,647,923
9,125,901

168,437
168,437

N'000
254,677,511
7,477,978
262,155,489
(9,294,338)
252,861,152

Loans and
advances to
customers
N'000
93,370,525
78,866
93,449,391
(1,084,892)
92,364,499

Loans and
advances to
banks
N'000
150,830,516
150,830,516
(89,624)
150,740,892

N'000
244,201,041
78,866
244,279,907
(1,174,516)
243,105,391

7,477,978
1,816,359
9,294,338

78,866
1,006,026
1,084,892

89,624
89,624

78,866
1,095,650
1,174,516

Total

Total

The total impairment for loans and advances is N9,294 million (2014: N1,175 million) of which N7.478 million (2014: 78.9 million) represents the individually
impaired loans and the remaining amount of N1,816 million (2014: N1,096 million) represents the portfolio allowance. Further information of the impairment
allowance for loans and advances to banks and to customers is provided in Notes 17 and 21 respectively.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include significant financial difficulty, default on the facility or probability that the obligor will enter
bankruptcy, the disappearance of an active market for a security, or other observable data relating to a group of assets such as adverse changes in the payment
status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the group.
All other financial assets are neither past due nor impaired
Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired
The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and advances that were neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to the internal rating system adopted
by the Group.
Loans and advances to customers: Corporate

Description of the grade

Group's rating

Investment Grade
Non Investment Grade
Speculative Grade

1-4
5-6
7

Overdraft
N'000
14,998,469
10,984,147
3,866,402
29,849,018

2015
Term loans
N'000
29,240,258
29,318,971
6,081,124
64,640,353

Total
N'000
44,238,727
40,303,118
9,947,526
94,489,371

Overdraft
N'000
13,385,400
16,457,237
2,652,011
32,494,648

2014
Term loans
N'000
30,750,754
26,627,996
2,491,101
59,869,851

Total
N'000
44,136,154
43,085,233
5,143,112
92,364,499

Loans and advances individually impaired
The breakdown of the gross amount of individually impaired loans and advances by class, along with the fair value of related collateral held by the Group as
security, are as follows:
Loans and advances to customers

Gross amount
Impairment
Fair value of collateral

Loans and
advances to
customers
N'000
7,477,978
(7,477,978)
100,000
100,000

2015
Loans and
advances to
bank
N'000
-

Total
N'000
7,477,978
(7,477,978)
100,000
100,000

48

Loans and
advances to
customers
N'000
78,866
(78,866)
-

2014
Loans and
advances to
bank
N'000
-

Total
N'000
78,866
(78,866)
-
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4.1.8 Analysis of financial assets by credit rating
2015
Group's rating
Description of the grade

1-4

Loans and advances to customers

7
Non
Investment
Grade

9 -10
Default

Total

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

-

103,325,670

-

-

103,325,670

140,357,104

17,455,477

559,199

-

158,371,780

44,238,727

40,303,118

9,947,526

-

94,489,371

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks

5-6

Investment Non Investment
Grade
Grade

Trading securities
- Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments

12,952,024

-

-

12,952,024

6,637

25

-

-

6,662

Investment securities
- Debt securities

-

52,432,287

-

-

52,432,287

Assets pledged as collateral

-

4,041,522

-

-

4,041,522

Other assets

-

143,852

-

-

143,852

184,602,468

230,653,976

10,506,725

-

425,763,170

5-6

7
Non
Investment
Grade

9 -10

2014
Group's rating
Description of the grade

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers

1-4

Investment Non Investment
Grade
Grade

Default

Total

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

-

33,289,043

-

-

33,289,043

133,812,817

16,928,076

-

-

150,740,893

44,136,154

43,085,233

5,143,112

-

92,364,499

Trading securities
- Debt securities
Derivative financial instruments

1,919,692

-

-

1,919,692

10,041

4,196

-

-

14,237

Investment securities
- Debt securities

80

-

106,255,745

-

-

106,255,745

Assets pledged as collateral

-

3,787,423

-

-

3,787,423

Other assets

-

11,888

-

-

11,888

177,959,012

205,281,296

5,143,112

-

388,383,420
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4.2 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises both
currency risk and price risk. Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. Price risk is the earnings risk from changes in interest rates, and equity and commodity prices. Price risk arises in non-trading portfolios, as well as
in trading portfolios.
Market risks are measured in accordance with established standards to ensure consistency across businesses and the ability to aggregate risk. The Group is
required to establish, with approval from independent market risk management, a market risk limit framework for identified risk factors that clearly defines approved
risk profiles which are within the parameters of Citigroup’s overall risk appetite. In all cases, the Group’s Treasury department is ultimately responsible for the
market risks of the Group and for remaining within its defined limits.
4.2.1 Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign Exchange risk is the exposure of the Group's financial condition to adverse movements in exchange rates. The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
primarily through its assets, managing customers' deposits and through acting as an intermediary in foreign exchange transactions.
Foreign Exchange Risk Management
The Group has a robust risk management system that identifies, measures and mitigates the foreign currency exchange rate risk on its financial position and cash
flows. Apart from regulatory imposed limits such as the net open position limit (OPL) that helps to limit these exposures, the Group has market risk limits such as:

- Individual overnight position limits for individual currency positions, which limits exchange rate risk in all currencies that the Group has exposures.
- Cross currency funding limits (CCFL) that restricts the proportion of local currency assets funded by foreign currency liabilities.
- Daily mark-to-market mechanism that revalues all currency positions daily, ensuring that foreign currency positions are valued at current market price and not at
cost.
- Trading Management Action Trigger (MAT): This limits, on a realized or mark–to-market basis, the maximum loss that your total currency position can make
before escalation is made to the Group’s management and the positions liquidated or effectively hedged.
Where there are available-for-sale securities denominated in currencies other than the local currency (Naira), the Group could mitigate the change in fair value
attributable to foreign-exchange rate movements in those securities. Typically, the instrument employed is a forward foreign-exchange contracts.
The table below summarizes the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at 31 December 2015. Included in the table are the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by currency.
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At 31 December 2015

Dollar

GBP

Euro

Others

Total

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Cash and balances with Central bank of Nigeria 102,965,781
Loans and advances to banks
16,579,271
Loans and advances to customers
59,308,720
Trading securities
12,952,024
Derivative financial instruments
6,662
Investment securities
53,058,829
Assets pledged as collateral
4,041,522
Other assets
110,310

341,580
130,416,672
35,143,793
24,965

1,609
639,090
-

16,700
10,675,497
36,858
8,361

61,251
217

Total financial assets

249,023,120

165,927,010

640,699

10,737,416

61,468 426,389,713

Liabilities
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities(excluding accruals)

214,925
183,877,623
6,466
7,085,157

46,241
162,878,307
691,798

91,436
509,129
5,708

99
10,884,086
1,600

770,983
418,282
35,176 358,184,320
6,466
7,784,263

Total financial liabilities

191,184,170

163,616,345

606,273

10,885,785

57,838,950

2,310,665

34,426

(148,369)

Assets

Net financial position
Credit commitments and other financial facilities

At 31 December 2014

Naira

11,868,821

36,880,628

6,451

(391,990)
29,121

366,746,031
59,643,682
50,981,363

Dollar

GBP

Euro

Others

Total

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Cash and balances with Central bank of Nigeria
32,881,591
Loans and advances to banks
658,718
Loans and advances to customers
70,262,542
Trading securities
1,919,692
Derivative financial instruments
30,195
Investment securities
106,633,357
Assets pledged as collateral
3,787,423
Other assets
198,282

359,811
144,475,516
20,970,780
5,320,556
18,179

26,429
747,666
196,876
64

21,214
4,801,475
934,302
272
33,491

33,289,044
57,518 150,740,893
92,364,500
1,919,692
5,351,024
106,633,357
3,787,423
500
250,516

Total financial assets

171,144,842

971,035

5,790,754

58,018 394,336,448

Assets

Naira

2,196,342

453,458

103,325,670
158,371,780
94,489,372
12,952,024
6,662
53,058,829
4,041,522
143,852

216,371,799

Liabilities
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial instruments

103,594

47,826,481

69,267

7

118,897,884

165,550,183

907,775

5,767,733

240,696

969

2,250

-

-

-

-

3,556,957

584,752

5,523

47,651

122,799,131

213,962,386

984,815

5,852,055

93,572,668

(42,817,544)

(13,780)

(61,301)

62,728,910

30,102

Other borrowed funds
Other liabilities
Total financial liabilities
Net financial position
Credit commitments and other financial facilities

82

22,119,728

51

-

36,665

7,241,146

47,999,349

37,242 291,160,817
280,580
-

-

37,242
20,776
293,063

4,012,635
343,453,381
50,883,066
92,412,948
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Foreign Exchange Sensitivity Analysis
The group is an international entity that operates and has exposures to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, mainly to the US dollar, UK
pound and the Euros.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign operations.
Instruments such as foreign currency denominated loans and securities, furture cash flows in foreign currencies arising from foreign exchange transactions, foreign
currency denominated debt etc. are all exposed to foreign exchange risk.
The fair values of the Group and company's monetary items (including financial investments and derivative financial instruments) that have foreign currency
exposure at 31st December are shown below;
2015
2014
31st December, 2015
Dollar
GBP
Euro
Dollar
GBP
Euro
N'000
N'000
N'000
N'000
N'000
N'000
Cash and balances with Central Bank of
(1,717)
(5)
(77)
(1,966)
(93)
(95)
Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks

(655,525)

(2,168)

(49,265)

(789,484)

(2,618)

(21,588)

Loans and advances to customers

(176,646)

-

(170)

(114,594)

(689)

(4,201)

(29,074)

-

(1)

(444)

(99)

-

(151)

Derivative financial assets
Other assets (excl. prepayments)
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial liabilities
Other liabilities (excl. accruals)
Foreign currency exposure on net
monetary items

-

-

-

(125)

-

232

310

-

261,347

243

818,690

1,727

50,227

904,646

3,178

25,932

-

-

-

5

8

165

3,477

19

7

3,195

19

214

(11,614)

(117)

279

233,976

48

276

52

-
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The value of these instruments fluctuate with changes in the level of volatility of currency exchange rates or foreign interest rates.
2014

2015
Dollar

GBP

Euro

Dollar

GBP

Euro

Sensitivity @ 30% increase

49,778,103

192,210

3,247,561

51,343,452

291,310

1,737,226

Sensitivity @ 40% increase

66,370,804

256,280

4,330,082

74,424,625

400,920

2,256,713

Sensitivity @ 5% decrease

(8,296,350)

(32,035)

(541,260)

(9,303,078)

(50,115)

(282,089)

Sensitivity @ 10% decrease

(16,592,701)

(64,070)

(1,082,520)

(18,606,156)

(100,230)

(564,178)

There are other foreign currencies which are not significant to the balance sheet as at December 2015
The sensitivity analysis below is prepared based on assumptions that all other variables are kept constant while the exchange rate increases or decreases. These
sensitivity analyses impact profit or loss.
4.2.2 Price Risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Group
assess the potential impact that fluctuations of idenfied market risk factors would have on the Group's income and the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
Price Risk Management
Non Trading Portfolios
Interest Rate Risk
One of Group’s primary business functions is providing financial products that meet the needs of its customers. Loans and deposits are tailored to the customers’
requirements with regard to tenor, index, and rate type. Net interest revenue (NIR) is the difference between the yield earned on the non-trading portfolio assets
(including customer loans) and the rate paid on the liabilities (including customer deposits or wholesale borrowings). NIR is affected by changes in the level of
interest rates. For example:
- At any given time, there may be an unequal amount of assets and liabilities which are subject to market rates due to maturation or repricing. Whenever the
amount of liabilities subject to repricing exceeds the amount of assets subject to repricing, a company is considered “liability sensitive.” In this case, a company’s
NIR will deteriorate in a rising rate environment.
- The assets and liabilities of a company may reprice at different speeds or mature at different times, subjecting both “liability-sensitive” and “asset sensitive”
companies to NIR sensitivity from changing interest rates. For example, a company may have a large amount of loans that are subject to repricing at a particular
period, but the majority of deposits are not scheduled for repricing until the following period. That company would suffer from NIR deterioration if interest rates were
to fall.
NIR in the current period is the result of customer transactions and the related contractual rates originated in prior periods as well as new transactions in the current
period. Those prior-period transactions will be impacted by changes in rates on floating-rate assets and liabilities in the current period.
Due to the long-term nature of the portfolios, NIR will vary from quarter to quarter even assuming no change in the shape or level of the yield curve as the assets
and liabilities reprice. These repricings are a function of implied forward interest rates, which represent the overall market’s unbiased estimate of future interest
rates and incorporate possible changes in the overnight rate as well as the shape of the yield curve.
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Interest Rate Risk Governance
The risks in the Group’s non-traded portfolios are estimated using a common set of standards that define, measure, limit and report the market risk. Each business
is required to establish, with approval from independent market risk management, a market risk limit framework that clearly defines approved risk profiles and is
within the parameters of the Group’s overall risk appetite.
In all cases, the businesses are ultimately responsible for the market risks they take and for remaining within their defined limits. These limits are monitored by
independent market risk, country and business ALCOs and financial control.
Interest Rate Risk Measurement

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of financial instruments
because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits.
ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits and is assisted by Treasury in its day-to-day monitoring activities.
The Group’s principal measure of risk to net interest revenue is interest rate exposure (IRE). IRE measures the change in expected net interest revenue in each
currency resulting solely from unanticipated changes in interest rates. Factors such as changes in volumes, spreads, margins and the impact of prior-period pricing
decisions are not captured by IRE. IRE assumes that businesses make no additional changes in pricing or balances in response to the unanticipated rate changes.
IRE mesures the potential impact on net interest revenue over a specified period, for the accrual positions, from a defined parallel shift in the yield curve. It is a
forward-looking measure, analogous to factor sensitivity on the trading portfolios. The IRE measures the potential change of interest rate margin of the Bank for 100
basis points parallel change of interest rate curve in the horizon.

The impact of changing prepayment rates on loan portfolios is incorporated into the results. For example, in the declining interest rate scenarios, it is assumed that
mortgage portfolios prepay faster and income is reduced. In addition, in a rising interest rate scenario, portions of the deposit portfolio are assumed to experience
rate increases that may be less than the change in market interest rates.

Sensitivity analysis interest rate risk
The management of interest rate risk against interest rate gap limits is supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities to
specific interest rate scenarios. The sensitivity analysis is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the profit or loss for the period, based on the
floating rate non–trading financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 December 2015. The sensitivity analysis on the non-trading portfolio is measured by the
change in DV01(Dollar value of 01) that measures the change in value of the non-trading accrual portfolio due to a 100 basis point parallel move in the interest
rates. At 31 December 2015, a 100 basis point parallel increase in the interest rates with all other variables held constant would have resulted to a total loss of
N238,740 (2014: N2,562,000). On the available-for-sale investment securities, a 100 basis point parallel increase in the interest rates with all other variables held
constant, as at 31 December 2015, would have resulted to an other comprehensive income loss of N7,818,735 (2014: N11,071,500).
Mitigation of Risk
All financial institutions’ financial performance is subject to some degree of risk due to changes in interest rates. In order to manage these risks effectively, the
Group may modify pricing on new customer loans and deposits, enter into transactions with other institutions or enter into forward exchange contracts that have the
opposite risk exposures. Therefore, the Group regularly assesses the viability of strategies to reduce unacceptable risks to earnings and implements such
strategies when the Group believes those actions are prudent. As information becomes available, the Group formulates strategies aimed at protecting earnings
from the potential negative effects of changes in interest rates.
The Group employs additional measurements, including stress testing on the impact of non-linear interest rate movements on the value of the balance sheet; the
analysis of portfolio duration, volatility and the potential impact of the change in the spread between different market indices.
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Trading Portfolios
Price risk in trading portfolios is monitored using a series of measures, including:
- Factor sensitivities
- Value-at-Risk (VAR)
- Stress testing
i) Factor sensitivities
Factor sensitivities are expressed as the change in the value of a position for a defined change in a market risk factor, such as a change in the price of a treasury
bill for a one-basis-point change in interest rates. The Group independent market risk management ensures that factor sensitivities are calculated, monitored and,
in most cases, limited, for all relevant risks taken in a trading portfolio.

ii) Value-at-Risk (VAR)
The Group applies a Value at Risk (VAR) methodology to its trading portfolios to estimate the market risk of positions held and the maximum losses expected,
based upon a number of assumptions for various changes in market conditions. VAR is a statistically based estimate of the potential loss on the current portfolio
from adverse market movements. The VAR method incorporates the factor sensitivities of the trading portfolio with the volatilities and correlations of those factors
and is expressed as the ‘maximum’ amount the Bank might lose over a one-day holding period, at a 99% confidence level. The Group’s VAR is based on the
volatilities of and correlations among a multitude of market risk factors as well as factors that track the specific issuer risk in debt securities.

As VAR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market risk control regime, VAR limits are set by the Group's ALCO, after consultations with Citigroup
Independent Risk Management. Actual exposure against limits, together with a bank-wide VAR, is reviewed daily by Treasury. The following table summarises
trading price risk by disclosing the VaR exposure as at 31 December:

VAR Analysis

Interest rate risk
Foreign currency risk
Overall portfolio risk

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

169,764

519,812

776

2,471

169,963

519,921

The Group periodically performs extensive back-testing of many hypothetical test portfolios as one check of the accuracy of its VAR. Back-testing is the process in
which the daily VAR of a portfolio is compared to the actual daily change in the market value of its transactions. Back-testing is conducted to confirm that the daily
market value losses in excess of a 99% confidence level occur, on average, only 1% of the time. The VAR calculation for the hypothetical test portfolios, with
different degrees of risk concentration, meets these statistical criteria.

iii) Stress testing
Stress testing is performed on trading portfolios on a regular basis to estimate the impact of extreme market movements. It is performed on both individual trading
portfolios, and on aggregations of portfolios and businesses. Independent market risk management, in conjunction with the businesses, develops stress scenarios,
reviews the output of periodic stress testing exercises, and uses the information to make judgments as to the ongoing appropriateness of exposure levels and limits.

Each trading portfolio has its own market risk limit framework encompassing these measures and other controls, including permitted product lists and a new
product approval process for complex products.
The level of price risk exposure at any given point in time depends on the market environment and expectations of future price and market movements, and will
vary from period to period.
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4.3 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its obligations as and when they fall due without affecting its daily operations or its financial condition. The
Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it always has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the bank’s reputation.
Liquidity Risk Management
Management of liquidity at the Group is the responsibility of the Risk Treasurer. There is a uniform liquidity risk management policy for Citigroup. Under this policy,
there is a single set of standards for the measurement of liquidity risk in order to ensure consistency across businesses, stability in methodologies and transparency
of risk. Management of liquidity risk is performed on a daily basis and is monitored by the Country Treasurer and independent risk management, combined with an
active corporate oversight function.
The Group’s ALCO undertakes this oversight responsibility along with the Country Treasurer. One of the objectives of ALCO is to monitor and review the overall
liquidity and balance sheet positions of the Group. The Risk Treasurer must prepare an annual funding and liquidity plan for review by the Country Treasurer and
approved by independent risk management. The funding and liquidity plan includes analysis of the statement of financial position, as well as the economic and
business conditions impacting the liquidity of the Group. As part of the funding and liquidity plan, liquidity limits, liquidity ratios, market triggers, and assumptions for
periodic stress tests are established and approved. At a minimum, these parameters are reviewed on an annual basis.
Liquidity limits

Liquidity limits establish boundaries for market access in business-as-usual conditions and are monitored against the liquidity position on a daily basis. These limits
are established based on the size of the statement of financial position, depth of the market, experience level of local management, stability of the liabilities and
liquidity of the assets. Finally, the limits are subject to evaluation of the Group's stress test result. Generally, limits are established such that in stress scenarios, the
entities are self-funded or net providers of liquidity. Thus, the risk tolerance of the liquidity position is limited based on the capacity to cover the position in a
stressed environment. These limits are the key daily risk management tools for Treasury management.
Liquidity sources
The Group maintains cash and a portfolio of highly liquid government securities that could be sold or financed on a secured basis.
Liquidity ratios
A series of standard corporate-wide liquidity ratios have been established to monitor the structural elements of the Group’s liquidity. Ratios are established for liquid
assets against short-term obligations. Key liquidity ratios include cash capital (defined as core deposits, long-term debt, and capital compared with illiquid assets),
liquid assets against liquidity gaps, core deposits to loans, and deposits to loans. Several measures exist to review potential concentrations of funding by individual
name, product, industry, or geography. Triggers for management discussion, which may result in other actions, have been established against these ratios.
The Central Bank of Nigeria requires banks to maintain a statutory minimum liquidity ratio of 30% of liquid assets to all its local currency deposit liabilities. For this
purpose, liquid assets comprise cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria and other local banks, treasury bills, FGN Bonds, placement and money at call with
other banks. Deposit liabilities comprise deposits from customers, deposits from banks. The liquidity ratio at the reporting date December 31 2015 was 73.00%
(2014: 97.92%).
Market triggers:
Market triggers are internal, external market or economic factors that may imply a change to market liquidity or Citigroup’s access to the markets. Citibank Nigeria’s
market triggers are monitored on a weekly basis by the Country Treasurer and the head of Risk and are presented to the ALCO at the monthly meeting.
Stress testing:
Simulated liquidity stress testing is periodically performed by the Group. A variety of firm-specific and market related scenarios are used at the consolidated level
and in individual businesses. These scenarios include assumptions about significant changes in key funding sources, credit ratings, contingent uses of funding, and
political and economic conditions in specific countries. The results of the stress tests are reviewed to ensure that the bank is either a self-funded or net provider of
liquidity. In addition, a Contingency Funding Plan is prepared on a periodic basis for Citigroup. The plan includes detailed policies, procedures, roles and
responsibilities, and the results of corporate stress tests. The product of these stress tests is a series of alternatives that can be used by the Treasurer in a liquidity
event.

56

87

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015

4

Financial risk management

4.3.1 Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial assets and liabilities:
31 December 2015

Assets:
Cash and balances with Central Bank of
Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Trading securities

Up to 1
month

1–3
months

3 – 12
months

1–5
years

Over 5
years

Total

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

103,325,670

-

147,857,926

-

-

-

6,114,804

4,399,050

24,100,281

7,225,951

12,703,761

5,289,046

94,489,371

148,341

104,197

5,612,759

6,320,221

766,506

12,952,024

6,643

-

19

Investment securities

-

-

32,258,962

-

-

4,041,522

Other assets
Total financial assets

103,325,670
158,371,780

45,170,332

Derivative financial instruments
Assets pledged as collateral

-

143,852

-

-

-

20,147,084

6,662

652,783

53,058,829

-

-

4,041,522

-

-

143,852

296,646,121

24,204,497

55,260,641

43,570,116

6,708,335

426,389,710

Up to 1
month

1–3
months

3 – 12
months

1–5
years

Over 5
years

Total

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

Liabilities:
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial instruments

770,983
357,446,184
-

Other borrowed funds
Other liabilities(excl. accrued expenses)
Total financial liabilities
Net financial asset /(liabilities)

31 December 2014
Assets:
Cash and balances with Central Bank of
Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers

-

-

-

-

770,983

92,524

-

-

358,184,320

6,466

-

-

6,466

-

-

-

-

5,618,545

68,318

128,984

1,968,416

-

7,784,263

363,835,712

713,930

227,974

1,968,416

-

366,746,031

67,189,591

(23,490,567)

(55,032,668)

(41,601,700)

(6,708,335)

(59,643,679)

Up to 1
month
N'000

1–3
months
N'000

3 – 12
months
N'000

1–5
years
N'000

Over 5
years
N'000

N'000

33,289,044

-

-

-

-

-

139,679,502

2,307,107

2,786,576

6,506,759

19,182,874

7,610,294

17,577,012

-

254,625

62,053

1,134,421

893,590

29,237

Derivative financial instruments

883,533

14,030

4,453,460

Investment securities

1,610,750

3,734,890

59,304,822

Assets pledged as collateral

1,140,000

Total financial assets

Liabilities:
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial instruments

Total financial liabilities
Net financial asset /(liabilities)

2,750,000

250,516

-

62,554,958

96,092,681
2,373,926

-

5,351,023

-

127,205,420

-

-

3,890,000

-

-

250,516

228,830,470

25,300,953

78,039,572

87,532,319

29,237

419,732,553

Up to 1
month
N'000

1–3
months
N'000

3 – 12
months
N'000

1–5
years
N'000

Over 5
years
N'000

N'000

2,249,349

45,900,975

-

-

48,150,324

377,177

1,505,128

-

-

291,160,817

260,140

11,272

9,168

-

0

-

0

-

366,365

1,182,423

2,463,847

-

4,012,635

291,788,001

754,814

48,597,694

2,646,095

-

343,604,356

62,957,530

(24,546,139)

(29,441,878)

(84,886,224)

-

-

Total

289,278,512

Other borrowed funds
Other liabilities

-

Total

33,289,044

51,722,501

-

0

151,279,944

Trading securities

Other assets
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-
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Credit commitments and other financial facilities
31 December 2015

Loan commitments
Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities
Total

31 December 2014

Loan commitments
Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities
Total

Up to 1
month
N'000

1–3
months
N'000

3 – 12
months
N'000

1–5
years
N'000

Over 5
years
N'000

Total
N'000

2,071,126

-

-

3,975,680

14,876,587

20,923,394

2,688,632

10,329,555

8,553,880

2,289,204

6,196,699

30,057,970

4,759,758

10,329,555

8,553,880

6,264,884

21,073,287

50,981,363

Up to 1
month
N'000

1–3
months
N'000

3 – 12
months
N'000

1–5
years
N'000

Over 5
years
N'000

N'000

Total

972,702

-

91,500

17,385,767

16,755,001

35,204,970

12,496,236

6,968,488

12,898,399

2,308,265

22,536,589

57,207,977

13,468,938

6,968,488

12,989,899

19,694,032

39,291,590

92,412,947
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4.3.2 Repricing period of financial assets and liabilities
The table below summarises the interest rate risk exposure of the financial assets and liabilities. The assets and liabilities are included at carrying
amount and categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates
31 December 2015

Carrying amount

Up to 1
month

1–3
months

3 – 12
months

1–5
years

Over 5
years

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

-

-

Assets:
Cash and balances with Central Bank of
Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Trading securities
Derivative financial instruments
Investment securities
Assets pledged as collateral
Other assets

103,325,670

103,325,670

158,371,780
94,489,371
12,952,024
6,662
53,058,829
4,041,522
143,852

147,857,926
45,170,332
148,341
143,852

24,100,281
104,197
19
-

6,114,804
7,225,951
5,612,759
6,643
32,258,962
4,041,522
-

4,399,050
12,703,761
6,320,221
20,147,084
-

5,289,046
766,506
652,783
-

Total financial assets

426,389,710

296,646,123

24,204,496

55,260,641

43,570,116

6,708,334

Carrying amount

Up to 1
month

1–3
months

3 – 12
months

1–5
years

Over 5
years

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

Liabilities:
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities (excluding accruals)

770,983
358,184,320
6,466
7,784,263

770,983
357,446,184
5,618,545

645,612
68,318

92,524
6,466
128,984

1,968,416

Total financial liabilities

366,746,031

363,835,711

713,930

227,974

1,968,416

-

Up to 1
month
N'000

1–3
months
N'000

3 – 12
months
N'000

1–5
years
N'000

Over 5
years
N'000

31 December 2014

Carrying amount
N'000

90

-

-

-

Assets:
Cash and balances with Central Bank of
Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Trading securities
Derivative financial instruments
Investment securities
Assets pledged as collateral
Other assets

34,331,517

34,331,517

-

-

-

-

150,740,892
92,364,499
1,919,692
5,351,024
106,255,745
3,787,423
250,515

137,848,983
51,429,733
478,170
883,533
1,623,794
1,137,160
250,515

1,771,977
23,077,660
176,496
14,030
1,221,693
-

181,741
2,322,182
1,029,557
4,453,460
51,969,840
2,650,263
-

10,938,191
15,534,924
228,954
51,443,210
-

6,515
374,820
-

Total financial assets

395,378,919

227,983,405

26,261,856

62,607,043

78,145,279

381,335

Carrying amount

Up to 1
month

1–3
months

3 – 12
months

1–5
years

Over 5
years

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

N'000

Liabilities:
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial instruments
Other liabilities

47,999,349
291,160,817
280,580
4,012,635

2,249,349
289,278,512
260,140
-

377,177
11,272
366,365

45,750,000
1,505,128
9,168
1,182,423

2,463,847

-

Total financial liabilities

343,453,381

291,788,001

754,814

48,446,719

2,463,847

-
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4.4 Capital Management
The Group’s capital management process is designed to ensure maintenance of sufficient capital consistent with the Group's risk
profile, all applicable regulatory standards and guidelines. It is the Group's objective to maintain a strong capital base to support the
business and regulatory capital requirements at all times. The capital management process is centrally overseen by senior
management and is reviewed at the consolidated, legal entity, and country level.
Regulatory Capital
The Group's primary regulator, Central Bank of Nigeria, sets and monitors capital requirements for the bank. It prescribes the
minimum ratio for capital adequacy and minimum capital requirements. The Bank must at all times meet the relevant minimum
capital requirements of the Central Bank of Nigeria. The Bank has established processes and controls in place to monitor and
manage its capital requirements and remained in compliance with these requirements throughout the year.
The capital adequacy requirements as set out in the Central Bank of Nigeria, prescribes a minimum ratio of total capital to total riskweighted assets. The risk weighted assets are arrived at using the Basel II framework, as defined in the Central Bank of Nigeria
guidelines on both balance sheet position and credit commitments and other financial facilities to reflect the relative risk of each
asset and counterparty, as well as Market and Operational risks elements
The Bank’s regulatory capital comprises of two tiers as follows:
Tier 1 capital: share capital, statutory reserve, SMEIS reserve, retained earnings and reserves created by appropriations of retained
earnings with an adjustment for deferred tax asset and 50% of the value of investment in unconsolidated banking and financial
subsidiary; and
Tier 2 capital: other comprehensive income (the greater of last audited position or current period losses) with adjustment for 50% of
the value of investment in unconsolidated banking and financial subsidiary
The regulatory capital is managed by Treasury.
Further, ALCO monitors the Regulatory and Citigroup capital ratio requirements to ensure compliance. As at 31 December 2015, the
Bank was in compliance with all the applicable capital ratios.

The table below summarises the composition of regulatory capital and the capital adequacy ratios of the Bank for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014. During those two years, the Bank complied with all of the externally imposed capital requirements.
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2015

2014

N’000

N’000

CONSTITUENTS OF CAPITAL
TIER 1 CAPITAL
Paid-up ordinary shares

2,793,777

2,793,777

Share premium

11,643,995

11,643,995

Retained profits

19,474,230

18,345,288

Statutory Reserve

20,531,855

18,942,352

Other Reserve

-

Minority interests (only for consolidated accounts)

-

-

SMEEIS Reserve

3,340,909

3,340,909

Tier 1 Sub-Total

57,784,766

55,066,321

Less:
Deferred Tax Assets
50% of investments in unconsolidated banking and
financial subsidiary/associate companies
NET-TOTAL TIER 1 CAPITAL

-

1,026,366

199,510

199,510

57,585,256

53,840,446

TIER 2 CAPITAL
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

1,268,901

(3,011,838)

Tier 2 Sub-total

1,268,901

(3,011,838)

50% of investments in unconsolidated banking and
financial subsidiary/associate companies
NET-TOTAL TIER 2 CAPITAL
TOTAL QUALIFYING CAPITAL

199,510
1,069,391

199,510
(3,211,348)

58,654,647

50,629,098

150,269,113

188,046,278

COMPUTATION OF RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS
1. Credit Risk: Standardised Approach
Total Risk-w eighted Amount for Credit Risk
2. Operational Risk
2(a). Basic Indicator Approach: Calibrated risk-w eighted amount

54,327,745

45,142,296

Risk-weighted Amount for Operational Risk

54,327,745

45,142,296

2,748,067

429,207

207,344,925

233,617,781

TOTAL RISK-WEIGHTED CAPITAL RATIO

28.29%

21.67%

TIER 1 RISK-BASED CAPITAL RATIO

27.77%

23.05%

3. Market risk: Standardised Approach
Risk-weighted Amount for Market Risk
AGGREGATE RISK-WEIGHTED ASSETS
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4.5 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

4.5.1

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and fair values of those financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value
in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position. All fair value measurements are recurring.

Carrying value
31 December

Fair value

2015
N‘000

2014
N‘000

2015
N‘000

2014
N‘000

158,371,780

150,740,892

158,540,217

150,830,516

94,489,371

92,364,499

96,137,294

93,370,525

143,852

250,515

143,852

250,515

253,005,003

243,355,906

254,821,363

244,451,556

Financial assets
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets (excluding prepayments)

Financial liabilities
Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers

770,983

47,999,349

770,983

47,999,349

358,184,320

291,160,817

358,184,320

291,160,817

Other borrowed funds

-

0

-

0

7,294,309

5,674,400

7,294,309

5,674,400

366,249,612

344,834,565

366,249,612

344,834,565

Loan commitments

20,923,394

35,204,970

20,923,394

35,204,970

Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities

30,057,969

57,207,977

30,057,969

57,207,977

50,981,363

92,412,947

50,981,363

92,412,947

Other liabilities

Credit commitments and other financial facilities

i) Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to banks include interbank placements, loans and items in the course of collection.
The carrying amount of the floating rate placements and overnight deposits is a reasonable approximation of fair value.
ii) Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are net of provisions for impairment. The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents the discounted
amount of future cash flows expected to be received, including assumptions relating to prepayment rates. Expected cash flows are discounted at
current market rates to determine fair value. A substantial proportion of loans and advances reprice within 12 months and hence the gross carrying
amount is a good proxy of the fair value.
iii) Other Assets
Other assets relate to receivables that have a short term maturity (less than three months) therefore it is assumed that the carrying amounts
approximate their fair value.
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iv) Deposits from banks and customers and other liabilities
The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity is the amount repayable on demand. The estimated fair value of fixed interest bearing
deposits without quoted market prices is based on discounting cash flows using the prevailing market.
A substantial proportion of deposits mature within 6 months and hence the carrying amount is a good estimate of the fair value.
(v) Credit commitments and other financial facilities
The estimated fair values of the credit commitments and other financial facilities are based on market prices for similar facilities. When this
information is not available, fair value is estimated as the carrying value.
4.5.2 Fair value hierarchy
The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:
Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.
Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). This category
includes instruments valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted for identical or similar instruments in
markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.
Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all instruments where the valuation technique includes
inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes
instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required
to reflect the difference between the instruments.
The Group uses the following procedures to determine the fair value of financial assets and liabilities:
Trading securities
Where available, the Group uses the quoted market prices to determine the fair value of trading assets and such items are classified as Level 1 of
the fair value hierarchy.
Where there are securities that are not actively traded, the Group uses internal valuation techniques which are based on observable inputs obtained
from the quoted market prices of similiar actively traded securities.
Derivatives
The derivatives entered into by the Group are executed over the counter and so are valued using internal valuation techniques. This derivatives
consist of foreign exchange forward contracts and the principal technique used to value these instruments is based on market observable inputs.
The valuation techniques include forward pricing based on interpolation of the current interest rates and foreign exchange rates.
The key inputs depend upon the the type of derivative and the nature of underlying instrument and include interest rate yield curves and foreign
exchange rates, which are based on observable input therefore classified as Level 2.

Investment securities
Investment securities classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair value by reference to quoted market prices when available and therefore
are classified as Level 1.
If quoted market prices are not available, the fair values are estimated based on internal valuation techniques. The key inputs depend upon the type
of investment security and the nature of inputs to the valuation technique. The item is placed in either Level 2 or Level 3 depending on the
observability of the significant inputs to the model.
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4.5.3 The table below shows the classification of financial instruments held at fair value into the valuation hierarchy set out below as at 31 December:

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

N‘000

N‘000

N‘000

N‘000

10,033,234

2,918,790

-

12,952,024

-

6,662

-

6,662

Investment securities

491,199.13

51,941,088

626,542

53,058,829

Total assets

10,524,433

54,866,541

626,542

66,017,516

-

6,466

-

6,466

31 December 2015
Assets
Trading securities
Derivative financial instruments

Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Total liabilities

-

6,466

-

6,466

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

N‘000

N‘000

N‘000

N‘000

630,130

1,289,562

-

1,919,692

-

5,351,023

-

5,351,023

Investment securities

73,995,441

32,260,304

377,612

106,633,357

Total assets

74,625,571

38,900,889

-

280,580

31 December 2014
Assets
Trading securities
Derivative financial instruments

377,612

113,904,072

Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Total liabilities

-

280,580

64
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280,580
280,580
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The following table presents the changes in Level 3 instruments for the year end 31 December 2015.
2015

2014

N’000

N’000

377,612

357,617

(5,627)

(5,272)

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale securities

254,558

25,267

At 31 December

626,543

377,612

At 1 January
Disposal of investment securities

Level 3 financial instruments relates to available-for-sale unlisted equity securities and since quoted market prices are not available, the fair
values are estimated based on internal valuation techniques as follows:
i) Investment in SME II Partnership fund which in turn has equity investment in various small and medium enterprises. The investment valuation
is based on the portfolio valuation done by the SME fund Managers.
ii) Other equity investment relate to Central Securities Clearing System Limited, Nigerian Interbank Settlement System Plc and Unified Payments
Services Limited. The valuation is based on a market approach valuation where the adjusted price/earnings multiple of comparable companies
is utilised.
The fair value of investment securities in non-quoted equity securities is based on a model that takes observable data with significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions required. Were these unobservable adjustments or assumptions to differ by +/- 100 basis points, the
change in fair value would be N102,938,000 higher or lower in other comprehensive income.
There was no transfer of securities between levels in 2015 (2014: Nil)

96

65

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015
Financial risk management
Table below shows description of valuation methodology and inputs.

Type of financial instrument

Fair value as at
Valuation
31 December
technique
2015
N’000

624,638

Market
approach

Significant
unobservable
input

Estimates for
unobservable
input

Emerging market
factor

45%

Private company
factor

25%

National scope
factor

10%

Unquoted equity securities

1,904 Cost approach
Total

Type of financial instrument

N/A

NA

Significant increases in
emerging market factor, in
isolation, would result in
lower fair values. Significant
reduction would result in
higher fair values
Significant increases in
private company factor, in
isolation, would result in
lower fair values. Significant
reduction would result in
higher fair values
Significant increases in
national scope factor, in
isolation, would result in
higher fair values. Significant
reduction would result in
lower fair values
NA

626,542

Fair value as at
Valuation
31 December
technique
2014
N’000

Significant
unobservable
input

Emerging market
factor

370,080

Market
approach

Private company
factor

Estimates for
unobservable
input

National scope
factor

7,532 Cost approach

N/A

Fair value measurement
sensitivity to unobservable
inputs

45%

Significant increases in
emerging market factor, in
isolation, would result in
lower fair values. Significant
reduction would result in
higher fair values

25%

Significant increases in
private company factor, in
isolation, would result in
lower fair values. Significant
reduction would result in
higher fair values

10%

Significant increases in
national scope factor, in
isolation, would result in
higher fair values. Significant
reduction would result in
lower fair values

Unquoted equity securities

Total

Fair value measurement
sensitivity to unobservable
inputs

NA

NA

377,612

66

97

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015

The notes below represent "Group and Bank" with exception of where these are different and therefore separate disclosure is
made for "Group" and for "Bank".
5. Interest income
Interest income comprises:

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Trading securities
Investment securities

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

514,742

1,464,211

514,742

1,464,211

1,756,870

1,082,918

1,756,870

1,082,918

13,293,946

8,834,987

13,293,946

8,834,987

744,785

837,299

744,785

837,299

15,560,848

10,063,105

15,560,848

10,063,105

31,871,191

22,282,520

31,871,191

22,282,520

Investment and Trading securities comprise of debt securities
Interest Income accrued on impaired financial assets
The total interest income accrued on impaired financial assets during the year amounted to N226,332, 281 (2014: N9,976, 220)

6. Interest expense
Interest expense comprises:

Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

987,852

412,237

987,852

412,237

5,119,368

4,267,470

5,119,368

4,267,470

Other borrowed funds

6,107,220

5,831
4,685,538

6,107,220

5,831
4,685,538

7. Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income:
Advisory related fees and commissions
Custody fees
Transactional services fees
Other fees and commissions

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

6,853

4,123

6,853

4,123

458,689

528,303

458,689

528,303

2,207,787

3,485,049

2,207,787

3,485,049

13,511

301,710

13,511

301,710

2,686,840

4,319,185

2,686,840

4,319,185

35,356

26,800

35,356

26,800

26,800

26,800

35,356

26,800

Fee and commission expense:
Fees paid
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8. Gains from financial instruments
Gains from financial instruments held for trading

Group
2015

Group
2014

Bank
2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Trading income on securities

1,517,101

923,949

1,517,101

923,949

Fair value gains on trading securities

3,911,573

1,291,729

3,911,573

1,291,729

5,428,674

2,215,678

5,428,674

2,215,678

Gains on foreign currency transactions

Foreign exchange revaluation

(19,406)

(767,904)

(19,406)

(767,904)

(Losses)/gains on foreign currency trading transactions

(1,596,818)

5,051,476

(1,596,818)

5,051,476

Total foreign exchange (expenses)/ income

(1,616,224)

4,283,571

(1,616,224)

4,283,571

3,812,449

6,499,249

3,812,449

6,499,249

9. Investment income

Profits on sale of available for sale investment securities
Dividend on equity securities

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

1,074,030

1,540,476

1,074,030

1,540,476

73,138

47,582

111,235

62,005

1,147,168

1,588,058

1,185,265

1,602,481

10. Other operating income
Group
2015
N’000
Rental Income
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Group
2014
N’000

Bank
2015
N’000

Bank
2014
N’000

187,890

166,399

187,890

166,399

17,217

4,440

17,217

4,440

205,107

170,839

205,107

170,839

11. Personnel Expenses

Wages and salaries

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

4,439,594

3,997,507

4,439,594

3,997,507

Pension costs (Note 29)

207,603

256,428

207,603

256,428

Executive compensation (Note 38.2)

203,650

380,922

203,650

380,922

1,110,485

1,206,439

941,923

952,689

5,961,332

5,841,296

5,792,770

5,587,546

Other indirect employee costs (Note 11.1)
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11.1

Dividend paid to staff based on the Treasury shares held by the staff participation scheme of N168,562,498 (2014:
N253,749,997) which was subject to with-holding tax, is included within the indirect employee costs incurred by the Group

12. Other operating expenses
Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

General adminstrative expenses

1,622,090

1,749,635

1,622,465

1,749,841

AMCON charge (see note 12.1)

2,059,032

1,723,320

2,059,032

1,723,320

Deposit insurance premium

1,262,501

1,280,080

1,262,501

1,280,080

Communications and postages

336,130

342,725

336,130

342,725

Travel and entertainment

397,207

313,799

397,207

313,799

Premises, furniture and equipment

557,075

620,285

557,075

620,285

0

0

0

0

48,000

49,350

48,000

49,350

6,282,035

6,079,195

6,282,410

6,079,400

Information technology levy
Directors fees and sitting allowances (Note 38.2)

Included within the General administrative expenses is auditors’ remuneration as follows:

Auditor’s remuneration

2015

2014

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

61,040

58,200

59,540

56,700

12.1 AMCON charge
The Asset Management Corporation of Nigeria (AMCON) acquired Eligible Bank Assets from banks to resolve the non-performing loans crisis in the
banking industry. The Group did not sell Eligible Bank Assets to AMCON. All Nigerian banks are required to participate in partial funding of the
banking sector resolution costs through a prescribed AMCON charge. In compliance with the Memorandum of Understanding in relation to the
Establishment and funding of the Banking Sector resolution cost sinking fund, the 2015 AMCON charge contribution was N2.059 billion representing
0.5% (2014: N1.723 billion) of the bank’s total balance sheet assets and 33% of qualifying off balance sheet assets for the preceding year.
13. Net credit losses

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

(78,813)

(19,439)

(78,813)

(19,439)

Loans and advances to banks:
Increase in impairment (Note 17.2)
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible
Income received on claims previously written off
Reversal of Impairment

Loans and advances to Customers:
(Increase)/Decrease in impairment (Note 21.3)

(8,041,009)

Reversal of impairment (Note 21.3)
Amounts written off during the year as uncollectible
Recoveries on loans previously written off

(8,041,009)

356,075

-

-

-

(11,553)

-

(11,553)

-

2,054
(8,129,322)

100

356,075

-
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14. Taxation
14.1

The tax charge for the year comprises:

Corporate income tax

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

2,678,401

Education tax

-

Technology levy
Information technology levy
Adjustments in respect of prior year (Note 14.3)
Current income tax charge
Deferred taxation (Note 34)

2,678,280

147,012

-

2,416,540
147,012

0

0

0

0

128,984

182,248

128,984

182,248

(244,702)
2,562,682
(195,322)
2,367,360

14.2

2,416,605

Bank

(76,853)
2,669,012
148,775
2,817,787

(244,702)
2,562,562
(195,322)
2,367,240

(76,853)
2,668,947
148,775
2,817,723

The tax on the Group’s profit differs from the theoretical amount using the basic tax rate as follows:
Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Profit before tax

12,882,237

18,275,341

12,963,922

18,415,633

Computed tax using the applicable corporate tax rate at
30%
Education tax

3,864,671

5,482,602

3,889,177

5,524,690

Technology levy
Tax effect on associate's share of profit reported net of
tax
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses
Tax effect of non-taxable income
Impact of tax payments based on dividend

-

147,012

128,984

182,248

(37,380)

(38,303)

718,706

102,632

(6,864,180)
4,801,261

(3,900,640)
919,089

128,984
668,138
(6,875,617)
4,801,261

Bank

147,012
182,248
26,507
(3,904,971)
919,089

2,612,062

2,894,640

2,611,943

2,894,574

Adjustments in respect of prior year (Note 14.3)

(244,702)

(76,853)

(244,702)

(76,853)

Income tax expense

2,367,360

2,817,787

2,367,240

2,817,722

The current tax charge has been computed at the applicable rate of 30% (2014: 30%) on the profit for the year after adjusting for
certain items of income and expenditure, which are not deductible or chargeable for tax purposes. This resulted to an effective
tax rate of 18% (2014: 15%).
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14.3

The adjustment in respect of prior year reflects the difference between the estimated tax liability recognised in the financial
statements and the final tax returns submitted to the tax authority for that year.

15. Earnings per share
15.1 Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding the average number of ordinary shares held by the Group
as treasury shares.
Group

Group

Bank

Bank

2015

2014

2015

2014

10,514,877

15,457,554

10,596,682

15,597,911

2,793,777

2,793,777

2,793,777

2,793,777

(60,417)

(60,417)

-

-

Adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue

2,733,360

2,733,360

2,793,777

2,793,777

Basic earnings per share (expressed in Naira per share)

3.85

5.66

3.79

5.58

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (N'000)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
('000)
Less Treasury shares ('000)

15.2 Diluted
The Group does not have potential ordinary shares with convertible option and therefore there is no dilutive impact on the profit
attributtable to the ordinary shareholders of the Group (2014: Nil).

16. Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria:
16.1 Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria:

Cash

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

1,120,718

1,042,474

1,120,718

1,042,474

56,962,733

3,802,102

56,962,733

3,802,102

Balances held with Central Bank of Nigeria:
Current accounts
Placement

-

-

0

58,083,452

4,844,576

58,083,452

4,844,576

Mandatory reserve deposit (see (16.2) below)

46,362,937

29,486,941

46,362,937

29,486,941

104,446,388

34,331,517

104,446,388

34,331,517

All balances are current
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Total included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 40)
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16.2

This represents 20% of deposits (2014: 25% of customer deposits and 75% of public sector deposits) of monthly average daily
balances of deposit liabilities . Mandatory reserve deposits are not available for use in the Group’s day to day operations.

17. Loans and advances to banks

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

In Nigeria:
Current accounts

4,277,972

801,955

4,277,972

801,955

Secured placements

7,500,822

1,830,686

7,500,822

1,830,686

111,478,595

130,448,696

111,478,595

130,448,696

24,600,537

4,719,468

24,600,537

4,719,468

147,857,926

137,800,805

147,857,926

137,800,805

10,682,291

13,029,711

10,682,291

13,029,711

Outside Nigeria:
Current accounts
Placements held on account of customers’
obligations (Note 17.1)
Total included in cash and cash equivalents (Note 40)
Loans to banks
Less allowance for impairment (Note 17.2)

Current
Non-current

17.1

(168,437)

(89,624)

(168,437)

(89,624)

158,371,780

150,740,892

158,371,780

150,740,892

153,972,730

139,802,701

153,972,730

139,802,701

4,399,050

10,938,191

4,399,050

10,938,191

158,371,780

150,740,892

158,371,780

150,740,892

This represents the Naira value of foreign currencies held on behalf of customers in respect of letter of credit transactions. The corresponding liability
for this amount is included in customer deposits (see note 28).

17.2 The movement on the allowance for loans to banks during the year was as follows:
Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Collective

Collective

Collective

Collective

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

Allowance

At 1 January

89,624

70,185

89,624

70,185

Charge against profits (Note 13)

78,813

19,439

78,813

19,439

168,437

89,624

168,437

89,624

At 31 December
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18. Held for Trading Securities
These comprise:

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Treasury bills

5,681,016

874,997

5,681,016

874,997

Federal Government of Nigeria Bonds

7,271,008

1,044,695

7,271,008

1,044,695

12,952,024

1,919,692

12,952,024

1,919,692

2015

2014

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Current

5,865,298

996,865

5,865,298

996,865

Non current

7,086,726

922,827

7,086,726

922,827

12,952,024

1,919,692

12,952,024

1,919,692

19. Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value in response to changes in interest rates, financial instrument prices, commodity prices,
foreign exchange rates, credit risk and indices. The types of derivatives used by the Group are set out below.
All derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value, with all fair value changes recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income.
The table below analyses the notional principal amounts and the positive (assets) and negative (liabilities) fair values of the Group’s derivative
financial instruments. Notional principal amounts are the amounts of principal underlying the contract at the reporting date.
Group

2015
Notional principal
amounts

Assets

Liabilities

N’000

N’000

N’000

2,400,976

6,662

6,466

Notional principal
amounts

Assets

Liabilities

N’000

N’000

N’000

78,040,286

5,351,023

280,580

2015
Notional principal
amounts
N’000

Assets

Liabilities

N’000

N’000

2,400,976

6,662

6,466

2014
Notional principal
amounts
N’000

Assets

Liabilities

N’000

N’000

78,040,286

5,351,023

280,580

Foreign exchange forward contracts

2014

Foreign exchange forward contracts
Bank

Foreign exchange forward contracts

Foreign exchange forward contracts
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20. Assets pledged as collateral

Group
2015
N’000

Investment debt securities: available for sale

Group
2014
N’000

Bank
2015
N’000

Bank
2014
N’000

4,041,522

3,787,423

4,041,522

3,787,423

4,041,522

3,787,423

4,041,522

3,787,423

All assets pledged as collateral are current
N4,041,521,570 (2014: N3,787,422,524), for which there was no related liability, was pledged as security deposit to clearing house and payment
agencies. The Group cannot trade on these pledged assets during the period that such assets are committed as pledged.
21. Loans and advances to customers
21.1 The classification of loans and advances is as follows:
Group
2015

Gross
Amount
N’000

Loans and advances
Net investment in finance leases

102,064,857

Gross
Amount
N’000

Loans and advances
Net investment in finance leases

7,477,978

1,550,415
103,615,272

2014

Specific
Collective
allowance for allowance for
Impairment
Impairment
N’000
N’000

7,477,978

Total
Impairment

Carrying
Amount

N’000

N’000

1,646,462

9,124,440

92,940,417

1,461

1,461

1,548,955

1,647,923

9,125,901

94,489,372

Collective
Specific
allowance for allowance for
Impairment
Impairment
N’000
N’000

Total
Impairment

Carrying
Amount

N’000

N’000

91,287,362
2,162,029

78,866
-

1,003,104
2,922

1,081,970
2,922

90,205,392
2,159,107

93,449,391

78,866

1,006,026

1,084,892

92,364,499

Bank
2015

Gross
Amount
N’000

Loans and advances
Net investment in finance leases

2014

Total
Impairment

Carrying
Amount

N’000

N’000

102,064,857
1,550,415

7,477,978
-

1,646,462
1,461

9,124,440
1,461

92,940,417
1,548,955

103,615,272

7,477,978

1,647,923

9,125,901

94,489,372

Gross
Amount
N’000

Loans and advances
Net investment in finance leases

Specific
Collective
allowance for allowance for
Impairment
Impairment
N’000
N’000

Specific
Collective
allowance for allowance for
Impairment
Impairment
N’000
N’000

Total
Impairment

Carrying
Amount

N’000

N’000

91,287,362
2,162,029

78,866
-

1,003,104
2,922

1,081,970
2,922

90,205,392
2,159,107

93,449,391

78,866

1,006,026

1,084,892

92,364,499
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Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Current (Gross)

85,622,465

72,485,502

85,622,465

72,485,502

Non-current (Gross)

17,992,807

20,963,889

17,992,807

20,963,889

103,615,272

93,449,391

103,615,272

93,449,391

21.2 Loans and advances to customers include finance lease receivables
Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Gross investment in finance leases
no later than one year
later than one year and no later than five years

Unearned income
Net investment in finance leases

1,491,077

2,123,067

1,491,077

108,627

133,423

108,627

133,423

1,599,704

2,256,490

1,599,704

2,256,490

(49,288)

(94,461)

(49,288)

2,123,067

(94,461)

1,550,415

2,162,029

1,550,415

2,162,029

1,441,789

2,028,606

1,441,789

2,028,606

108,627

133,423

108,627

133,423

1,550,415

2,162,029

1,550,415

2,162,029

The net investment in finance leases maybe analysed as follows:
Expiring:
no later than one year
later than one year and no later than five years

21.3 The movement on the allowance for loans and advances during the year was as follows:

Movement of allowance for loans

2015
N’000
Specific
Allowance

2015
N’000
Collective
Allowance

2015
N’000
Total
Allowance

At 1 January
Charge against profits (Note 13)

78,866
7,399,112

1,006,026
641,897

1,084,892
8,041,009

At 31 December

7,477,978

1,647,923

9,125,901

Movement of allowance for loans

2014
N’000
Specific
Allowance

2014
N’000
Collective
Allowance

2014
N’000
Total
Allowance

Group

106

At 1 January
Charge against profits (Note 13)

39,375
39,491

1,401,592
(395,566)

1,440,967
(356,075)

At 31 December

78,866

1,006,026

1,084,892
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Movement of allowance for loans

2015
N’000
Specific
Allowance

2015
N’000
Collective
Allowance

2015
N’000
Total
Allowance

At 1 January
Charge against profits (Note 13)

78,866
7,399,112

1,006,026
641,897

1,084,892
8,041,009

At 31 December

7,477,978

1,647,923

9,125,901

Movement of allowance for loans

2014
N’000
Specific
Allowance

2014
N’000
Collective
Allowance

2014
N’000
Total
Allowance

Bank

At 1 January
Charge against profits (Note 13)

39,375
39,491

1,401,592
(395,566)

1,440,967
(356,075)

At 31 December

78,866

1,006,026

1,084,892

22. Investment securities
Available for sale investments:

Debt securities - at fair value:
Listed
Equity securities - at fair value:
Unlisted
Total Available-for-sale investment securities

Group
2015
N’000

Group
2014
N’000

Bank
2015
N’000

Bank
2014
N’000

52,432,287

106,255,745

52,432,287

106,255,745

626,542

377,612

626,542

377,612

53,058,829

106,633,357

53,058,829

106,633,357

2015
N’000

2014
N’000

2015
N’000

2014
N’000

Federal Government of Nigeria Bonds
Treasury bills
Unlisted Equity securities

50,751,215
1,681,073
626,542

81,620,031
24,635,714
377,612

50,751,215
1,681,073
626,542

81,620,031
24,635,714
377,612

Total Available-for-sale investment securities

53,058,829

106,633,357

53,058,829

106,633,357

Current
Non-current

2015
N’000
31,767,763
21,291,066
53,058,829

2014
N’000
54,797,522
51,835,835
106,633,357

2015
N’000
31,767,763
21,291,066
53,058,829

2014
N’000
54,797,522
51,835,835
106,633,357

All debt securities have fixed coupons. Listed debt securities available for sale at fair value of N4,041,521,571 were pledged to
third parties under secured borrowing and as security deposit to clearing house and payment agencies (2014: N3,787,422,502),
and are disclosed under Assets pledged as collateral in note 20.

76

107

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015

22.1 Movement in available for sale securities can be summarised as follows:
Group
2015

At 1 January
Purchase of AFS investment securities
Disposal of AFS investment securities
Impairment of equity securities
Net change in fair value
Net amount transferred to profit or loss (Note 22.2)
At 31 December

2014

Equity
Debt securities securities - at
at fair value:
fair value:
N’000
N’000

Total
N’000

106,255,745
11,984,923
(71,669,163)
7,534,535
(1,673,752)

377,611
(5,627)
254,558
-

106,633,356
11,984,923
(71,674,790)
7,789,093
(1,673,752)

52,432,287

626,542

53,058,830

Equity
Debt securities securities - at
at fair value:
fair value:
N’000
N’000

Total
N’000

At 1 January
Purchase of investment securities
Disposal of investment securities
Impairment of equity securities
Net change in fair value
Net amount transferred to profit or loss (Note 22.2)

88,762,097
68,617,867
(48,740,146)
(2,886,539)
502,466

1,016,165
(303,973)
25,267
(359,848)

89,778,262
68,617,867
(49,044,119)
(2,861,272)
142,618

At 31 December

106,255,745

377,611

106,633,356

Bank
2015

At 1 January
Purchase of AFS investment securities
Disposal of AFS investment securities
Impairment of equity securities
Net change in fair value
Net amount transferred to profit or loss (Note 22.2)
At 31 December

2014

22.2.
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Equity
Debt securities securities - at
at fair value:
fair value:
N’000
N’000

Total
N’000

106,255,745
11,984,923
(71,669,163)
7,534,535
(1,673,752)

377,611
(5,627)
254,558
-

106,633,356
11,984,923
(71,674,790)
7,789,093
(1,673,752)

52,432,287

626,542

53,058,830

Equity
Debt securities securities - at
at fair value:
fair value:
N’000
N’000

Total
N’000

At 1 January
Purchase of investment securities
Disposal of investment securities
Impairment of equity securities
Net change in fair value
Net amount transferred to profit or loss (Note 22.2)

88,762,097
68,617,867
(48,740,146)
(2,886,539)
502,466

1,016,165
(303,973)
25,267
(359,848)

89,778,262
68,617,867
(49,044,119)
(2,861,272)
142,618

At 31 December

106,255,745

377,611

106,633,356

This relates to reclassification adjustments for realised net gains on available-for-sale securities on disposal or maturity that
have been recognised through statement of comprehensive income.
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23. Other assets

Prepayments
Receivables

Group
2015
N’000

Bank
2015
N’000

Bank
2014
N’000

116,971
143,852

283,159
250,515

116,971
143,852

283,159
250,515

260,823

533,674

260,823

533,674

2015
N’000
Current
Non-current

Group
2014
N’000

2014
N’000

2015
N’000

2014
N’000

260,823
-

376,115
157,559

260,823
-

376,115
157,559

260,823

533,674

260,823

533,674

24. Investments in associates
Associates are those entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. In addition, it includes entities where the shareholding is less than 20%
but such significant influence can be demonstrated with the existence of representation on the board of directors or equivalent
governing body of the investee. The Group has determined that its investment in Accion Microfinance Bank Limited should be
treated as an investment in associate based on it's board representation in the company.
The associate company's principal place of business is Lagos, Nigeria which is also the same as the country of incorporation.
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Group
2015
N’000

Group
2014
N’000

Bank
2015
N’000

Bank
2014
N’000

At 1 January

678,116

564,864

398,020

398,020

Share of profit after tax
Dividends received

124,600
(38,097)

127,676
(14,424)

-

-

At 31 December

764,619

678,116

398,020

398,020

The Group has an investment in an associate, Accion Microfinance Bank Limited, with an 19.9% equity participation and
representation on the board of the investee. This has been accounted for using the equity method under the Group and carried
at cost in the Bank's seperate financial statements.
All balances are non-current
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associates (and not Citi's share of those
amounts) adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the group and the associates.

Apart from the information disclosed above there were no other transactions with the associates
Summarised financial information of the Group's associate accounted for using the equity method are as follows:

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net assets
Revenues
Profit
Total comprehensive income
Group Share of Profit
Group Share of Total comprehensive income

2015
N’000

2014
N’000

6,868,656
(3,788,106)
3,080,551

5,087,199
(2,498,222)
2,588,977

2,931,334
626,132
626,132

2,378,084
641,589
641,589

124,600

127,676

124,600

127,676

Reconciliation of summarized financial information
2015

2014

N’000

N’000

Current assets

1,002,046

737,119

Non current assets

5,866,610

4,350,079

Total assets

6,868,656

5,087,198

Current liabilities

2,700,847

1,940,838

Non current liabilities

1,087,259

557,384

(3,788,106)

(2,498,222)

3,080,550

2,588,976

Interest in associate (19.9%)

613,029

515,206

Loan to associate
Carrying value of investment in
associate

151,590

162,910

764,620

678,116

Total liabilities
Net assets

There were no published price quotations for the associate of the Group. Furthermore, there are no significant restrictions on the ability of the
associate to transfer funds to the Group in the form of cash dividends, or repayment of loans or advances.
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25. Property, plant and equipment
The movement on these accounts during the year was as follows:
Group
Land

Leasehold
improvements
and buildings

N’000

N’000

Computer
Equipment,
Furniture &
Equipment
N’000

596,385
596,385

1,419,901
(3,473)
1,416,429

3,453,712
324,084
(175,462)
3,602,334

At 1 January

-

230,771

2,867,315

Charge for the year

-

39,010

231,728

Disposals

-

-

(167,499)

At 31 December

-

269,781

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December

596,385

1,146,648

Land

Leasehold
improvements
and buildings

N’000

N’000

Computer
Equipment,
Furniture &
Equipment
N’000

596,385
596,385

1,416,429
3,472
1,419,901

At 1 January

-

Charge for the year

-

Year ended 31 December 2015

COST:
At 1 January
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 December

Motor
Work in
Vehicles Progress (WIP)

Total

N’000

N’000

N’000

813,688
184,063
(164,267)
833,483

4,032

4,032

6,287,718
508,147
(339,729)
(3,473)
6,452,664

414,524

-

3,512,610

179,115

-

449,855

(152,526)

-

(320,025)

2,931,544

441,113

-

3,642,440

670,790

392,370

4,032

2,810,224

Motor
Work in
Vehicles Progress (WIP)

Total

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Year ended 31 December 2014

COST:
At 1 January
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 December

N’000

N’000

N’000

3,308,779
303,718
(196,761)
37,976
3,453,712

681,957
304,409
(172,678)
813,688

42,008

(37,976)
4,032

6,045,558
611,599
(369,439)
6,287,718

191,761

2,852,813

394,051

-

3,438,625

39,010

199,440

177,604

-

416,054

(184,937)

(157,130)

-

(342,068)

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Disposals

-

-

At 31 December

-

230,771

2,867,316

414,525

-

3,512,611

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December

596,385

1,189,131

586,396

399,163

4,032

2,775,107

Land

Leasehold
improvements
and buildings

Motor
Work in
Vehicles Progress (WIP)

Total

N’000

N’000

Computer
Equipment,
Furniture &
Equipment
N’000

596,385
596,385

1,419,901
(3,473)
1,416,429

3,453,712
324,084
(175,462)
3,602,334

Bank
Year ended 31 December 2015

COST:
At 1 January
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 December

80

N’000

N’000

N’000

813,688
184,063
(164,267)
833,483

4,032

6,287,718
508,147
(339,729)
(3,473)
6,452,664

4,032
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ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 January

-

230,771

2,867,315

414,524

-

Charge for the year

-

39,010

231,728

179,115

-

449,855

Disposals

-

-

(167,499)

(152,526)

-

(320,025)

At 31 December

-

269,781

2,931,544

441,113

-

3,642,440

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December

596,385

1,146,648

670,790

392,370

4,032

2,810,224

Land

Leasehold
improvements
and buildings

Motor
Work in
Vehicles Progress (WIP)

Total

N’000

N’000

Computer
Equipment,
Furniture &
Equipment
N’000

596,385
596,385

1,416,429
3,472
1,419,901

At 1 January

-

Charge for the year

-

Year ended 31 December 2014

COST:
At 1 January
Additions
Disposals
Transfers
At 31 December

3,512,610

N’000

N’000

N’000

3,308,779
303,718
(196,761)
37,976
3,453,712

681,957
304,409
(172,678)
813,688

42,008

(37,976)
4,032

6,045,558
611,599
(369,439)
6,287,718

191,761

2,852,813

394,051

-

3,438,625

39,010

199,440

177,604

-

416,054

(184,937)

(157,130)

-

(342,068)

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Disposals
At 31 December
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December
All balances are non-current
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-

-

230,771

2,867,316

414,525

-

3,512,611

596,385

1,189,131

586,396

399,163

4,032

2,775,107
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26. Intangible assets
The purchased sofware has been fully amortized

27. Deposits from banks

Current accounts
Term deposits

Group
2015
N’000

Group
2014
N’000

Bank
2015
N’000

Bank
2014
N’000

770,983
-

2,249,349
45,750,000

770,983
-

2,249,349
45,750,000

770,983

47,999,349

770,983

47,999,349

All deposits from banks are current
Deposit from banks only include financial instruments classifed as liabilities at amortised cost.
Deposits from banks have fixed or variable interest rates.
28. Deposits from customers
Deposits and other accounts comprise:

Demand
Term

Group
2015
N’000

Group
2014
N’000

Bank
2015
N’000

Bank
2014
N’000

338,833,472
19,350,848

269,033,994
22,126,823

338,835,005
19,350,848

269,035,382
22,126,823

358,184,320

291,160,817

358,185,853

291,162,205

All deposits from customers are current
Deposit from customers only include financial instruments classifed as liabilities at amortised cost.

Included in deposits from customer balance is the Naira value of foreign currencies amounting to N26,108,528,886 (2014: N4,719,412,724) held on
28.1 behalf of customers as cash collateral in respect of letter of credit transactions. Also included in this balance is an amount of N212,063,347,771
(2014: N126,008,093,205) of fixed or variable interest rate and all other deposits are non-interest bearing deposits.

29. Retirement benefit obligation

The movement on retirement benefit obligation account during the year was as follows:

At 1 January
Employee contribution
Charge to profit and loss (Note 11)
Remittances during the year
At 31 December

Group
2015
N’000

Group
2014
N’000

Bank
2015
N’000

Bank
2014
N’000

7,586
218,233
207,603
(425,521)

8,063
189,390
256,428
(446,295)

7,586
218,233
207,603
(425,521)

8,063
189,390
256,428
(446,295)

7,900

7,586

7,900

7,586

All balances are current
Group and its employees make a joint contribution of 18% (Employer 10%, employee 8%) of gross monthly emoluments. Included in the employee
contribution is the sum of N16,539,000 representing voluntary contributions by the employees
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30. Current income tax liabilities
The movement in Income tax payable during the year is as follows:

At 1 January
Payments during the year
Current year tax charge (Note 14.1 )
At 31 December

Group
2015
N’000

Group
2014
N’000

Bank
2015
N’000

Bank
2014
N’000

2,744,192
(2,501,477)
2,562,682

3,740,848
(3,665,669)
2,669,012

2,744,084
(2,501,412)
2,562,562

3,740,717
(3,665,580)
2,668,947

2,805,397

2,744,192

2,805,234

2,744,084

All balances are current
31. Other borrowed funds
No other borrowed funds in the year under review.

32. Other liabilities
Other liabilities comprise:

Group
2015
N’000

Group
2014
N’000

Bank
2015
N’000

Bank
2014
N’000

Managers’ cheques
Payables
Sundry accounts
Deposit for FX purchase
Unapplied customer funds
Unclaimed custome balance
Financial liabilities

2,937,802
555,755
1,594
350,372
2,987,414
461,373
7,294,309

2,871,830
487,885
72,167
103,995
135,857
457,717
4,129,450

2,937,802
555,755
1,594
350,372
2,987,414
461,373
7,294,310

2,871,830
487,885
72,167
103,995
135,857
457,717
4,129,451

Accruals
Provison for litigation (note 33)
Unearned income
Non financial liabilities

1,525,390
421,635
68,318
2,015,343

1,362,702
56,488
65,433
1,484,623

1,525,765
421,635
68,318
2,015,718

1,362,912
56,488
65,433
1,484,833

9,309,653

5,614,073

9,310,028

5,614,284

2015
N’000
7,341,237
1,968,416

2014
N’000
3,052,356
2,561,717

2015
N’000
7,341,613
1,968,416

2014
N’000
3,052,566
2,561,717

9,309,653

5,614,073

9,310,028

5,614,283

Current
Non-current

33. Provisions (Movement in provision for litigation)
Provisions for litigation comprise:
2015
N’000

2014
N’000

At 1 January
Credit against profits
Charge against profits

56,488
(1,500)
366,647

58,488
(2,000)
-

At 31 December

421,635

56,488

All balances are non-current
The amount represent the aggregate provisions for certain legal claims brought against the Group, in which it is probable that there would be future
outflow of economic benefits to settle such legal obligations and whose values can be reliably estimated as at 31 December 2015. The provision
charge is recognised in the statement of profit or loss within other operating expenses. The balance as at 31 December 2015 represents a
reasonable estimate of what would be required to settle the legal claims even though some of the matters are still in progress as at reporting date.
There is currently a N 728 million disputed Company Income Tax matter with the Federal Inland Revenue Services, the case had been decided
against the bank by the Tax Appeal Tribunal in October 2015 however, the Group had filed an appeal at the Federal High court. Additionally during
the last Joint CBN/NDIC audit, the examiners advised the bank to make a 50% provision in respect of this event.
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34. Deferred taxation
Movement on deferred tax account during the year was as follows:
Group
Deferred tax asset /(liability):

2015
At 1 January
2015

Recognized
in income

Recognized
in equity

At 31
December
2015

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

(593,117)
328,695
1,290,788

(20,891)
216,213
-

(1,834,602)

(614,008)
544,908
(543,814)

1,026,366

195,322

(1,834,602)

(612,915)

Recognized
in equity
N’000

At 31
December
N’000

Property and equipment
Loan impairment reserve
Fair value reserve

Defered tax asset /(liability):

2014
At 1 January
2014
N’000

Recognized
in income
N’000

(568,992)
453,345
475,192

(24,125)
(124,650)
-

815,596

(593,117)
328,695
1,290,788

359,545

(148,775)

815,596

1,026,366

Property and equipment
Loan impairment reserve
Fair value reserve

Bank
Deferred tax asset /(liability):

2015
At 1 January
2015

Recognized
in income

Recognized
in equity

At 31
December
2015

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

(593,117)
328,695
1,290,788

(20,891)
216,213
-

(1,834,602)

(614,008)
544,908
(543,814)

1,026,366

195,322

(1,834,602)

(612,915)

Property and equipment
Loan impairment reserve
Fair value reserve

2014

Defered tax asset /(liability):

At 1 January
2014

Recognized
in income
statement

Recognized
in equity

At 31
December
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

Property and equipment

(568,992)

(24,125)

-

Loan impairment reserve

453,345

(124,650)

-

Fair value reserve

475,192

359,545

Deferred tax to be recovered within 12 months
Deferred tax to be recovered after more than 12 months

-

(148,775)

(593,117)
328,695

815,596

1,290,788

815,596

1,026,366

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

1,094
(614,008)
(612,915)
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1,619,483
(593,117)
1,026,366

1,094
(614,008)
(612,915)

Bank

1,619,483
(593,117)
1,026,366
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34.1 Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets of N2,452,217,680(2014: nil) arising from the Group's 2015 tax losses of N8,174,058,934 (2014: nil) have not been recognised.
34.2 The tax (charge)/credit relating to components of other comprehensive income is as follows:
2015
Before tax
Fair value gains/(losses) on
available-for-sale assets

6,115,341

Tax (charge)
/credit
(1,834,602)

After tax

4,280,739

2014
Before tax

Tax (charge)
/credit

After tax

17A0T

Fair value gains/(losses) on
available-for-sale assets

(2,718,654)

815,596

(1,903,058)

35. Share capital
Share capital comprises:

Group

Group

Bank

Bank

2015
N’000

2014
N’000

2015
N’000

2014
N’000

Authorised:
3.0 billion Ordinary shares of N1.00 each

3,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

3,000,000

Issued and fully paid
2.794 billion Ordinary shares of N1.00 each

2,793,777

2,793,777

2,793,777

2,793,777

Other reserves include:
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35.1 Share premium
Premiums from the issue of shares are reported in the share premium.
35.2 Treasury shares reserve
Treasury shares reserve holds 60,416,666 units of the Bank's shares which are held in trust by the staff participation scheme (31 December 2015:
60,416,666). Employees are not eligible to own any unit of the shares. And it is neither an equity or a cash settled share share based scheme.
35.3 Statutory reserve
Statutory reserves include i) the mandatory annual appropriation as required by the Banks and Other Financial Institution Act of
Nigeria and ii) the N3,340,909,050 Small and Medium Scale Industries Reserve (SMEEIS) reserve (31 December 2014:
N3,340,909,050) maintained to comply with the Central Bank of Nigeria requirement.
35.4 Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve includes the net cumulative change in the fair value of available-for-sale investment securities until the investment is
derecognised or impaired.
The movement on fair value reserve account during the year was as follows:

At 1 January

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

(3,011,838)

(1,108,780)

(3,011,838)

(1,108,780)

Net change in fair value of available-for-sale securities
(Note 22.1)

7,789,093

(2,861,272)

7,789,093

(2,861,272)

Reclassification adjustments for realised net gains on
available-for-sale securities (Note 22.1)

(1,673,752)

142,618

(1,673,752)

142,618

Net tax charge on fair value changes (Note 34.2)

(1,834,602)

815,596

(1,834,602)

815,596

At 31 December

1,268,901

(3,011,838)

1,268,901

(3,011,838)

35.5 Regulatory risk reserve
The regulatory risk reserve would be reflected where the impairment losses required by prudential regulations exceed those computed under IFRS.
Such excess is recognised as a statutory credit reserve and is accounted for as an appropriation of retained earnings.
Statement of Prudential adjustments
2015

2014

N’000

N’000

IFRS impairment losses
- Loans and advances to banks (Note 17)

168,437

89,624

- Loans and advances to customers (Note 21.1)

9,125,901

1,084,892

Total

9,294,338

1,174,516

- Gross Loans and advances to banks (Note 17)

10,682,291

13,029,711

- Gross Loans and advances to customers (Note 21)

96,137,294

93,370,525

Loan analysis by performance
Performing:

Non-performing:
- Gross non performing loans and advances to customers (Note7,477,978
21.3)

78,866

114,297,563

106,479,102

7,241,545
2,136,392
9,377,937

78,866
1,064,002
1,142,868

Prudential Provisions
- Specific
- General
Total
(Deficit)/ Surplus of IFRS provisions over prudential provisions

(83,599)

86
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36. Contingent liabilities and commitments
36.1 Litigations and claims
There were 33 litigations and claims against the Group as at 31 December 2015. These litigations and claims arose in the normal course of
business and are being contested by the Group. Adequate provisions have been made in the financial statements (see note 33)
36.2 Credit commitments and other financial facilities

Acceptances

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

299,273

6,056,212

Letters of credit

15,986,291

23,830,666

Bonds and guarantees

13,772,405

27,321,100

Loan commitments

20,923,394

35,204,970

50,981,363

92,412,948

Certain bonds and guarantees are cash collateralized and secured with a total sum of N120,812,372 (2014: N104,294,870).

36.3 Capital commitments
The group has no capital commitment as at 31 December 2015 (2014: nil)
37. Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operational decisions, or another party controls both entities. The Group definition of related parties includes subsidiary,
associates and key management personnel.
Transactions with key management personnel
The Group’s key management personnel, and persons connected with them, are also considered to be related parties. The definition of key
management includes the close members of family of key personnel and any entity over which key management personnel exercise control. The key
management personnel have been identified as the executive and non‐executive directors of the Group. Close members of family are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by that individual in their dealings with the Group.
37.1 Parent and ultimate controlling party
81.9% of the Bank’s share capital is held by Citibank Overseas Investment Corporation. The ultimate parent of the Group is Citigroup Inc. which is
incorporated in the United States of America. In the normal course of the bank’s business, the Group enters into business transactions with other
Citigroup offices.
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Balances with other Citigroup offices as at 31 December
2015

2014

N’000

N’000

136,075,177

135,168,117

Assets
Loans and advances to Banks
Loans and advances to customers
Derivative financial instruments

-

85

6,637

1,599

136,081,814

135,169,801

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

617,296

47,921,963

2,910,096

991,235

Liabilities
Deposits from banks
Deposits from Customers
Derivative financial instruments

3,527,392

39,153
48,952,351

Income and expenses from other Citigroup offices during the year

Interest and similar income

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

82,230

106,494

Interest and similar expense

(528,707)

(166,407)

Net interest income

(446,477)

(59,913)

197,604

427,624

(248,873)

367,711

Fee and commission income

37.2 Key management personnel and their immediate relatives engaged in the following transactions with the Group as at 31 December 2015

Loans and advances

Deposits

Interest income on KMP loans

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

65,995

11,521

2,500

26,406

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

1,403

339
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Interest expense on KMP deposits
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Loans and advances granted to key management personnnel are loans extended to employees under the employment scheme of service with rate
of 3%. No specific impairment losses have been recorded against balances outstanding at the end of the period. Refer to note 38.2 for further
disclosures on key management personnel

37.3

In accordance with the Central Bank of Nigeria circular BSD/1/2004 on disclosure requirements on insider related credits, there was no insider
related credits, however, the above stated loans and advances (2015: N65,995,000 and 2014: N11,521,000) were granted to executive directors
under the employment scheme of service. These facilities are classified as performing and there are no collateral to back them up, as repayment is
directly deducted from the executive director's salary.
There were no other transactions in which a director had an interest as at reporting date in 2015.
Key management personnel compensation for the period is disclosed under Note 38.2.

37.4

Transactions between Citibank Nigeria Limited and its subsidiary also meet the definition of related party transactions. These transactions are
eliminated on consolidation, and are not disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Deposits outstanding as at 31 December
Name of company

Nigeria International Bank Nominees Limited

Relationship

Subsidiary

Type of
deposit

Deposit

Details of payment to subsidiaries
The investment in associate is disclosed under Note 24.
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2015

2014

N’000

N’000

1,533

1,389

1,533

1,389

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 31 December 2015

38. Employees and directors
38.1 Employees:
The number of persons employed as at the end of the year is as follows:
2015
Executive Directors
Management

2014

5

6

198

192

Non-management

40

44

243

242

Cost of employees, including executive directors, during the year is as follows:

Wages and salaries
Pension costs

Group

Group

Bank

2015

2014

2015

Bank
2014

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

4,643,244

4,378,429

4,643,244

4,378,429

207,603

256,428

207,603

256,428

4,850,847

4,634,857

4,850,847

4,634,857

Other indirect employee costs

1,110,485

1,206,439

941,923

952,689

Total personnel expenses (Note 11)

5,961,332

5,841,296

5,792,770

5,587,546

Executive Compensation

(203,650)

(371,946)

(203,650)

(371,946)

Executive Pension costs

(13,600)

(8,977)

(13,600)

(8,977)

5,744,082

5,460,374

5,575,520

5,206,624

Included in wages and salaries is severance payment of N109,819,490 for the year 2015. (2014: N99,833,808 ).This amount is not payable until after
resignation of the staff.
The number of persons employed by the Group, who received emoluments in the following ranges (excluding pension contribution), were:
2015

2014

N2,000,001 - N3,000,000

5

N3,000,001 - N4,000,000

9

6

N4,000,001 - N5,000,000

15

12

N5,000,001 - N6,000,000

12

15

N6,000,001 - N7,000,000

7

11

195

192

243

242

Above N7,000,000
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38.2 Directors
Directors’ remuneration was paid as follows:

Fees and sitting allowances (Note 12)
Executive compensation (Note 11)
Executive pension costs

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

48,000

49,350

203,650

371,946

13,600

8,977

265,250

430,272

The directors’ remuneration shown above includes:
2015

2014

N’000

N’000

Chairman

11,500

11,500

Highest paid director

63,250

63,250

The number of other directors who received fees and other emoluments in the following ranges were:
2015

2014

Number

Number

Directors with fees above N2,000,000

12

12

One foreign director and one local non-executive director did not receive any fees or other emoluments.

39. Dividend
The dividend paid in 2015 and 2014 were N7,794,638,468.91 (N2.79k per share) and N11,733,864,361.80 (N4.20k per share) respectively. A
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 of N3.22k per share, amounting to a total dividend of N8,995,962,677.38 is to be proposed
at the next annual general meeting. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.
40. Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and non restricted balances with the Central Bank of Nigeria,
treasury bills and other eligible bills, operating account balances with other banks, amount due from other banks:

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria (Note 16.1)
Trading securities - Treasury bills
Loans and advances to banks (Note 17)
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2015

2014

N’000

N’000

58,083,452

4,844,576

252,539

309,296

147,857,926

137,800,805

206,193,917

142,954,677
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41. Group entities
41.1 Investments in subsidiaries comprises:

Nigeria International Bank Nominees Limited

2015

2014

N’000

N’000

1,000

1,000

There was no movement in the Bank’s investment in the share capital of its fully owned subsidiary during the year.
41.2 Investment in Associates comprises of Accion Microfinance Bank as disclosed in Note 24.
41.3 Treasury shares comprises of the staff participation scheme as disclosed in Note 35.2.
41.4 Condensed results of the consolidated entities are as follows:

31 December 2015

Operating Income
Operating Expenses

Bank

NIB
Nominees

N’000

N’000

33,618,278

4,124

(20,654,356)

(3,749)

12,963,922
Share of profit of associates
accounted for using equity method

376

12,963,922

376

Tax

(2,367,240)

(120)

Profit after tax

10,596,682

255

Total Assets

430,836,643

Liabilities

371,699,377

Net Assets
Equity

Operating Income
Operating Expenses

Group

N’000

N’000

(42,221)

33,580,181

4,124

(20,822,543)

(168,562)

(38,097)

12,757,638

(168,562)

124,600

86,503

12,882,239
(2,367,360)

(168,562)

86,503

10,514,878

5,657

60,417

299,526

3,913

-

59,137,266

1,744

60,417

305,183

59,504,611

59,137,266

1,744

60,417

305,183

59,504,610

Bank

NIB
Nominees

N’000

N’000

30,161,936

2,253

(11,928,551)

(2,047)
206

-

-

124,600

-

18,233,385
Share of profit of associates
accounted for using equity method

-

Elimination
Entries

(168,562)

-

Profit before tax

31 December 2014

Staff
participation
Scheme
N’000

Staff
participation
Scheme
N’000
-

Profit before tax

18,233,385

206

(2,635,474)

(66)

Profit after tax

15,597,911

140

Total Assets

399,862,570

Liabilities

347,808,086

Net Assets
Equity

431,202,244
371,697,633

Elimination
Entries

Group

N’000

N’000

(16,676)

30,147,513

(253,750)

2,253

(12,182,096)

(253,750)

(14,423)

17,965,417

-

Tax

(5,657)

(253,750)
-

127,677

127,677

113,253

18,093,094

-

(2,635,539)

(253,750)

113,253

15,457,554

3,641

60,417

215,039

400,141,667

2,152

-

52,054,484

1,489

60,417

218,680

52,335,069

52,054,483

1,489

60,417

218,679

52,335,069
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(3,641)

347,806,597
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42. Compliance with banking regulations
The Bank did not contravene any provisions of the Banks and Other Financial Institutions Act (BOFIA). The bank contravened section 3(3c) of the
Money Laundering (Prohibition) Act 2011 (as amended) and was fined a sum of N2,000,000, also the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) imposed a fine
of N2,000,000 on the bank for late rendition of Treasury Single Account related information to the CBN,the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC) fined the bank a sum of N700,000 for late submission of 2013 Financials. The Financial Markets Dealers Quotation (FMDQ) fined the bank for
a sum of N500,000 in 2015 to a bond trading Infraction for not updating quotes for benchmark securities by 10am.

43. Subsequent events
There were no post reporting date events which could have a material effect on the financial position of the Group and Bank as at 31 December
2015 or the profit for the year ended on that date that have not been adequately provided for or disclosed.
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED
Other Financial Information
For the year ended 31 December 2015
Group

Bank

2015

2014
N'000

Gross Operating income

%

31,558,078

2015
N'000

%

35,169,748

2014
N'000

%

31,596,175

N'000

%

35,184,172

Interest expense
- Foreign
- Local

Net credit losses
Adminstrative overheads
Share of profit of associates accounted for using equity
method

(591,382)

(53,794)

(591,382)

(53,794)

(5,515,838)

(4,631,745)

(5,515,838)

(4,631,745)

25,450,858

30,484,209

25,488,956

30,498,633

0

0

(6,282,035)

0

(6,261,443)

124,600

0

(6,282,410)

127,676

(6,261,648)

-

-

19,293,423 100% 24,350,443 100% 19,206,546 100% 24,236,985 100%

Distribution:

Employees
- Salaries and benefits

5,961,332

31%

5,841,296

24%

5,792,770

30%

5,587,546

23%

2,367,360

12%

2,635,539

11%

2,367,240

12%

2,635,474

11%

2%

416,054

2%

449,854

2%

416,054

2%

55% 15,597,911

64%

Government
- Taxation
Future
- Asset replacement (depreciation)
- Expansion (transfer to equity)

449,854
10,514,877

54% 15,457,554

63% 10,596,682

19,293,423 100% 24,350,443 100% 19,206,546 100% 24,236,985 100%
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CONSOLIDATED FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
Other Financial Information
For the year ended 31 December 2015
2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

N’000

ASSETS
Cash and balances with Central Bank of Nigeria
Loans and advances to banks
Trading securities
Derivative financial instruments
Assets pledged as collateral
Loans and advances to customers
Investment securities
Other assets
Investments in associates
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible Assets
Deferred tax asset

104,446,388
158,371,780
12,952,024
6,662
4,041,522
94,489,371
53,058,829
260,823
764,620
2,810,224
-

34,331,517
150,740,892
1,919,692
5,351,023
3,787,423
92,364,499
106,633,357
533,674
678,116
2,775,107
1,026,366

22,996,953
122,258,126
81,538,729
14,466,556
14,237
89,778,262
4,646,152
1,091,075
564,864
2,606,933
359,545

20,762,072
121,241,497
61,168,214
10,962,881
167,107
97,501,871
7,808,015
850,692
497,762
2,618,705
7,508
-

13,420,668
215,295,404
7,226,690
383,387
6,231,282
55,422,672
64,016,831
342,820
449,986
2,827,488
15,697
1,503,699

Total assets

431,202,243

400,141,666

340,321,432

323,586,324

367,136,624

Deposits from banks
Deposits from customers
Derivative financial instruments
Retirement benefit obligations
Current income tax liabilities
Other borrowed funds
Other liabilities
Provisions
Deferred income tax liability
Total equity

770,983
358,184,320
6,466
7,900
2,805,397
9,309,653
612,915
59,504,610

47,999,349
291,160,817
280,580
7,586
2,561,944
5,739,833
56,488
52,335,069

1,263,243
276,901,195
12,393
8,063
3,740,849
700,000
7,376,514
58,488
50,260,687

10,440,127
250,158,010
93,550
13,054
3,551,266
2,285,714
6,930,799
58,488
782,924
49,272,392

248,008
315,733,569
248,926
10,894
2,497,527
2,486,000
6,330,374
58,488
39,522,838

Total equity and liabilities

431,202,242

400,141,666

340,321,432

323,586,324

367,136,624

50,981,363

92,412,948

56,189,598

62,277,919

54,837,495

LIABILITIES

Credit commitments and other financial facilties

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net operating income
25,450,858
30,484,210
28,136,917
27,915,342
21,171,932
Operating expenses
- 12,693,221 - 12,518,793 - 11,304,892 - 11,072,735 - 9,588,588
Write-back/(allowance) on risk assets
Share of profit of associates accounted for using equity method
124,600
127,676
78,197
56,652
42,063
Profit before tax
12,882,238
18,093,093
16,910,222
16,899,258
11,625,408
Income tax expense
2,367,360 - 2,635,539 - 3,267,092 - 3,874,866 - 2,243,804
Profit for the year
10,514,877
15,457,554
13,643,130
13,024,392
9,381,604
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
4,280,739 - 1,903,058 - 1,858,058
4,788,575 - 2,025,917
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders 14,795,616
13,554,496
11,785,072
17,812,967
7,355,687
Earnings per share
389k
566k
495k
476k
343k
Declared dividend per share
322k
279k
395k
295k
275k
Number of ordinary shares of N1.00
2,793,777
2,793,777
2,793,777
2,793,777
2,793,777
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